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NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the 36th Annual General Meeting of the Members of LCC INFOTECH
LIMITED will be held through Video Conferencing on Thursday, 29th September, 2022 at 11.30 P.M. to
transact the following Business:

Ordinary Business:

1.

a) To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the Company
for the year ended 31st March, 2022 together with Directors' Report and Auditors' Report thereon.

b) To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Com-
pany for the year ended 31st March, 2022 together with Auditors' Report thereon.

To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Sidharth Lakhotia (DIN: 00057511), who retires by rotation
in terms of Section 152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and being eligible, offers himself for
reappointment.

Appointment of Statutory Auditors in place of retiring Auditors

To appoint M/s Nitin Gami & Associates, Chartered Accountants, Kolkata, as Statutory Auditors
of the Company in place of M/s. Anil Malani & Associated, Chartered Accountants, which retires
upon expiry of term, and in this regard, to consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without
modification(s), the following Resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 and other applicable provisions, if
any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including
any statutory modification, amendment or enactment thereof, for the time being in force), M/s.
Nitin Gami & Associates Chartered Accountants, Kolkata (Firm Registration No.: 332567E) be
and are hereby appointed as one of the Statutory Auditor of the Company in place of M/s. Anil
Malani & Associates, Chartered Accountants (Firm's Registration No. 329096E), the retiring statu-
tory auditor, to hold the office from the conclusion of the 36th Annual General Meeting until the
conclusion of the 41th Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held in the year 2027 at
such remuneration as may be mutually agreed between the Board of Directors of the Company
and the Auditors plus applicable taxes and reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses in connec-
tion with the Audit services.

Special Business:

4.

Re-appointment of Mr. Pratik Lakhotia (DIN: 00057015) as Whole-Time Director & CFO of the
Company

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modifications, the following resolution as a
Special Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provision of Section 196, 197 & 203 read with Sched-
ule V and all other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Compa-
nies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personal) Rules, 2014 (including any statu-
tory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force), and based on
recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the consent of the members
of the Company be and are hereby accorded to the re-appointment of Mr. Pratik Lakhotia (DIN:
00057015) as Whole Time Director designated as Whole-Time Director and Chief Financial Of-
ficer of the Company, liable to retire by rotation, for a period of 3 (Three) years w.e.f. January
1, 2023 to December 31, 2025, on the terms and conditions including remuneration and as set
out in the agreement entered into between the Company and Mr. Pratik Lakhotia, and as set out
in the explanatory statement annexed hereto.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the approval of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the
Board of Directors of the Company (hereinafter referred to as the 'Board' which term shall be
deemed to include the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board) to vary, alter,
increase, enhance or widen the terms and conditions of appointment and the remuneration
payable to Mr. Pratik Lakhotia (DIN: 00057015), from time to time, as they may in their discre-
tion deem fit.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the remunerations as approved hereby shall be paid to Mr. Pratik
Lakhotia (DIN: 00057015) as a minimum remuneration during the tenure of his appointment,
subject to the limits specified under Section II of Part II of the Schedule V to the Act or such
other limit as may be prescribed by the Central Government from time to time.
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to the above resolution, the Board
of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and
things, as may be necessary, proper and expedient in this regard."

5. Approve existing as well as new material related party transactions

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modifications, the following resolution as a
Special Resolution:

RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 23 and all other applicable provi-
sions, if any of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
(hereinafter called "the Listing Regulations"), and all applicable provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 (hereinafter called "the Act") and Rules made there under, (including any statutory
modification(s) and/or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), the Company's Policy
on Related Party Transactions, and pursuant to the consent of the Audit Committee and the
consent of the Board of Directors of the Company, the approval of the Members of the Company
be and is hereby accorded to the Company to enter into arrangements/transactions/contracts
with below mentioned related parties ("Related Party"), relating to transactions the details of
which are more particularly set out in the explanatory statement of this Notice, provided how-
ever that the aggregate amount/value of all such arrangements/transactions/ contracts that
may be entered into by the Company with the Related Party and remaining outstanding at any
one point in time shall not exceed the limits mentioned below during any one financial year from
FY 2022-23 to FY 2026-27 i.e. five financial years, provided that the said transactions are en-
tered into/ carried out on arm's length basis and on such terms and conditions as may be
considered appropriate by the Board of Directors (including any authorised Committee thereof)
and that all the existing related party arrangements/transactions/contracts with below Related
Party within the defined limit be and is hereby ratified:

Name of Related Party | Name of Relationship | Nature of Transaction Amount
(Rs. in Lakhs)
Mr. Sidharth Lakhotia Related party as per Loan availed taken by 500.00
Companies Act, 2013, the Company

Accounting Standards
and Listing Regulations

Mrs. Kirti Lakhotia Related party as per Loan availed taken by 500.00
Companies Act, 2013, the Company
Accounting Standards
and Listing Regulations

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to the above resolution, the Board
of Directors of the Company (hereinafter referred to as "the Board", which term shall be deemed
to include any Committee constituted by the Board or any person(s) authorized by the Board in
this regard) be and are hereby authorised to do all acts and deeds, things and execute all such
documents and take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to
this resolution and for matters connected therewith or incidental thereto."

By order of the Board

For LCC INFOTECH LIMITED
May 27th , 2022
Regd. Office: Sd/-

P-16,C.I.T. Road /g/

Kolkata-700014
Sidharth Lakhotia
Director
DIN: 00057511
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Note:

1.

10.

11.

12.

In view of the massive outbreak of Covid-19 and its continuous spread, the Ministry of Corpo-
rate Affairs ("MCA") and the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) vide their respective
Circulars issued from time to time since March, 2020 (hereinafter collectively referred to as "the
Circulars") permitted the holding of the Annual General Meeting ("AGM") by the company through
VC/OVAM, without the physical presence of the Members at a common venue. In compliance
with the provisions of the Circulars, the 36th AGM of the Company is being convened and
conducted through VC.

. As per the Companies Act, 2013, a Member entitled to attend and vote at the AGM is entitled to

appoint a proxy to attend and vote on his/her behalf. Since this AGM is being held through VC
pursuant to the Circulars, physical attendance of Members has been dispensed with. Accord-
ingly, the facility for appointment of proxies by the Members is not available for the AGM and
hence the Proxy Form and Attendance Slip are not annexed to this Notice. However, the Body
Corporate are entitled to appoint authorized representatives to attend the AGM through VC and
participate there at and cast their votes through e-voting.

. An Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, setting out the

material facts in relation to the Special Business set out under Item No. 4 and 5 of the accompa-
nying Notice, is annexed hereto.

. The Members can join the AGM in the VC mode 15 minutes before and after the scheduled time

of the commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice. The
facility of participation at the AGM through VC will be made available on first come first served
basis. The instructions for members for attending the AGM through VC are annexure herewith.

. The voting rights of shareholders shall be in proportion to number of shares held in the paid-up

equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date of September 22, 20222.

. The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC will be counted for the purpose of

reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013.

. Pursuant to section 91 of the Companies Act 2013 the Register of Members and Share Transfer

Registers of the Company will remain closed from 23rd September 2021 to 29th September
2021 (both days inclusive).

. Members holding the equity shares under multiple folios in same names are requested to con-

solidate their holdings into one folio.

. Additional Information pursuant to Regulation 36 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (Listing Regulations), on Director seeking appointment / re-
appointment at this AGM is furnished herewith as annexure to the Notice. The director has
furnished consent for his re-appointment as required under the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Rules thereunder.

In compliance of the Circulars, the Notice of the AGM along with the Annual Report 2021-22 is
being sent by electronic mode to those members whose e-mail addresses are registered with
the Company/ Depositories, unless any member has requested for a physical copy of the same.
In case any member is desirous to receive communication from the Company in electronic
form, they may register their email address with Company or with their depository participant or
send their consent to the Registrar and Share Transfer of the Company along with their folio no.
and valid email address for registration. As a measure to save our natural resources, we re-
quest shareholders to update their email address with their Depository Participants / Registrar
and Share Transfer Agent to enable the Company to send communications electronically.

The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding maintained
under Section 170 of the Act, the Register of Contracts or Arrangements in which the directors
are interested, maintained under Section 189 of the Act, and the relevant documents referred to
in the Notice will be available electronically for inspection by the members during the AGM.

All documents referred to in the Notice will also be available electronically for inspection without
any fee by the members from the date of circulation of this Notice up to the date of AGM.
Members seeking to inspect such documents can send an email to corporate@lccinfotech.co.in

Members seeking any information with regard to the accounts or any matter to be placed at the
AGM, are requested to write to the Company on or before Tuesday, September 27, 2022 through
email on corporate@lccinfotech.co.in. The same will be replied by the Company suitably.

As the AGM is being held through VC, the route map is not annexed to this Notice.
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13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

Institutional Members / Bodies Corporate (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required
to send scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution / Authority letter etc.
together with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory (ies) who are autho-
rized to vote through e-mail at csmdshah@gmail.com with a copy marked to
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com on or before September 29, 2022, up to 5:00 pm without which
the vote shall not be treated as valid.

Investors who became members of the Company subsequent to the dispatch of the Notice /
Email and holds the shares as on the cut-off date i.e. 22nd September 2022 are requested to
send the written / email communication to the Company at corporate@Iccinfotech.co.in by
mentioning their Folio No. / DP ID and Client ID to obtain the Login-ID and Password for e-
voting.

CS Md. Shahnawaz, Practicing Company Secretary, (Membership No. 21427; CP No -15076),
has been appointed as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the remote e-voting process and voting at
the AGM in a fair and transparent manner. The Scrutinizer will submit, not later than 48 hours of
conclusion of the AGM, a consolidated Scrutinizer's Report of the total votes cast in favour or
against, if any, to the Chairman of the Company or a person authorized by him in writing, who
shall countersign the same and declare the result of the voting forthwith.

The results declared along with the Scrutinizer's Report shall be placed on the Company's
websitewww.lccinfotech.in and on the website of CDSL. The same will be communicated to the
stock exchange where the shares of the company are listed.

In accordance with the proviso to Regulation 40(1) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclo-
sure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, effective from April 1, 2019, transfers of shares of the
Company shall not be processed unless the shares are held in the dematerialized form with a
depository. Accordingly, shareholders holding equity shares in physical form are urged to have
their shares dematerialized so as to be able to freely transfer them and participate in various
corporate actions.

Pursuant to Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013, members are entitled to make a nomination
in respect of shares held by them. Members desirous of making a nomination are requested to
send their requests in Form No. SH-13, to the Registrar and Transfer Agent of the Company.
Further, members desirous of cancelling/varying nomination are requested to send their re-
quests in Form No. SH- 14, to the Registrar and Transfer Agent of the Company. These forms will
be made available on request by the Registrar and Transfer Agent / Company.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of Permanent
Account Number (PAN) by every participant in securities market. Members holding shares in
electronic form are, therefore, requested to submit their PAN to their depository participants
with whom they are maintaining their demat accounts. Members holding shares in physical form
can submit their PAN to the Company or its Registrar and Share Transfer Agent, M/s S. K. Pvt.
Ltd.

Members whose shareholding is in electronic mode are requested to direct change of address
notifications and updates of savings bank account details to their respective Depository
Participant(s).

Members are requested to intimate changes, if any, pertaining to their name, postal address, e-
mail address, telephone/mobile numbers, Permanent Account Number (PAN), mandates, nomi-
nations, power of attorney, bank details such as, name of the bank and branch details, bank
account number, MICR code, IFSC code, etc.,

a) For shares held in electronic form: To their Depository Participants (DPs)

b) For shares held in physical form: To the Company/Registrar and Transfer Agent in prescribed
Form ISR-1 and other forms pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/ MIRSD/MIRSD_RTAMB/P/
CIR/2021/655 dated November 3, 2021. The Company has sent individual letters to the share-
holders for furnishing the required details. The details of the Registrar and Share Transfer Agents,
are as under:

M/s. S. K. Infosolution Private Limited

D/42,Katju Nagar (Near South City Mall),

Ground Floor, Katju Nagar Bazar, Jadavpur, Kolkata -700032

Phone: 033-24120027 & 033-24120029, Email: skcdilip@gmail.com.
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22.

Members may please note that SEBI vide its Circular No. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD_RTAMB/P/
CIR/2022/8 dated January 25, 2022 has mandated the listed companies to issue securities in
dematerialized form only while processing service requests viz. Issue of duplicate securities
certificate; claim from unclaimed suspense account; renewal/exchange of securities certificate;
endorsement; sub-division/splitting of securities certificate; consolidation of securities certifi-
cates/folios; transmission and transposition. Accordingly, Members are requested to make ser-
vice requests by submitting a duly filled and signed Form ISR - 4, the format of which is available
on the Company's website at http://www.lccinfotech.in and on the website of the Company's
Registrar and Transfer Agents, M/s. S. K. Infosolution Private Limited, D/42,Katju Nagar (Near
South City Mall),Ground Floor, Katju Nagar Bazar,Jadavpur, Kolkata -700032. Phone: 033-24120027
& 033-24120029, Email: skcdilip@gmail.com. It may be noted that any service request can be
processed only after the folio is KYC Compliant.

SEBI vide its notification dated January 24, 2022 has mandated that all requests for transfer of

securities including transmission and transposition requests shall be processed only in demate-
rialized form. In view of the same and to eliminate all risks associated with physical shares and
avail various benefits of dematerialisation, Members are advised to dematerialise the shares
held by them in physical form. Members can contact the Company or M/s. S. K. Infosolution
Private Limited, for assistance in this regard.

Instruction for e-voting and Joining Virtual meetings.

1.

As you are aware, in view of the situation arising due to COVID-19 global pandemic, the general
meetings of the companies shall be conducted as per the guidelines issued by the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 8, 2020, Circular No.17/2020
dated April 13, 2020 and Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020. The forthcoming AGM/EGM
will thus be held through through video conferencing (VC) or other audio visual means (OAVM).
Hence, Members can attend and participate in the ensuing AGM/EGM through VC/OAVM.

. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the

Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44 of
SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 (as amended), and MCA
Circulars dated April 08, 2020, April 13, 2020 and May 05, 2020 the Company is providing
facility of remote e-voting to its Members in respect of the business to be transacted at the AGM/
EGM. For this purpose, the Company has entered into an agreement with Central Depository
Services (India) Limited (CDSL) for facilitating voting through electronic means, as the autho-
rized e-Voting's agency. The facility of casting votes by a member using remote e-voting as well
as the e-voting system on the date of the EGM/AGM will be provided by CDSL.

. The Members can join the EGM/AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the

scheduled time of the commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in
the Notice. The facility of participation at the EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM will be made available
to at least 1000 members on first come first served basis. This will not include large Sharehold-
ers (Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding), Promoters, Institutional Investors, Direc-
tors, Key Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination and Re-
muneration Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Auditors etc. who are al-
lowed to attend the EGM/AGM without restriction on account of first come first served basis.

. The attendance of the Members attending the AGM/EGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for

the purpose of ascertaining the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013.

. Pursuant to MCA Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, , the facility to appoint proxy to

attend and cast vote for the members is not available for this AGM/EGM. However, in pursuance
of Section 112 and Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013, representatives of the members
such as the President of India or the Governor of a State or body corporate can attend the AGM/
EGM through VC/OAVM and cast their votes through e-voting.

. In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020,

the Notice calling the AGM/EGM has been uploaded on the website of the Company at
www.lccinfotech.in. The Notice can also be accessed from the websites of the Stock Exchanges
i.e. BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited at www.bseindia.com and
www.nseindia.com respectively. The AGM/EGM Notice is also disseminated on the website of
CDSL (agency for providing the Remote e-Voting facility and e-voting system during the AGM/
EGM) i.e. www.evotingindia.com.
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7. The AGM/EGM has been convened through VC/OAVM in compliance with applicable provisions of

the Companies Act, 2013 read with MCA Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 8, 2020 and MCA
Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020 and MCA Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020.

THE INTRUCTIONS OF SHAREHOLDERS FOR E-VOTING AND JOINING VIRTUAL MEETINGS
ARE AS UNDER:

1. The voting period begins on 26th September 2022 at 9 AM and ends on 28th September 2022 at

5 PM. During this period shareholders' of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or
in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date of September 22, 2022 may cast their vote
electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter.

. Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled to vote at
the meeting venue.

. Shareholders who have not voted during the e-voting period shall be entitled to vote at the
meeting venue through e-voting.

. Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 09.12.2020, under
Regulation 44 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, listed entities are required to provide remote e-voting facility
to its shareholders, in respect of all shareholders' resolutions. However, it has been observed
that the participation by the public non-institutional shareholders/retail shareholders is at a
negligible level.

Currently, there are multiple e-voting service providers (ESPs) providing e-voting facility to
listed entities in India. This necessitates registration on various ESPs and maintenance of mul-
tiple user IDs and passwords by the shareholders.

In order to increase the efficiency of the voting process, pursuant to a public consultation, it has
been decided to enable e-voting to all the demat account holders, by way of a single login
credential, through their demat accounts/ websites of Depositories/ Depository Participants.
Demat account holders would be able to cast their vote without having to register again with the
ESPs, thereby, not only facilitating seamless authentication but also enhancing ease and conve-
nience of participating in e-voting process.

In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9, 2020 on
e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in
demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories and
Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id
in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility.

Pursuant to above said SEBI Circular, Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings for
Individual shareholders holding securities in Demat mode CDSL/NSDL is given below:

Type of Login Method
shareholders
Individual 1) Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through their
Sharehold- existing user id and password. Option will be made available to reach e-
ers holding Voting page without any further authentication. The URL for users to login to
securities in Easi / Easiest are https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or visit
Demat www.cdslindia.com and click on Login icon and select New System Myeasi.
mode with 2) After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting
CDSL option for eligible companies where the evoting is in progress as per the
information provided by company. On clicking the evoting option, the user
will be able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting service provider for casting
your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting &
voting during the meeting. Additionally, there is also links provided to access
the system of all e-Voting Service Providers i.e. CDSL/NSDL/KARVY/
LINKINTIME, so that the user can visit the e-Voting service providers' website
directly.
3) If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration
4) Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing Demat
Account Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting link available on

| 10}
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WWWw.cdslindia.com home page or click on https://evoting.cdslindia.com/
Evoting/EvotingLogin The system will authenticate the user by sending OTP
on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat Account. After suc-
cessful authentication, user will be able to see the e-Voting option where the
evoting is in progress and also able to directly access the system of all e-
Voting Service Providers.

Individual
Sharehold-
ers holding
securities in
demat
mode with
NSDL

1)

2)

3)

If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the e-
Services website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL:
https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.
Once the home page of e-Services is launched, click on the "Beneficial Owner"
icon under "Login" which is available under 'IDeAS' section. A new screen
will open. You will have to enter your User ID and Password. After successful
authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services. Click on "Access to
e-Voting" under e-Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting page.
Click on company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be
re-directed to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote during
the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the
meeting.

If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is
available at https://eservices.nsdl.com. Select "Register Online for IDeAS
"Portal or click at https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp

Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following
URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a
mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the
icon "Login" which is available under 'Shareholder/Member' section. A new
screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit
demat account number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification
Code as shown on the screen. After successful authentication, you will be
redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click
on company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be redi-
rected to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote during the
remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meet-
ing

Individual
Shareholders
(holding secu-
rities in demat
mode) login
through their
Depository
Participants

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through
your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility.
After Successful login, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Once you click
on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site
after successful authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click
on company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be redi-
rected to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote during the
remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meet-
ing.

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget
User ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues
related to login through Depository i.e. CDSL and NSDL

Helpdesk details

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact
CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.comor contact at

022- 23058738 and 22-23058542-43.

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact
NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at
evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at

toll free no.: 1800 1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30

Login type

Individual Shareholders holding
securities in Demat mode with CDSL

Individual Shareholders holding
securities in Demat mode with NSDL
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(i) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings for Physical shareholders and sharehold-
ers other than individual holding in Demat form.

1) The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com.
2) Click on "Shareholders" module.
3) Now enter your User ID
a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,
b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,
c. Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered
with the Company.
4) Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.
5) If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and
voted on an earlier e-voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used.
6) If you are a first-time user follow the steps given below:
For Physical shareholders and other than individual shareholders holding shares in
Demat.
PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Department (Applicable
for both demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders)

~ Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository Par-

ticipant are requested to use the sequence number sent by Company/RTA or contact

Company/RTA.

Dividend| Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as recorded

Bank Details| in your demat account or in the company records in order to login.

gil:thD?l;ch;f ~ If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company, please enter

the member id / folio number in the Dividend Bank details field.

(ii) After entering these details appropriately, click on "SUBMIT" tab.

(iii) Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection
screen. However, shareholders holding shares in demat form will now reach 'Password Creation'
menu wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their login password in the new password
field. Kindly note that this password is to be also used by the demat holders for voting for
resolutions of any other company on which they are eligible to vote, provided that company opts
for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is strongly recommended not to share your password
with any other person and take utmost care to keep your password confidential.

(iv) For shareholders holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on
the resolutions contained in this Notice.

(v) Click on the EVSN for the relevant LCC INFOTECH LIMITED on which you choose to vote.

(vi) On the voting page, you will see "RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION" and against the same the option
"YES/NO" for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you
assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution.

(vii) Click on the "RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK" if you wish to view the entire Resolution details.

(viii)After selecting the resolution, you have decided to vote on, click on "SUBMIT". A confirmation
box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on "OK", else to change your vote,
click on "CANCEL" and accordingly modify your vote.

(ix) Once you "CONFIRM" your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

(x) You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on "Click here to print" option on the Voting
page.

(xi) If a demat account holder has forgotten the login password then Enter the User ID and the
image verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the
system.

(xii) Additional Facility for Non - Individual Shareholders and Custodians -For Remote Voting only.
~ Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are

required to log on to www.evotingindia.com and register themselves in the "Corporates" mod-
ule.
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~ A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be
emailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

~ After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin login
and password. The Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish
to vote on.

~ The list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
and on approval of the accounts they would be able to cast their vote.

~ A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have issued
in favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the
scrutinizer to verify the same.

~ Alternatively Non Individual shareholders are required to send the relevant Board Resolution/
Authority letter etc. together with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory
who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer and to the Company at the email address viz;
CORPORATE@LCCINFOTECH.CO.IN, if they have voted from individual tab & not uploaded
same in the CDSL e-voting system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS ATTENDING THE AGM/EGM THROUGH VC/OAVM & E-
VOTING DURING MEETING ARE AS UNDER:

1.

10.

The procedure for attending meeting & e-Voting on the day of the AGM/ EGM is same as the
instructions mentioned above for e-voting.

The link for VC/OAVM to attend meeting will be available where the EVSN of Company will be
displayed after successful login as per the instructions mentioned above for e-voting.

. Shareholders who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the meeting.

However, they will not be eligible to vote at the AGM/EGM.
Shareholders are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops / IPads for better experience.

. Further shareholders will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to

avoid any disturbance during the meeting.

Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop con-
necting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their respec-
tive network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any
kind of aforesaid glitches.

Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask questions during the meeting
may register themselves as a speaker by sending their request in advance atleast one
days prior to meeting mentioning their name, demat account number/folio number, email
id, mobile number at (company email id). The shareholders who do not wish to speak
during the AGM but have queries may send their queries in advance one days prior to
meeting mentioning their name, demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile
number at (company email id). These queries will be replied to by the company suitably
by email.

Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to ex-
press their views/ask questions during the meeting.

. Only those shareholders, who are present in the AGM/EGM through VC/OAVM facility and have

not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred
from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system available during the EGM/AGM.

If any Votes are cast by the shareholders through the e-voting available during the EGM/
AGM and if the same shareholders have not participated in the meeting through VC/OAVM
facility, then the votes cast by such shareholders shall be considered invalid as the facil-
ity of e-voting during the meeting is available only to the shareholders attending the
meeting.

If you have any queries or issues regarding attending AGM & e-Voting from the CDSL e-Voting
System, you can write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 022- 23058738 and
022-23058542/43.
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All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be addressed to Mr.
Rakesh Dalvi, Sr. Manager, (CDSL, ) Central Depository Services (India) Limited, A Wing, 25th Floor,
Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mill Compounds, N M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East), Mumbai - 400013 or
send an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or call on 022-23058542/43.

By order of the Board
For LCC INFOTECH LIMITED
May 27th, 2022 Sd/-
Regd. Office: =
P-16,C.I.T. Road /Q‘/
Kolkata-700014 Sidharth Lakhotia
Director
DIN: 00057511
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DETAILS OF DIRECTORS SEEKING APPOINTMENT/ RE-APPOINTMENT AT THE ANNUAL GEN-

ERAL MEETING

[Pursuant to Regulation 36 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 and Clause 1.2.5 of Secretarial Standard -2 on General Meetings]

Name of the Director

SIDHARTH LAKHOTIA

Pratik LAKHOTIA

DIN 00057511 00057015
Date of Birth/ Age 29/03/1980 27/05/1984
Date of Appointment 15/05/1998 30/01/2003
Qualifications MBA MBA
Expertise in specific functional 24 years 19

areas

Key Terms and conditions of WTD & CEO WTD&CFO
his appointment

Number of Meetings of the Board | 6 6

attended during the financial year
(2021-22)

List of Directorship

1. Advertiser's Advertising
Agency Limited

2. SCL Developers Private
Limited

3. ELCC Info.Com Limited

4. Lakhotia Constrruction
Company Private Limited

1. Advertiser's Advertising
Agency Limited

2. SCL Developers Private
Limited

3. ELCC Info.Com Limited

4. Lakhotia Constrruction
Company Private Limited

5. Mimo Developers Private
Limited

6. Raap E-Commerce Pvt. Ltd

Shareholding in the Company

7149674

7513205

Relationship with other
Directors, Manager and other
Key Managerial Personnel

of the Company

Mr. Sidharth Lakhotia,
Mrs. Kirti Lakhotia and
Mr. Pratik Lakhotia,
being relative are related
with each other.

Mr. Pratik Lakhotia,

Mrs. Kirti Lakhotia and
Mr. Sidharth Lakhotia,
being relative are related
with each other.

Listed entities from which the
person has resigned in the
past three years

NA

NA

Skills and capabilities required
for the role and the manner
in which the proposed person
meets such requirements

Not Applicable as the proposed
appointee is not an
independent director

Not Applicable as the proposed
appointee is not an
independent director

Explanatory Statement Pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Item No. 4:

Mr. Pratik Lakhotia (DIN: 00057015) was appointed as a Whole-time Director & CFO of the Company
for a period of 3 years w.e.f. January 1, 2020 on the remuneration and other terms and conditions.

As the existing tenure of Mr. Pratik Lakhotia (DIN: 00057015) as Whole-time Director & CFO of the
Company will expire on December 31, 2022, the Board of Directors of the Company, keeping in view
his performance, vast expertise and knowledge, and to create enduring guidance, considers that the
reappointment of Mr. Lakhotia is in the interest of the Company and it is desirable to continue his
services as a Whole-time Director & CFO. Accordingly, the Board of Directors, based on the recom-
mendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, has approved re-appointment of Mr. Pratik
Lakhotia as Whole-time Director & CFO for a further period of 3 years w.e.f. January 1, 2023 till
December 31, 2025. The Board recommends the resolution at Item No. 4 of the Notice in relation to
reappointment of Mr. Pratik Lakhotia as a Whole-time Director & CFO of the Company, liable to retire
by rotation, as a Special Resolution for approval of the Members.
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(A) Salary - Rs.25,000/- per month.
In the scale of Rs.25,000/- --- Rs.30,000/- --- Rs.35,000/- --- Rs.40,000/-
(B) Perquisites - As per the Rules of the Company.

Mr. Pratik Lakhotia so long as he functions as Whole-time Director & CFO shall not be paid any sitting
fees for attending meeting of the Board of Directors or Committees thereof.

The Company shall remunerate Mr. Pratik Lakhotia by way of salary and perquisites as specified
above as minimum remuneration during the term of his appointment, subject to the limit specified
under Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013.

The remuneration as aforesaid approved by the Board for 3 (Three) years is based on the recom-
mendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee subject to the approval of Shareholders
and shall be within the maximum limits as specified in Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013, as
amended from time to time.

Mr. Pratik Lakhotia is looking after the overseas finance, accounting, internal control and statu-
tory compliances. Since, he joined the Company, the Company is being able to achieve finan-
cial effectiveness and zero lapse in statutory compliances. As such it is felt that the company
should pay him suitably within the overall permissible limit as prescribed under the Companies
Act, 2013, as amended.

A brief resume of Mr. Pratik Lakhotia and a statement as required under Regulation 36 of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, SS 2 - Secretarial Standard on
General Meetings, and Section II of Part II of the Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013, is attached
herewith and marked as annexure A.

The agreement entered into for re-appointment of Mr. Pratilk Lakhotia would be available for inspec-
tion by the members at the Registered Office of the Company on all working days (Monday to Friday)
during normal business hours upto the date of AGM.

The financial performance of the Company is not as per the expectations and that the Company
is having inadequate profits for the financial years 2021-22 and may have inadequate profit in
during the tenure of Mr. Pratilk Lakhotia. In view of the above, the payment of remuneration to
Mr. Pratilk Lakhotia for the tenure of his current appointment falls within the purview of Section
II of Part II of Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013. The limits for payment of managerial
remuneration under Section II of Part II of Schedule V of the Act shall be Rs. 84 Lakhs per
person based on the Company's effective capital. The said limits shall be doubled if the resolu-
tion passed by the shareholders is a special resolution. Accordingly, the limit shall be Rs. 168
lakhs per person.

Accordingly, the resolution set out in item no. 4 in the notice regarding re-appointment and payment
of remuneration to Mr. Pratilk Lakhotia, is recommended by the Board for approval by the sharehold-
ers as Special Resolution.

Mrs. Kirti Lakhotia, Mr. Sidharth Lakhotia and Mr. Pratik Lakhotia are interested in the said Resolution.
Except them, none of the other Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company, or their
relatives, is concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the proposed Resolution.

Item No. 5

Pursuant to Regulation 23 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 (hereinafter called as "the Listing Regulations"), all Related Party Transactions shall require
prior approval of the Audit Committee and all material transactions with related parties shall require
approval of the Members of the Company through a resolution and all related parties shall abstain
from voting on such resolution.

"Material Related Party Transaction" under the Listing Regulations means any transaction(s)
entered into individually or taken together with previous transactions during a financial year
exceeding 10% of the annual consolidated turnover of a company as per its last audited finan-
cial statements.

The annual consolidated turnover of the Company for the financial year 2021-22 is INR 121.03
Lakhs. Accordingly, any transaction(s) by the Company with its related party exceeding INR 12.01
lakhs (10% of the Company's annual consolidated turnover) shall be considered as material transac-
tion and hence, the approval of the Members will be required for the same. It is therefore proposed
to obtain the Members' approval for the following arrangements/transactions/ contracts which may
be entered into by the Company with its related parties from time to time:
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Name of Related Party | Name of Relationship Nature of Transaction Amount
(Rs. in Lakhs)
Mr. Sidharth Lakhotia Related party as per Loan availed taken 500.00
Companies Act, 2013, by the Company
Accounting Standards and
Listing Regulations
Mrs. Kirti Lakhotia Related party as per Loan availed taken 500.00
Companies Act, 2013, by the Company
Accounting Standards and

* The ceiling on the amounts of the transactions specified as above would mean the transactions
entered into and the remaining outstanding at any point of time.

The aforesaid Related Party Transactions do not fall under the purview of Section 188 of the Compa-
nies Act, 2013 being in the ordinary course of business and at arms' length. However, the same are
covered under the provisions of Regulation 23 of the SEBI Listing Regulations and accordingly the
approval of the Shareholders is sought by way of Ordinary Resolution.

The Audit Committee and Board have approved the aforesaid Related Party Transactions at their
meetings held on May 27, 2022, in terms of Regulation 23 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and noted that these transactions shall be in the Ordinary Course
of Business and at arm's length basis. With respect to the above matter, the Shareholders/Members

are requested to note following disclosures of Interest:

S. No.| Name of the Related Party | Nature of Concern or Interest
1. Mr. Sidharth Lakhotia Mr. Sidharth Lakhotia, Wholetime Director & CEO and
Promoter of the Company. He holds 7149674 equity
shares
2. Mrs. Kirti Lakhotia Mrs. Kirti Lakhotia, Chairman & Managing Director
and Promoter of the Company. She holds 36221235
equity shares

Further, in terms of applicable SEBI Circulars the members are requested to take note of the

following:

S.No.| Particulars Details

1. A summary of the information provided | The details of the proposed transactions
by the management to the Audit including the nature, terms, value percentage
Committee of the Company's annual consolidated turnover,

tenure and proposed limits etc. were placed to
the Audit Committee at its meeting held on
May 27, 2022.

2. Justification for why the proposed The funds raised through unsecured loan
transactions is in the interest of the will be utilized for meeting the business
Company requirements and general corporate purposes

in the interest of the Company.

3. Transaction relates to any loans, inter-corporate deposits, advances or investments made or

given by the listed entity or its subsidiary

a. Nature of indebtedness
b. Tenure

c. Applicable terms, including
covenants, tenure, interest rate and
repayment schedule, whether secured
or unsecured; if secured, the nature
of security

d. the purpose for which the funds
will be utilized by the ultimate
beneficiary of such funds.

Loan from Director / promoter
Repayable on demand

Tenure - Repayable on demand
Interest - NIL

Security - Unsecured Loan
Repayment schedule - Not applicable

The loan shall be utilized for the business
requirements and general corporate
purposes in the interest of the Company.
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The Board recommends the resolution set out at Item No. 5 of the AGM Notice to the Members for
their consideration and approval, by way of Ordinary Resolution.

Except to the extent of shareholding of the Promoters / Directors their Relatives and Key Managerial
Personnel in the abovementioned related parties which is duly disclosed above, none of the other
Directors/ Key Managerial Personnel/ their Relatives is, in any way, concerned or interested, finan-
cially or otherwise in the Ordinary Resolution set out at Item Nos. 5 respectively.

By order of the Board
For LCC INFOTECH LIMITED
May 27th, 2022 Sd/-
Regd. Office: =
P-16,C.I.T. Road /Q/
Kolkata-700014 Sidharth Lakhotia
Director
DIN: 00057511
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(B) Statement as required Under Section II, Part II of the Schedule V of the Companies
Act, 2013 with reference to the Special Resolution at Item No. 2,3 & 4 of the Notice

I. General Information:

1. Nature of Industry: Training, skill development and education

2. Date or expected date of commencement of commercial production: Existing Company in op-
eration since 08/01/1986

3. In case of new companies, expected date of commencement of activities as per project ap-
proval by financial institution appearing in the prospectus: Not Applicable

4. Financial performance based on given indicators:

(Rs. In Lacs)

Sl. No. | Particulars 2020-21 2019-20 2018-19

1. Turnover 10.72 430.58 1114.19

2. Profit/(Loss)before tax (149.50) (2.79) (1.63)

3. Net Profit/(Loss) after tax (149.50) (2.79) (1.63)

4. Paid-up share capital 2531.87 2531.87 2531.87

5. Reserves & Surplus 3221.16 3370.66 3373.45
5. Export performance and net foreign exchange collaboration: None
II. Information about Mr. Ptatik Lakhotia

1. Background details:

i) Mr. Pratik Lakhotia is the promoter of the Company and is about 35 years. He possesses a
Post gragaute degree in MBA. He joined the board in 2003. He was appointed and desig-
nated as WTD of the company. He is actively involved in day to day routine work. Further
he is responsible for leading the Board and focusing on strategic matters, overseeing the
business and governance. He play an active role in fostering the effectiveness of the Board
and individual Directors, both inside and outside the board room. Presently he is Whole
Time Director & CFO of the company

2. Past remuneration

(Amount in Rs)
Financial Year Mr. Pratik Lakhotia
2020-21 300000/~
2019-20 300000/-
2018-19 300000/~

3. Recognition and awards - Nil

4. Job Profile and suitability -

Mr. Pratik Lakhotia is Management graduate from USA. He is having more than 19 years'
experience in the field of technological aspect and software development matters as well ac-
tively involved in all the matter of finance. He is young, dynamic, and enthusiastic with excellent
communication skill and expertise in Information Technology.

5. Remuneration proposed: - As stated in the explanatory statement to the special resolution at
item no. 4 in the notice.

6. Comparative remuneration profile with respect to industry, size of the company, profile of
the position and person - The proposed remuneration is commensurate to remuneration
paid by the similar size of companies to its whole-time directors considering his skill and
experience.

7. Pecuniary relationship directly or indirectly with the company, or relationship with the manage-

rial personnel, if any: - Mr. Pratik Lakhotia is the promoter director holding 7513205 equity
shares individually and 58078256 Equity shares through his relative and associates comprising
45.88% of total paid up share capital of the company.
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III Other Information

1.
A.

IV.

Reason of Loss or inadequate profit

The company is recording losses in the past due to stiff competition from the unorganised
players in the computer training and skill development sector. Due to this, there is always a
pressure on the revenue from operation of the Company.

The continuous restriction on opening of educational and training institutions by the government
due to Covid19 pandemic, the turnover of the Company is very badly affected which may be the
main reason of inadequate profit or even may result in loss during the current year.

Step taken or proposed to be taken for improvement: - The Company has been taking all
measures within its control to maximize efficiencies and optimized cost to lower the operational
cost. The Company has chalked out a road map to turnaround by reduction of cost, maximized
the reach through franchise model and to increase sales by increasing its geographical reach.
The company is hopeful to develop its operation with increase in focus of government of India on
skill development of rural Indian youth especially in UP, Bihar and West Bengal.

Expected increase in productivity and profits in measurable terms:- The step have been under-
taken or proposed to undertake to reduce cost and increase operation which will certainly accel-
erate the growth and profitability of the Company.

In view of the facts stated above, it is difficult to forecast the turnover and profitability in mea-
surable terms.

Disclosure

All the specified disclosure as required under this head of Schedule V of the Companies Act,
2013 shall be made in the Corporate Governance section of the Board report in the next Annual
Report.

By order of the Board
For LCC INFOTECH LIMITED

May 27th , 2022 Sd/-

Regd. Office: =
P-16,C.I.T. Road /Q/
Kolkata-700014 Sidharth Lakhotia

Director
DIN: 00057511
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
Dear Shareholders,

Your Directors present the 36™ Annual Report together with the Audited Accounts of your Company
for the year ended 31st March, 2022.

1.FINANCIAL RESULTS:

The performance of your Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2022, is summarized
below:

(Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars Standalone Consolidated
2021-22]12020-21]2021-22 | 2020-21
Profit/(Loss) before depreciation and Tax Expenses (A) | (73.61)|(140.82)| (73.72)|(140.92)
Less- Depreciation and amortization Expenses (B) (4.98) (8.86) (4.98) (8.68)
Profit/(Loss) before Tax (A-B) (78.59)| (149.5) (78.7) | (149.6)
Less-Tax Expenses for the year (C) -
Less- Deferred tax expenses for the year (D) -

Profit/(Loss) after Taxation (A-B)-(C)-(D) (I) (78.59)| (149.5) (78.7) | (149.6)
Less-Transfer to reserve (E) -

Add-Amount Brought Forward (II) (785.49) |(635.99) |(821.53) | (671.53)
Total (I-II) (864.08) [(785.49)[(900.23) | (821.13)
Less- Deferred Tax (F) -

Balance carried forward to Balance Sheet (I-II)-(F) (864.08) |(785.49) [(900.23) | (821.13)
2. DIVIDEND:

Considering the financial position and the challenges faced by the Company, your Directors have
not recommended any dividend for the year under review.

3. SHARE CAPITAL

There was no change in the capital structure of the Company. The paid-up Equity Share Capital
was Rs.2,531.87 lakh at the end of financial year 2021-22. The Company has not issued fresh
shares or any convertible instruments during the year under review.

4. BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF THE STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS:

LCC is engaged in building skilled human capital and in enhancing workforce talent across the
country. When it comes to Skills and Careers, the IT markets continue to offer significant growth
opportunities for LCC. With our new products, business models, and the strengthened leadership
team, LCC is well positioned to draw graduates seeking to improve their employability for jobs in
these industries. LCC will continue to increase its focus on Deep Skilling as compared to entry level
skills. With computers and IT all around us, the need to skilled computer hardware and networking
professionals has been ever growing. LCC offers just the right set of programs for students at any
stage. LCC will continue to persevere and deliver on promises made to shareowners as well as
external and internal customers.

Two years ago, as a response to the pandemic restrictions, your Company was swift in moving
its complete operations online, including all the student lifecycle processes. This Digital Pivot
was key to protecting our business and to survive during the tough COVID-19 related
restrictions.

This has been a landmark year, where despite being affected for nearly more than 6 months by
multiple waves of the COVID-19 pandemic, your Company has delivered satisfactory financial
results. Our financial performance, balance sheet quality and financial ratios have seen strong
improvements after a heavy impact from the pandemic in FY2020-21. In the reported financial
year, we've also achieved some major operational milestones like empanelment to conduct residential
project named " Deen Dayal Upadhya Grameen Kausal Yojana- DDUGKY-UP under Uttar Pradesh
Skill Development Mission.

With the opening up of educational and training institutes, we are gaining momentum and hopeful
of better operational and financial results for the financial year 2022-23.
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5. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

A separate section on the “Management Discussion and Analysis” is attached herewith, and form
part of the Annual Report 2022.

6. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The provisions of section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 regarding Corporate Social Responsibility
are not applicable to the Company as it’s not fulfilling under any of the criteria as described under
the said section.

7. BUSINESS RISK MANAGEMENT

Your Company has adequate risk management procedures, which are based upon business
environment, operational controls and compliance procedures. The major risks are assessed through
a systemic procedure of risk identification and classification. Risks are prioritized according to
significance and likelihood. The business risk framework defines the risk management approach
across the enterprise at various levels including documentation and reporting

8. CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY

There is no change in the nature of the business of the Company during the year under review.
9. VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

Your Company has a vigil mechanism policy for directors and employee to report instances and
concerns about unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Company Code of
Conduct. The vigil mechanism is available on your company website viz. www.lccinfotech.in. Under
this policy, we encourage our employees to report any reporting of fraudulent financial or other
information to the stakeholders, any conduct that results in violation of the Company’s Code of
Business Conduct, to management (on an anonymous basis, if employees so desire).

Likewise, under this policy, we have prohibited discrimination, retaliation or harassment of any kind
against any employees who, based on the employee’s reasonable belief that such conduct or practice
have occurred or are occurring, reports that information or participates in the said investigation.

This meets the requirement under Section 177(9) and (10) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation
22 of the Listing Regulations.
No individual in the Company has been denied access to the Audit Committee or its Chairman.

10. DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR
COURTS OR TRIBUNALS

No significant material orders passed by any regulators or courts or tribunals which would impact
the going concern status of the Company and its future operations.

11. SUBSIDIARY COMPANY

Your company has only one Indian subsidiary named eLCC Info.Com Limited. The Company is
holding 99.98% control over the subsidiary company. The subsidiary company does not have any
operation during the year under review. Pursuant to first provisions of section 129 (3) read with
rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014) Statement containing salient features of the financial
statement of subsidiaries is enclosed herewith as “Annexure- III".

Further, no companies ceased to be a subsidiary or joint venture of the Company during the year
under review.

12. DIRECTORS, KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL AND COMMITTEES

The Board of Directors comprises of six directors as on March 31, 2021. Three of them are non-
executive independent directors and one is executive woman Director.

The composition of the board is as follows:

Name DIN Category

Mrs. Kirti Lakhotia 00057357 | Managing Director Liable to retire by rotation

Mr. Sidharth Lakhotia | 00057511 | Wholetime Director and CEOLiable to retire by rotation
Mr. Pratik Lakhotia 00057015 | Wholetime Director and CFOLiable to retire by rotation

Mr. Kamaljit Singh 00552381 | Independent Director (Non-Executive) Not liable to retire by rotation
Mr. Rajat Sharma 01576565 | Independent Director (Non-Executive) Not liable to retire by rotation
Mr. Mayur P Shah 01849708 | Independent Director (Non-Executive) Not liable to retire by rotation
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In the opinion of the Board, the independent directors on the Board of the Company are persons
with integrity, expertise and experience relevant to the operation of the Company and that they all
have qualified in the online proficiency self-assessment test conducted by the prescribed institute.

Mr. Sidharth Lakhotia (DIN: 00057511), who retires by rotation, and being eligible, offers himself
for re-appointment. The resolution seeking approval of members for re-appointment of Mr. Sidharth
Lakhotia (DIN: 00057511) has been included in the Notice of 36th Annual General Meeting.

Mr. Pratik Lakhotia (DIN: 00057015) was appointed as a Whole-time Director & CFO of the Company
for a period of 3 years w.e.f. January 1, 2020. As the existing tenure of Mr. Pratik Lakhotia (DIN:
00057015) as Whole-time Director & CFO of the Company will expire on December 31, 2022, the
Board of Directors of the Company, keeping in view his performance, vast expertise and knowledge,
and to create enduring guidance, considers that the reappointment of Mr. Lakhotia is in the interest
of the Company and it is desirable to continue his services as a Whole-time Director & CFO.
Accordingly, the Board of Directors, based on the recommendation of Audit Committee and
Nomination and Remuneration Committee, has approved re-appointment of Mr. Pratik Lakhotia as
Whole-time Director & CFO for a further period of 3 years w.e.f. January 1, 2023 till December 31,
2025. A Special Resolution seeking reappointment of Mr. Pratik Lakhotia as a Whole-time Director
& CFO of the Company has been included in the Notice of 36th Annual General Meeting. the Board
recommends the re-appointment and payment of remuneration to Mr. Pratilk Lakhotia for approval
by the shareholders as Special Resolution.

During the year, the non-executive independent directors of the Company had no pecuniary
relationship or transactions with the Company.

The criteria for selection of Directors and remuneration policy are disclosed in the Corporate
Governance section which forms part of this Annual Report.

The details of programs or familiarization training of Independent Directors with the Company,
their roles, right & responsibility, nature of the Industry in which Company operates and related
matters are available on the Company’s website www.lccinfotech.in

Key Managerial Personnel

The Company has the following Key Managerial Personnel (KMPs) in compliance with the provisions
of Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013:

a) Mrs. Kirti Lakhotia, Managing Director

b) Mr. Sidharth Lakhotia WTD & CEO

c) Mr. Pratik Lakhotia, Director & Chief Financial Officer (CFO)
d) Mr. Smriti Suhasaria, Company Secretary

There was change in the KMPs during the year under review. Mr. Vineet Jain who was company
secretary of the company ceased to be Company secretary from December 1, 2021.

13. MEETING

The Board of Directors of your Company met 6 (Six) times during the year to deliberate the
various matters. The meetings were held on 08/06/2021, 08/06/2021, 30/06/2021, 2/08/2021, 28/
01/2022 and 31/03/2022 . Details of the attendance at the meeting of Board of Directors are
provided in the Corporate Governance Report forming part of this Report. The intervening gap
between two consecutive meetings was within the limit prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.

14. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The Company has an Internal Control System, Commensurate with the size of its operation. Internal
Control System comprising of Policies and procedure are designed to ensure sound management
of your company’s operation safekeeping of its assets, optimal utilization of resources, reliability of
its financial information and compliance.

15. BOARD EVALUATION

Pursuant to the provisions of the Act and Listing Regulations, the Board has carried out the Annual
Performance Evaluation for itself, the Directors individually (including the Chairman of the Board),
as well as the evaluation of the working of its Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration
Committee, Corporate Social Responsibility Committee and Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee.
A structured evaluation form was administered after taking into consideration the inputs received
from the Directors, covering various aspects of the Board’s functioning, such as the adequacy of
the composition of the Board and its Committees, its effectiveness, ethics and compliances, the
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evaluation of the Company’s performance, and internal control and audits. A separate exercise
was carried out to evaluate the performance of individual Directors, including the Chairman of the
Board, who were evaluated on parameters such as the level of engagement and contribution,
effective participation in Board/Committee Meetings, independence of judgment, safeguarding the
interest of the Company and its minority shareholders, providing expert advice to the Board, the
Board Skills matrix, and contributing in deliberations while approving related party transactions.

16. REMUNERATION POLICY

The Board has, on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee, framed a
policy for selection and appointment of Directors, Senior Management and their remuneration. The
Remuneration Policy is stated in the Corporate Governance Report forming a part of this Annual
Report.

17. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT IF ANY AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION
OF THE COMPANY OCCURRED BETWEEN THE ENDS OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR TO WHICH
THIS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE DATE OF THE REPORT

Material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company between the
end of the financial year and date of this report are given below:

The Covid-19 fourth wave hit the Country in the month of May 2022 is a matter of concern for the
Company, and if the reported no. of cases increases significantly, the financial performance of the
Company me get affected.

Except as disclosed elsewhere in the Report, no material changes and commitments which could
affect the financial position of the Company have occurred between the end of the financial year of
the Company to which the financial statements relate and the date of this Report.

18. AUDIT COMMITTEE

The committee comprise of Three directors all being independent Directors. As on March 31, 2022,
the details are as under:

i. Mr. Kamaljit Singh - Chairman - Non Executive and Independent director
ii. Rajat Sharma - Member - Non Executive and Independent director
iii. Mayur P Shah - Member - Non Executive and Independent director

Details of dates of meetings of Audit Committee and attendance thereat are provided in the Corporate
Governance Report forming part of this Report. The intervening gap between two consecutive
meetings was within the limit prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI LODR Regulations.
19. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The committee consists of three directors all being independent directors. As on March 31, 2022,
the details are as under:

i. Mr. Kamaljit Singh - Chairman - Non Executive and Independent director
ii. Rajat Sharma - Member - Non Executive and Independent director
iii. Mayur P Shah - Member - Non Executive and Independent director

Details of the dates of meetings of Nomination and Remuneration Committee and attendance
thereat, are provided in the Corporate Governance Report forming part of this Report. The intervening
gap between two consecutive meetings was within the limit prescribed under the Companies Act,
2013 and SEBI LODR Regulations.

20. INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

In accordance with the provisions of Section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013, all the Independent
Directors have given declarations that they meet the criteria of independence as laid down in
Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. All Independent Directors have registered their
name in the Independent Directors data bank and complied with Rule 6 of Companies (Appointment
and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014.

In terms of Regulation 25(8) of the Listing Regulations, they are not aware of any circumstance or
situation, which exist or may be reasonably anticipated, that could impair or impact their ability to
discharge their duties with an objective independent judgment and without any external influence.
In terms of Regulation 25(9) of the Listing Regulations, the Board of Directors have assessed the
veracity of the disclosures and confirmations made by the Independent Directors of the Company
made under Regulation 25(8) of the Listing Regulations
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21. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(5) of the Act, the Directors of your Company hereby
state and confirm:

a) in the preparation of the annual financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022, the
applicable accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to
material departures, if any;

b) the accounting policies as mentioned in Notes to the Financial Statements have been selected
and applied consistently and judgment and estimates have been made that are reasonable
and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2022 and of the profit of the Company for the year ended on that date;

c) proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of
the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) the Annual Accounts of your Company have been prepared on a going concern basis;

e) your Company has laid down internal financial controls and that such internal financial controls
are adequate and were operating effectively

f) your Company has devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively

22. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the financial year, your Company entered into related party transactions, which were on an
arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course of business. There were no material transactions with
any related party as defined under Section 188 of the Act read with the Companies (Meetings of
Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014. All related party transactions were approved by the Audit
Committee of your Company. The policy on Related Party Transactions as approved by the Board
has been hosted on website of company viz. www.lccinfotech.in The details of transaction annexed
as Annexure IV.

23. SECRETARIAL STANDARDS
The Directors state that the applicable mandatory Secretarial Standards, i.e., SS - 1: Secretarial

Standard on Meetings of the Board of Directors and SS - 2: Secretarial Standard on General Meetings
issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India, have been duly followed by the Company.

24, STATUTORY AUDITORS
M/s. Anil Malani & Associates, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 329096E), were appointed

as a Statutory Auditors of the Company at the Annual General Meeting of the Company held on
December 29, 2017, for a term of 5 consecutive year.

The Company has received a certificate from the above Auditors to the effect that their appointment
is in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Auditors’ Report is self-explanatory and therefore, do not call for any further comments. The
Auditors’ Report does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark.

25. SECRETARIAL AUDITORS

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company has appointed
Md. Shahnawaz proprietor of M Shahnawaz & Associates a peer review firm, (CP No. 15076),
Kolkata, as Secretarial Auditors of the Company to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company
for the financial Year 2021-22. The Secretarial Audit Report is annexed herewith as ‘Annexure -I'
The Secretarial Audit Auditor report does not contain any observation.

26. INTERNAL AUDITORS

Ms. Monika Bhadani (Membership No. 304748) Chartered Accountant, appointed as Internal Auditor
to perform the duties of internal auditors of the Company and their internal audit report is reviewed
by the Audit Committee from time to time.

27. MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS AND COST AUDIT

The Company being an IT & Software training company, the requirement of maintenance of cost
records as specified by the Central Government under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the
Companies Act, 2013, and audit of cost records were not applicable to the Company during the
year under review.
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28. DISCLOSURE UNDER INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016 (31 OF 2016)

During the year under review, neither any application was made nor any proceeding is pending
against the Company under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016

29. DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION:

There was no settlement by the Company with the Banks or Financial Institutions during the year
under review, thus, the details of difference between amount of the valuation done at the time of
one time settlement and the valuation done while taking loan from the Banks or Financial Institutions
along with the reasons thereof are not applicable.

30. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Your company is committed to maintain good corporate governance practices and adhere to the
Corporate Governance requirements set out by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI).
The report on Corporate Governance as stipulated under the Listing Regulations forms an integral
part of this Report. The requisite certificate from the Auditors of the Company confirming compliance
with the conditions of Corporate Governance is attached to the Report on Corporate Governance
as Annexure -VI.

31. POLICIES / CODES

In compliance with the applicable provisions of the relevant Act and Listing Regulations, the Company
has the following policies:

~ Policy on Determination of Material Subsidiaries

~ Policy on Determination of Materiality for disclosure

~ Policy on Related Party Transactions

~ Nomination and Remuneration Policy

~ Code of Conduct to Regulate, Monitor and Trading by Designated Persons

~ Whistle Blower Policy

~  Coode of Conduct

32. EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

In terms of the provisions of Section 92(3) of the Act read with the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014, an extract of the Annual Return MGT-7 of your Company for the
financial year ended 31st March, 2022 is available of website of company i.e. www.lccinfotech.in
33. LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS

The Company has not given any guarantee for loans taken by others from bank or financial institutions.

The loans and advances made by the Company are detailed in Note of the Annual financial
statements.

34. PUBLIC DEPOSITS

In terms of the provisions of Section 73 to 76 of the Act read with the relevant rules made thereunder,
your Company has not accepted any deposit from the public during the year under review, and as
such, no amount on account of principal or interest on public deposits were outstanding as on the
date of the balance sheet.

35. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The operation of the Company does not involve any activity relating to conservation of energy and
technology absorption and also there were no foreign exchange earnings or outgo. Thus, the
information on conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and
outgo stipulated under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, is not applicable to the Company during the year under review.

36. DISCLOSURE ON MANAGERIAL REMUNERATION & PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

The particulars of Managerial remuneration as stated in section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013
read with rules 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial personnel)
Rules, 2014 is annexed herewith is forming part of the Board’s Report as Annexure V.

The Company has not employed any individual whose remuneration falls within the purview of the
limits prescribed under the provisions of section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules
5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Amendment
Rules, 2016, as amended.
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37. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Consolidated Financial Statement pursuant to section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and
SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015, prepared in accordance
with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India, is attached herewith and forms part of the Annual Report.

38. OTHER DISCLOSURES
Your Company has not issued any shares with differential voting.
Your Company has not issued any sweat equity shares.

During the financial year ended March 31, 2022, no amount was transferred to the general
reserve.

Maintenance of cost records and requirement of cost audit as prescribed under the provisions
of Section 148 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

@ The Company’s Insider Trading Policy provides the framework for in dealing with securities of
the Company by the insider.

39. DISCLOSURES AS PER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION,
PROHIBITION AND REDRESS) ACT, 2013

The Company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment at workplace and has adopted a policy on
prevention, prohibition and redressal of sexual harassment at workplace in line with the provisions
of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013
and the rules framed thereunder. The Company has set up Internal Complaint Committee (ICC)
under Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act,
2013 along with its relevant Rules.

There was no compliant pending at the beginning of the FY2022. No complaints have been received
by the Committee during the FY2022.

40. HUMAN RESOURCES

Our employees are our core resource and the Company has continuously evolved policies to
strengthen its employee value proposition. The Company is constantly working on providing the
best working environment to its Human Resources with a view to inculcate leadership, autonomy
and towards this objective; your company spends large efforts on training. Your Company shall
always place all necessary emphasis on continuous development of its Human Resources.

41. TRANSFER OF UNPAID AND UNCLAIMED AMOUNTS TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND
PROTECTION FUND (IEPF)

Pursuant to the application provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the IEPF Authority
(Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016 (“the IEPF Rules”), all unpaid or unclaimed
dividends are required to be transferred by the Company to the IEPF, established by the Government
of India, after the completion of seven years. Further, according to the Rules, the shares on which
dividend has not been paid or claimed by the shareholders for seven consecutive years, also to be
transferred to the demat account of the IEPF Authority.

The Company has no unclaimed and unpaid dividend thus there is no corresponding shares due for
transfer as per the as per the requirement of the IEPF rules.

Q . Q9
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT: 2021-22
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS
Global economic

It is two years into the COVID-19 pandemic and the global community still confronts extreme
social and economic strain as the human toll rises and millions remain unemployed. Yet, even with
high uncertainty about the path of the pandemic, a way out of this health and economic crisis is
increasingly visible. Thanks to the ingenuity of the scientific community hundreds of millions of
people are being vaccinated and this is expected to power recoveries in many countries later this
year. Economies also continue to adapt to new ways of working despite reduced mobility, leading to
a stronger-than-anticipated rebound across regions. Additional fiscal support in large economies,
particularly the United States, has further improved the outlook.

WORLD ECONOMIC OUTLOOK UPDATE JANUARY 2022

GLOBAL ADVANCED EMERGING MARKET &
ECONOMY ECONOMIES DEVELOPING ECONOMIES
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As per the latest April 2022 World Economic Outlook (WEO) report, Global growth is projected to
slow from an estimated 6.1% in 2021 to 3.6% in 2022 and 2023. This is 0.8 and 0.2 percentage
points lower for 2022 and 2023 than projected in January. Beyond 2023, global growth is forecast
to decline to about 3.3% over the medium term. War-induced commodity price increases and
broadening price pressures have led to 2022 inflation projections of 5.7% in advanced economies
and 8.7% in emerging market and developing economies—1.8 and 2.8 percentage points higher
than projected last January.

Global growth prospects have weakened significantly amid the war in Ukraine. The World Economic
Situation and Prospects as of mid-2022 warned that the global economy may be on the cusp of a
new crisis, while still recovering from the pandemic. The war in Ukraine has upended the fragile
global recovery, triggering a devastating humanitarian crisis, pushing up food and commodity
prices, slowing growth globally and exacerbating inflationary pressures worldwide. Geopolitical
and economic uncertainties are dampening business confidence and investment and further
weakening short-term economic prospects.
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Figure 1
Growth of world gross product, 2015-2023
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The war in Ukraine and the sanctions against the Russian Federation have rattled commodity
markets, exacerbating supply-side shocks. In 2022, global trade growth is projected to slow down
markedly, after a strong rebound in 2021. The conflict has directly disrupted exports of crude oil,
natural gas, grains, fertilizer and metals, pushing up energy, food and commodity prices. The
Russian Federation and Ukraine are key suppliers of agricultural goods, accounting for 25 per cent
of global wheat exports, 16 per cent of corn exports and 56 per cent of exports of sunflower oil.

The world economy is facing substantial inflationary pressures. Global inflation is projected to
increase to 6.7% in 2022, twice the average of 2.9% recorded during 2010-2020. Headline inflation
in the United States has reached the highest level in four decades. In developing regions, inflation
is rising in Western Asia and Latin America and the Caribbean. Soaring food and energy prices are
having knock-on effects on the rest of the economy, as reflected in the significant rise in core
inflation in many economies as well.

Figure 2

Major commodity prices, January 2018 to March 2022
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Rising inflation is posing an additional challenge to an inclusive recovery as it disproportionally
affects low-income households that spend a much larger share of their income on food items. The
decline in real incomes is particularly pronounced in developing countries, where poverty is more
prevalent, wage growth remains constrained, and fiscal support measures to alleviate the impact
of higher oil and food prices on the vulnerable groups are more limited. Surging food inflation is
worsening food insecurity and pushing many below the poverty line as developing countries are
still struggling with economic shocks from the pandemic.

Figure 3
Global annual inflation, 2010-2022
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Indian economic

The last two years have been difficult for the world economy on account of the COVID-19 pandemic.
Repeated waves of infection, supply-chain disruptions and, more recently, inflation have created
particularly challenging times for policy-making. Faced with these challenges, the Government of
India’s immediate response was a bouquet of safety-nets to cushion the impact on vulnerable
sections of society and the business sector. It next pushed through a significant increase in capital
expenditure on infrastructure to build back medium-term demand as well as aggressively
implemented supply-side measures to prepare the economy for a sustained long-term expansion.

The Indian economy grew 8.7 per cent in 2021-22, with the gross domestic product (GDP) expanding
4.1% in the March quarter from a year ago. The GDP growth for 2021-22 takes the economy above
its pre-pandemic level and is an improvement after contracting 6.6% in 2020-21. But the January-
March quarter expansion was the weakest in the previous fiscal year. It is lesser than the 5.4%
growth seen during the December quarter of 2021-22. Incidentally, the economic growth during the
entire fiscal of 2021-22 has gradually spiralled downwards with each quarter.

In the first quarter of 2021-22, the economic growth had been a stupendous 20.1%, which however
was mainly due to the low base effect. In the second quarter it was 8.4%, while it was 5.4% in third
quarter. Now for the fourth quarter it has slid down to 4.1%. The GDP for 2021-22 though is lesser
than the 8.9% growth estimated by the Ministry of Statistics and Programme Implementation (MoSPI),
which releases the GDP data. The 8.7% growth also falls way short of the Reserve Bank of India’s
(RBI) estimation of 9.5% of GDP growth for 2021-22. Even the March quarter growth of 4.1% is
much lesser than RBI's projection for the period, which was estimated to be at 6.1%.

The overall value of global trade reached the value of $28.5 trillion in FY 2021, 25 per cent higher
than FY 2020. India’s exports of both goods and services have been good in 2021- 22. Despite
rising trade costs, merchandise exports have crossed the US$30 billion mark in eight consecutive
months in FY 2021-22. The reasons for rising trade costs are global supply constraints such as
fewer operational shipping vessels, exogenous events such as blockage of the Suez Canal and the
Covid-19 pandemic in China’s port city, Shenzen, etc.
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India has been consistently emphasizing on supply-side reforms, rather than a total reliance on
demand management. These reforms include deregulation of numerous sectors, simplification of
processes, removal of legacy issues like ‘retrospective tax’, privatization and production-linked
incentives, higher rural income, and the boost from pent-up household savings in addition to
continued emphasis on infrastructure spending by the government. Vaccination has played an
important role in minimizing loss of lives, boosting confidence in the economy towards the resumption
of activity and containing the sequential decline in output due to the second wave. Government
CAPEX is budgeted to grow to 2.9% of GDP in FY 2022-23 the highest in nearly two decades.
Private corporate investment is also expected to pick up in the second half of the year with
improvement in demand leading to increased manufacturing sector capacity utilization and rollout
of the Production-Linked Incentive Scheme

India has also been witnessing significant inflationary pressures similar to the global economy. The
outlook stands to be impacted given sustained inflation pressures in the next few quarters including
the impact of Russia — Ukraine conflict, quicker tightening of financial conditions with RBI's rate
hikes, high oil prices impacting current account balance and fiscal deficit and subsequent Covid-19
outbreaks. However the Indian economy is well prepared for any challenges that it might face in FY
2022-23.

Industry Overview

The Indian Education Sector leads the world in terms of addressable population in the age bracket
of 3 - 24 years making it the largest market in the world in volume terms.

The size and spread of the education sector across different segments can be understood from the
information stated below.

School Segment: The Indian Education Sector has nearly 260 million students and about 10 million
teachers across a total of 1.6 plus million schools, as per the UNIFIED District INFORMATION SYSTEM
FOR EDUCATION PLUS report of 2020-21. While the overall enrolment went up in FY2020-21, the
COVID-19 pandemic had a muted negative impact on the enrolments at the pre-primary and class
1 level with parents deferring the enrolment.

Higher Education: The country had 1,043 universities as of May 2022. The number of colleges in
India in 2021 was more than 45,000, which is a sizeable increase from about 40,000 in 2019 and
42,000+ in 2020. The standalone institutions, i.e., Diploma institutions governed by AICTE and
other bodies numbered more than 11,000 in the AISHE survey of FY2019-20.

Non-formal Sector: The country has a vibrant non-formal sector catering to the various needs
across Education, Training and Skilling segments.

Online Segment: Within the industry, the online education segment is estimated to grow by US$ 2.3
billion during the 2021-2025 period

Industry Structure and Analysis:

After a sharp decline in calendar year 2020, the global economy rebounded sharply in 2021. This
was driven by the success of vaccination drives, which have covered substantial parts of the
population globally, a pick-up in economic activity and international trade as severe lockdowns
were lifted, as well as supportive fiscal and monetary policies across major economies despite
multiple waves of the pandemic that disrupted economies from time to time. However, as the world
enters the third year of the pandemic, the world is going through a phase of exceptional uncertainty
caused by new variants of the virus, unprecedented supply chain bottlenecks leading to high inflation
in labor, food, and commodity prices, even as major economies are forced to roll back stimulus
measures, tighten money supply, and increase interest rates to counter the imbalances during the
previous two years.

Over the last two years, Covid-19 resulted in the compression of digital adoption expected over the
next several years into a few months. Businesses accelerated their digital transformation not only
to ensure continuity but also to take advantage of this trend. As economies emerge from lockdowns,
hybrid models are emerging as the new normal. Overall consumption of corporate training, which
had seen a sharp declining trend in FY21, stabilized during FY22. The prevailing economic uncertainty
may impact the recovery of spends in the near term and slow down decision-making. However,
increasing complexity, demand for new skills, and demand for greater accountability on spends are
expected to continue to drive companies to partner with specialist learning services providers to
achieve greater efficiency and effectiveness of spends.
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Company Operational and financial performance:

LCC is a leading Domestic Development Corporation that is engaged in building skilled human
capital and enhancing workforce talent on pan India basis. Set up in 1985 to help the nascent IT
industry overcome its human resource challenges, the Company ranks among the country’s leading
training companies today. At present LCC offers training and development solutions to enterprises
and individuals. LCC is engaged in building skilled human capital and in enhancing workforce talent
across the country. When it comes to Skills and Careers, the IT markets continue to offer significant
growth opportunities for LCC. With our new products, business models, and the strengthened
leadership team, LCC is well positioned to draw graduates seeking to improve their employability
for jobs in these industries. LCC will continue to increase its focus on Deep Skilling as compared to
entry level skills. With computers and IT all around us, the need to skilled computer hardware and
networking professionals has been ever growing. LCC offers just the right set of programs for
students at any stage. LCC will continue to persevere and deliver on promises made to shareowners
as well as external and internal customers.

Two years ago, as a response to the pandemic restrictions, your Company was swift in moving its
complete operations online, including all the student lifecycle processes. This Digital Pivot was key
to protecting our business and to survive during the tough COVID-19 related restrictions.

This has been a landmark year, where despite being affected for nearly more than 6 months by
multiple waves of the COVID-19 pandemic, your Company has delivered satisfactory financial
results. Our financial performance, balance sheet quality and financial ratios have seen strong
improvements after a heavy impact from the pandemic in FY2020-21. In the reported financial
year, we've also achieved some major operational milestones like empanelment to conduct residential
project named " Deen Dayal Upadhya Grameen Kausal Yojana- DDUGKY-UP under Uttar Pradesh
Skill Development Mission.

This has been a landmark year, where despite being affected for nearly more than 6 months by
multiple waves of the COVID-19 pandemic, your Company has delivered satisfactory financial
results. Our financial performance, balance sheet quality and financial ratios have seen strong
improvements after a heavy impact from the pandemic in FY2020-21. In the reported financial
year, we've also achieved some major operational milestones like empanelment to conduct residential
project named " Deen Dayal Upadhya Grameen Kausal Yojana- DDUGKY-UP under Uttar Pradesh
Skill Development Mission.

The performance of your Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2022, is summarized
below:

(Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars Standalone Consolidated
2020-2112021-22 |2020-21
Profit/(Loss) before depreciation and Tax Expenses (A)| (73.61)](140.82)| (73.72) |(140.92)
Less- Depreciation and amortization Expenses (B) (4.98) (8.86) (4.98) (8.68)
Profit/(Loss) before Tax (A-B) (78.59)| (149.5) (78.7) | (149.6)
Less-Tax Expenses for the year (C) -
Less- Deferred tax expenses for the year (D) -

Profit/(Loss) after Taxation (A-B)-(C)-(D) (I) (78.59)| (149.5) (78.7) | (149.6)
Less-Transfer to reserve (E) -

Add-Amount Brought Forward (II) (785.49)|(635.99) |(821.53) [(671.53)
Total (I-II) (864.08)(785.49)|(900.23) [(821.13)

Less- Deferred Tax (F) -
Balance carried forward to Balance Sheet (I-II)-(F) (864.08)|(785.49)((900.23) |(821.13)
Risks, Challenges and Concerns

In addition to the general macro risks such as political risk economic risk, regulatory risk, currency
risk, etc., LCC also faces some specific business risks as an education company operating with a
specific business model. A few of such major risks are as follows:

1. Business Partner Risk: The Company is dependent on Franchisees/ Business Partners for
business generation, but they are the face of LCC for the student. Hence, the capabilities,
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motivation and financial viability of the Franchisee/ Business Partner along with their compliance
to processes and directions mandated by the Company are critical to their and LCC continued
success.

2. Demand Risk: Technological and market evolution keep changing the nature and scale of skill
requirements in the verticals serviced by LCC. Such changes can render the courses offered
by the Company obsolete. In addition, employment demand is also driven by the economic
prospects of the specific vertical in each country.

3. Execution Risk: Projects, whether of training or assessments, are a significant source of income
for the Company. Delivering committed results in time, with quality and within budgeted costs
is critical for the success of the Company. In the event of a failure of any kind, it may lead to
loss of business, imposition of penalties, loss of reputation, etc. for the Company. The Company
has adopted various mitigation approaches for all types of risks to ensure effective monitoring
and resolution.

Opportunities and Threats
Opportunities

The high unemployment rate and mass-scale unemployability offer a huge opportunity for a skilling
company such as LCC. The Company is currently catering employability by various market survey
to create more employability opportunity. The unemployment rate in India was 7.6% in March 2022
as per data released by the Centre for Monitoring Indian Economy (CMIE). This has reduced from
the previous year’s levels of 11.8% in May 2021, however, on an absolute basis it was still high, and
this decline hides the effects of low-quality employment in a developing country like India. This
scenario means the Company’s courses have a ready and receptive market especially because it
offers to make students a career in some of the most sought after industries such as Retails,
Beauty & Styling, Aviation, Hospitality & Retail, and Information Technology.

Apart from the clear issues of unemployment and unemployability, most developing countries also
have a dearth of quality and capacity in formal education, especially in the most sought-after
verticals. This translates into a significant opportunity for LCC’s courses, which can meet this need.
At current LCC is present more than 10 states that offer a sizeable universe of opportunities for the
Company’s courses.

Threats

The negative impact of the changes in Government regulation is a constant threat to the Company’s
business. For e.g., multiple exits and Vocationalization of higher education envisaged in the new
structure under NEP 2020 may shift the market away from the Company’s offerings. Entry of
foreign players in the sector allowed by the NEP can be a long-term threat to the Company.

IT sector has become a major threat with competition from players offering formal undergraduate
and graduate level programs online in addition to the direct competition from players in the same
space as the Company.

Training & Skill Development:

As the economy is gradually starting to open up, various government funded schemes are being
restarted along with aggressive funding and larger budgetary allocations are being witnessed. LCC
has also initiated a fresh large-scale project in collaboration with the Ministry of Rural Development
by establishing a state-of-the-art skill development project under the DDUGKY project in Uttar
Pradesh. Along with this we are also in talks with Jharkhand government agencies to either restart
or collaborate for new skill development initiatives across states and positively hope to grab this
opportunity soon.

Internal Control Systems:

The Company has a clear organizational hierarchy, documented and published policies, a well-
defined authority matrix and adequate internal controls to manage its business operations. The
Company invests time and resources to continuously upgrade its internal control systems. The
Company has appointed 3rd party internal auditors to conduct regular internal audits of all its
business operations and holds regular reviews by management to ensure compliance with policies,
guidelines and business plans.

Future Prospects:

Though this year has been extremely challenging due to multiple Covid-19 wave, we are not seeing
a sudden surge in both government and private student participation. As we go through this economic
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slowdown and consolidation phase, there seems to be concerns about the coming times. However
as education and skill development will always remain a key growth contributor, the sector will
once again witness substantial growth in the coming times.

Human Resources:

LCC has implemented innovative practices and invested in best-in-class processes to develop an
enabling environment for its workforce. LCC’s talent pool is the key ingredient to its success as an
Education and Training organization. The people and processes at the Company are geared toward
increasing workforce productivity. The Company on an ongoing basis conducts events, employee
engagement activities, and collaborative training programs to succeed in having an engaged and
motivated workforce.

Cautionary Statement

Statements in this Management Discussion and Analysis report detailing the Company’s objectives,
projections, estimates, expectations or predictions may be “forward looking statements” within the
meaning of applicable securities laws and regulations. Actual results could differ materially from
those expressed or implied. Important factors that could make a difference to the Company’s
operations include global and Indian demand supply conditions, raw material prices, finished
goods prices, cyclical demand and pricing in the Company’s products and their principal markets,
changes in Government regulations, tax regimes, economic developments within India and the
countries with which the Company conducts business and other factors such as litigation and / or
labor negotiations.
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ANNEXURE-I
FORM MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2022
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

L C C Infotech Limited

CIN: L72200WB1985PLC073196
P- 16, C.I.T. Road, P S Entally
Kolkata - 700 014

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by L C C Infotech Limited (hereinafter referred as ‘the
Company’). The Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis
for evaluating the corporate conducts / statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed
and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company,
its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, I hereby
report that in my opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year
ended on March 31, 2022, (‘Audit Period’) complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder
and also that the Company has proper Board processes and compliance mechanism in place to the
extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2022 according to the
provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Rules made thereunder;
(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the Rules made thereunder;
(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made thereunder to
the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, External Commercial Borrowing;

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board
of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’) to the extent applicable to the Company:

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011;

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992;

c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2009; Not applicable during the year under review

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee
Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999; Not applicable during the year under review

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations,
2008; Not applicable during the year under review

f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents)
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

g) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009;
Not applicable during the year under review ; and

i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998; Not
applicable during the year under review
I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of Secretarial Standards issued by
The Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI).

In respect of listing agreement entered into by the Company with Bombay Stock Exchange &
National Stock Exchange, I report that the Company has, during the period under review, generally
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complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, standards etc. mentioned
above.

The Board of Directors of the Company is constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors,
Women Directors and the Independent Directors. There is no change in the composition of the
Board of Directors during the period under review.

I further report that, the compliance by the Company of applicable financial laws like direct &
indirect tax laws and maintenance of financial records and books of accounts has not been reviewed
in this audit since the same has been subject to review by statutory financial audit and other
designated professionals.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes
on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining
further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful
participation at the meeting.

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting member’s views are captured and recorded
as part of the minutes.

All decisions of the Board and Committee meetings were carried with requisite majority;

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate
with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable
laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

I further report that during the audit period the there is no major bearing in the Company’s affairs.

I have relied in the information/record produced by the company during the course of my audit and
reporting is limited to that extent only.

M Shahnawaz& Associates
Company Secretaries
Firm Regn. No: S2015WB331500

CS Md. Shahnawaz
Proprietor

Membership No.: 21427

CP No.: 15076

UDIN: A021427D000408297

Place: Kolkata
Date: May 27, 2022
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ANNEXURE-III
FORM AOC-1

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of Subsidiaries /associate
companies/joint ventures

Part “A”: Subsidiaries
(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Rs.)
1. Sl No. : 1
2. Name of the subsidiary : eLCC Info.Com Limited

3. Reporting period for the subsidiary
concerned, if different from the
holding company’s reporting period : Not Applicable

4. Reporting Currency and Exchange
rate as on the last date of the relevant financial

year in the case of foreign subsidiaries : Not Applicable
5. Share Capital : Rs.1,84,20,000
6. Reserves & Surplus : Rs.( 3575000)
7. Total Assets : Rs.14877000
8. Total Liabilities : Rs.32000/-
9. Investments : Rs. 0
10. Turnover : Rs.0
11. Profit before taxation Rs (11000)
12. Provision for taxation : 0
13. Profit after taxation : Rs (11000)
14. Proposed Dividend : NIL
15. %of shareholding : 99.98%

Notes: The following information shall be furnished at the end of the statement:

1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations: NA

2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year.: NA
For and on behalf of the Board

s/d s/d s/d
- | ‘/
Jhts AR Tk 2 P
Kirti Lakhotia Sidharth Lakhotia Pratik Lakhotia
Managing Dir. WTD WTD
DIN: 00057357 DIN: 00057511 DIN: 00057015

Place : Kolkata
Date: 27th May 2022
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Annexure IV
FORM NO. AOC -2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with
related parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including
certain arms length transaction under third proviso thereto.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis.: Nil
2. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis.

SL. No. Particulars Details
1 Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship Sidharth Lakhotia,-WTD
2 Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction Loan & Advance received
3 Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction Repayable on demand
4 Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or
transaction including the value, if any Loan from directors/

promoters repayable
on demand of Rs. 3103000

5 Date of approval by the Board 30-06-2021
6 Amount paid as advances, if any Nil
s/d s/d
Joote aRZoobm /Q//
Place: Kolkata Kirti Lakhotia Sidharth Lakhotia
Date: 27th May 2022 Managing Director WTD
DIN: 00057357 DIN: 00057511
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DISCLOSURE UNDER SECTION 197(12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH RULE
5(1) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSON-
NEL) AMENDMENT RULES, 2016

i. The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer and Company
Secretary during the financial year 2021-22, ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the
median remuneration of the employees of the Company for the financial year 2022

Name of the Director/ | Designation Ratio of the remuneration Percentage increase
CEO/CFO/ of each director to the median in Remuneration
Company Secretary/ remuneration of the employees | during 2021-22
Manager of the Company for the

financial year 2021-22

Mrs. Kirti Lakhotia Managing 3 times No increase in
Director remuneration
during the 2021-22
Mr. Sidharth Lakhotia WTD & CEO 4.65 times 333% increase in

remuneration
during the 2021-22
Mr. Pratik Lakhotia WTD & CFO 1.52 times No increase in
remuneration
during the 2021-22
Smriti Suhasaria Company 0.91 No increase in
Secretary remuneration
during the 2021-22

ii. The median remuneration of employees of the Company during the financial year was Rs.3.96
lacs

iii. During the financial year there was no increase in the median remuneration of employee.

iv. There were 25 permanent employees on the rolls of the Company as on 31st March, 2022.

v. Average percentage increase made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial
personnel in the last financial year i.e. 2021-22 was 400.1% ( As there were new recruitment
during the year) whereas there is increase in managerial remuneration for the same financial
year.

vi. It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid is as per the Remuneration Policy for Directors,
Key Managerial Personnel and other Employees.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES PURSUANT TO SECTION 197(12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT,

2013 READ WITH RULE 5 (2) and 5(3) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMU-

NERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) AMENDMENT RULES, 2016

It is hereby affirmed that:

(i) No employee was in receipt of remuneration for the year in aggregate of more than Rs. 1.02
Crores (if employed throughout the financial year);

(ii) No employee was in receipt of remuneration for any part of the year at a rate which in aggregate
was more than Rs. 8.5 lacs per month (if employed for a part of the financial year);
(iii) 3 of employees was in receipt of remuneration in excess of that drawn by the Whole-time

Director or Manager however they have not holds by himself or along with his spouse and
dependent children any equity shares of the Company.
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Report on Corporate Governance as prescribed by the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“the Listing Regulations”) is
given below:

Company’s philosophy on Corporate Governance:

Corporate governance refers to the way in which a company is directed, administered, and controlled
and concerns the relationships among various internal and external stakeholders. Corporate
governance also provides the structure through which the objectives of a company are set and the
means of attaining those objectives and monitoring performance are determined.

At LCC Infotech Limited, we believe good corporate governance, which results in corporate excellence
by practicing and attaining maximum level of transparency, disclosures accountability and equity in
all its interaction with its shareholders. Further we believe that effective corporate governance
must balance individual interest with corporate goals and operate within accepted norms of
proprietary, equity, fair play and sense of justice.

In terms of the Listing Regulations, the details of compliance are as follows:
1. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Your Company’s Board consists of 6 (Six) Directors, which comprises of 3 (Three) Executive Director
and 3 (Three) Independent Directors. The details of the members of the Board of Directors of the
Company including outside directorships and committee positions are as follows:

Name of Category of Directorship of committee(s) membership held other
Directors Directors other companies# Public Limited Company (ies) $
Unlisted Listing Chairman Member

Mrs. Kirti Managing 4 None Nil Nil
Lakhotia*(MD) Director

(Executive

Director)
Mr. Sidharth 4 None Nil Nil
Lakhotia*(CEO) CEO &

Wholetime

Director

(Executive

Director)
Mr. Pratik CFO 6 None Nil Nil
Lakhotia*(CFO) CFO &

Wholetime

Director

(Executive

Director)
Mr. Kamaljit Independent Nil None Nil Nil
Singh Director
Mr. Rajat Independent 3 None Nil Nil
Sharma Director
Mr. Mayur P Independent 2 None Nil Nil
Shah Director

* Promoters of the company.
# Excludes Directorship in Foreign Companies,
$ Only Audit Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee have been considered.

As per declarations received from the Directors, as on 31 March 2022, none of the Directors of the
Company are related to each other in terms of Section 2(77) of the Act, except Mrs. Kirti Lakhotia
being mother of Mr. Sidharth Lakhotia and Mr. Pratik Lakhotia.

Each Director informs the Company on an annual basis about the Board and Board Committee
positions him/her in other companies including Chairmanships, and notifies the changes that occurred
therein during the term of their directorship in the Company. None of the Directors on the Board is
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a Member of more than 10 Committees and Chairman of more than 5 Committees across all the
companies in which they are a Director.

Directors’ Shareholding:

The shareholding of directors as on March 31, 2022 are as under:

Name of Directors

Mrs. Kirti Lakhotia
Mr. Sidharth Lakhotia
Mr. Pratik Lakhotia
Mr. Kamaljit Singh
Mr. Rajat Sharma
Mr. Mayur P Shah

Category of Directors No. of Shares held
Executive Director 3,62,21,235
Executive Director 71,49,674
Executive Director 75,13,205

Independent Director Nil
Independent Director NIL
Independent Director NIL

Skills / Expertise / Competencies of the Board of Directors:

The following is the list of Skills / Expertise / Competencies identified by the Board of Directors as
required by the amended SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015; in the context of the Company’s business
and that the said skills are available with the Board Members:

Skills

Description

Leadership

Board experience &
governance

Financial

Technical / Professional
Skills

Behavioral skills:

Compliance

Setting goals and with understanding of leading change,
practicalManagement of people, products, strategy and industry
networking.

Board having experience in working on boards of listed public
company, involved in governance, leading board committees,
addressing shareholder concerns

Proficiency in understanding financial reporting, making capital
allocation decisions, challenging and help optimise complex financial
transactions, help ensure long-term financial health of the company

The company is primarily in the technology business with learning
and workforce talent enhancement as main focus areas.

With the continuous rapid changes in technology and customer
behaviour, the company needs to be constantly striving for new
products/services to be introduced into markets. The ability for
innovation and demonstrating a culture of entrepreneurship is
necessary right from the board level compliancemanagement

With risks of doing in the environment increasing and the statutory
compliance needs getting tighter worldwide, board needs to be
proficient in directing checks & balances, internal controls, compliances
and audit mechanisms.

Board Meetings held during the year:

The Meetings of the Board are conveyed by giving appropriate advance notice after seeking approval
of the Chairman of the Board. In case of exigencies or urgency resolutions are also passed by way
of circulation. The intervening gap between the two meetings was within the period prescribed
under the Companies Act, 2013, including such extended period as allowed by MCA considering

Covid-19.
The details of the Board meetings held during the year are as under:
Sr. No. Board Strength No. of Directors
Present

1 08.06.2021 6 6
2 30.06.2021 6 6
3 12.08.2021 6 6
4 12.11.2021 6 6
5 28.01.2022 6 6
6 31.03.2022 6 6
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The details of attendance of each Director at the Board meetings and the last Annual General
Meeting AGM) are as follows:

Name of Director No. of Board Meetings Attended Last AGM
Held Attended
Mrs. Kirti Lakhotia(MD) 6 6 Yes
Mr. Sidharth Lakhotia(WTD) 6 6 Yes
Mr. Pratik Lakhotia (WTD) 6 6 Yes
Mr. Kamaljit Singh 6 6 Yes
Mr. Rajat Sharma 6 6 Yes
Mr. Mayur P Shah 6 6 Yes

Other provisions as to Board and Committee:

To maintain good governance in company for benefits of investors and other concerned at large,
Board is discharging its essential role in ensuring timely disclosure to the stock exchanges. The
Directors are having expertise in their respective functional areas and bring a wide range of skills
and experience to the Board. Members of the Board have complete freedom to express their views
on agenda items and can discuss any matter at the meeting with the permission of the Chairman.
The Board periodically reviews all the relevant information, as required in Listing Regulations. The
Board provides exercises appropriate control to ensure that your Company is managed in a manner
that fulfils stakeholder’s objective. In addition to the quarterly meetings, the Board also meets to
address specific needs and business requirement of your Company.

Code of Conduct

The Board of Directors has laid down a Code of Conduct (“the Code”) for all Board members and
senior management personnel of your Company. The Code is posted on your Company’s website
at www.lccinfotech.co.in. All Board members and senior management personnel have confirmed
compliance with the Code. A declaration to that effect signed by the Managing Director is attached
and forms part of this Report.

Committees of the Board:

In compliance with rules presently the Company has three committees i.e. Audit Committee,
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee. All the
decisions pertaining to the constitution of the Committees, appointment of members, and fixing of
terms of reference for committee members are taken by the Board of Directors. Details on the role
and composition of these committees, including the number of meetings held during the financial
year and the related attendance, are provided hereinafter.

Performance Evaluation of the Board and its Members:

The performance evaluation of individual Directors including Chairman of the Board was done in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and listing regulation and SEBI guidelines
note on performance evaluation and also based on the structured questionnaire. The Directors
expressed their satisfaction with the evaluation process.

Familiarization Programme:

The Company familiarizes its Independent Directors with their roles, rights, responsibilities in the
Company, nature of the industry in which the Company operates, business model of the Company,
etc., through a programme in compliance of Listing Regulations.

Periodic presentations are made by senior management on business and performance updates of
the Company, business risk and its mitigation strategy. The Company has uploaded its
Familiarization Programme for Independent Directors on the website of the Company at
www.mldalmiagroup.com.

The details of familiarization programmes imparted to Independent Directors is available on
www.lccinfotech.in.

Independent Directors meeting:

A meeting of the Independent Directors was held on 31-03-2022, inter alia, to discuss Company’s
operations, evaluation of the performance of Non- Independent Directors, the Board as a whole,
evaluation of the performance of the Chairman and executive directors, taking into account the
Views of the Executive and Non-Executive Directors and the evaluation of the quality, content and
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timelines of flow of Information between the management and the Board that is necessary for the
Board to effectively and reasonably perform its duties

Declaration of Independence:

In terms of Regulation 25(8) of SEBI Listing Regulations, the Company has received declarations
on the criteria of Independence as prescribed in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013,
Regulation 16 (1) (b) and Regulation 25(8) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, from all the
Independent Directors of the Company as on 31st March, 2020. They have also registered
themselves in the databank with the Institute of Corporate Affairs of India as an Independent
Director as per Rule 6(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Qualifications of Directors) Rules,
2014.

Based on the declarations received from the Independent Directors, the Board confirms that the
Independent Directors fulfil the conditions specified in Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013
and as mentioned under Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI Listing Regulations and that they are
independent of the management. SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 and are Independent of the
Management.

Term of Board Membership

The Board, on the recommendations of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, considers
the appointment and re-appointment of Directors.

Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013, provides that an Independent Director can be appointed
for a term of up to five consecutive years on the Board of a Company and shall be eligible for re-
appointment on passing of a special resolution by the shareholders of the Company. The Independent
Directors shall not retire by rotation.

As per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, one-third of the Board members other than

Independent Directors, who are subject to retire by rotation, retire every year; and approval of
shareholders is sought for the re-appointment of such retiring members, if eligible.

Executive Directors are appointed by shareholders for a maximum period of 3 years at a time, and
are eligible for re-appointment upon completion of the term. Their appointments / re-appointments
are subsequently approved by the shareholders.

Mr. Sidharth Lakhotia, Whole-time Director and CEO, (DIN:00057511) retires by rotation at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting, and being eligible, seeks re-appointment.

Further, Mr. Pratik Lakhotia (DIN: 00057015), whose existing term of office as Whole-time Director
& CFO will expire on December 31, 2022, is proposed to be re-appointed for a further period of 3
years w.e.f. January 1, 2023 till December 31, 2025, keeping in view his performance, vast expertise
and knowledge, and to create enduring guidance for the Board.

Information given to the Board

The Company provides the following information, inter alia, to the Board and Board-level Committees,
either as part of the agenda papers in advance of the meetings or by way of presentations and
discussion material during the meetings:

~ Annual operating plans and budgets and any updates.

~ Capital budgets and any updates.

~ Quarterly results for the listed entity and its operating divisions or business segments.
~ Minutes of meetings of audit committee and other committees of the board of directors.

~ The information on recruitment and remuneration of senior officers just below the level of
board of directors, including the appointment or removal of the Chief Financial Officer and the
Company Secretary.

~ Show cause, demand, prosecution notices and penalty notices, which are materially important.
~ Fatal or serious accidents, dangerous occurrences, any material effluent or pollution problems.

~ Any material default in financial obligations to and by the listed entity, or substantial non-
payment for goods sold by the listed entity.

~ Any issue, which involves possible public or product liability claims of substantial nature, including
any judgment or order which, may have passed structures on the conduct of the listed entity
or taken adverse view regarding another enterprise that may have negative implications on
the listed entity.
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~ Details of any joint venture or collaboration agreement.

~ Transactions that involve substantial payment towards goodwill, brand equity, or intellectual
property.

~ Significant labour problems and their proposed solutions. Any significant development in Human
Resources/Industrial Relations front like signing of wage agreement, implementation of Voluntary
Retirement Scheme etc.

~ Sale of investments, subsidiaries, assets which are material in nature and not in the normal
course of business.

~ Quarterly details of foreign exchange exposures and the steps taken by management to limit
the risks of adverse exchange rate movement, if material.

~ Non-compliance of any regulatory, statutory or listing requirements and shareholders service
such as non-payment of dividend, delay in share transfer etc.

Director’'s Remuneration
The Company has a policy for the remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMPs),
Senior Management Personnel (SMPs) and other employees. The remuneration of the Directors is
based on the Company’s size, presence, its economic and financial position, compensation paid by
other companies, the qualification of the appointee(s), their experience, past performance and
other relevant factors.

The Nomination and Remuneration policy is available on www.lccinfotech.in

The Executive Directors of the Company are appointed by shareholders’ resolution for a period of
three years. No severance fees are payable to the Executive Directors. All components of
remuneration to the Executive Directors are fixed and are in line with the Company’s policies.

The Non-Executive Directors are not entitled to any remuneration including sitting fee for attending
meetings of the Board and its Committees as approved by the Board.
Details of the remuneration paid to the directors of the Company for the year ended 31st March
2022 is given below:

(In Rs.)

Name Fixed Component Performance Sitting Total
linked payment fees Remuneration

Salary | Allowances | Contribution

& to Provident
Perquisites Fund and
othr Fund
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Kirti Lakhotia* - - - _ _ _
Sidharth Lakhotia 7,98,400 - - - - 7,98,400
Pratik Lakhotia* - - - - _ _
Kamaljit Singh” - - - - - _
Rajat Sharma~n - - - - _ _
Mayur P Shah~ - - - - _ _

* Waived the remuneration for the year 2021-22 considering the financial challenges faced by the
Company.

~ No sitting fee is payable to Non-Executive Directors for attending meetings of the Board and its
Committees.

Further no shares / Convertible Instruments held by Non-Executive Directors as on 31.03.2022.
Other terms of appointments are as under:

Service Contract : Contractual
Notice Period : 3 months by either party
Severance fee : Nil
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Performance Evaluation Criteria for Independent Directors

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee approved an evaluation policy which provides for
the evaluation of the Board, the Committees of the Board and individual directors including the
Chairman of the Board. The policy provides for the evaluation to be carried out on an annual basis.
The evaluation process is to focus on the functioning of the Board and its Committees, their
composition, experience and competencies, attendance and other related issues with a view to
initiate such action plan to improve their overall performance.

Prevention of Insider Trading

As per Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015,
your Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for trading in listed securities of your Company
(“the Insider Code”). The Insider Code aims at preserving and preventing misuse of unpublished
price sensitive information. All Directors, Designated Employees and Connected Persons of your
Company are covered under the Insider Code, which provides inter alia for periodical disclosures
and obtaining pre-clearances for trading in Securities of your Company by the Directors, Designated
Employees and Connected Persons of your Company.

2. Audit Committee:
Composition, meetings, attendance at the Audit Committee meeting

The Audit Committee of the Board comprises three Non-Executive Independent Directors. The
members of the Audit Committee are financially literate. The composition of the Audit Committee
complies with the requirements of Section 177 of the Act and Regulation 18 of the Listing Regulations.

The Composition of the committee and attendance of the audit committee members at its meetings
during the year are as follows:

Particulars Designation |[30.06.2021 12.08.2021(12.11.2021 | 28.01.2022
Mr. Kamaljit Singh Chairman Yes Yes Yes Yes
Mr. Rajat Shrma* Member Yes Yes Yes Yes
Mr. Mayur P Shah* Member Yes Yes Yes Yes

Miss. Smriti Suhasaria, Company Secretary acts as secretary to the committee.

All the members of the committee are eminent in their respective fields and financially literate with
sufficient accounting and financial management expertise.

The general powers and tasks performed by the Audit Committee, inter-alia, includes:

(i) Appointment / Reappointment and terms there of the statutory auditors.

(ii) Reviewing the financial reporting process of the quarterly, half-yearly and Yearly financial
statements and the Auditors’ Reports.

(iii) Compliance with Accounting standards and other regulatory and legal requirements concerning
financial statements.

(iv) Overview of the company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of it's financial
statements.

(v) To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower mechanism.

(vi) Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope
of audit as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern.

(vii) Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up there on.

(viii) To grant approval for related party transactions which are in the ordinary course of business
and on an arms’ length pricing basis and to review and approve such transactions subject to
the approval of the Board.

3. Nomination and Remuneration Committee:

Composition, meetings, attendance at the Nomination and Remuneration Committee meeting

The Committee comprises of 3 non-executive independent directors namely Mr. Kamaljit Singh, Mr.

Rajat Sharma, and Mr. Mayur P Shah as on March 31, 2022. Mr. Kamaljit Singh is the Chairman of
the Committee.

During the year under review the committee met on 10.06.2021, 30.06.2021 and 28.01.2022 and
the meetings were attended by Mr. Kamaljit Singh (Chairman of the Committee), Mr. Rajat Sharma
(Member) and Mr. Mayur P Shah (Member).
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The Role of committee
The committee authorized to:

~ set the level and composition of remuneration which is reasonable and sufficient to attract,
retain and motivate Directors and Senior Management of the quality required to run your
Company successfully;

~ set the relationship of remuneration to performance;

~ check whether the remuneration provided to Directors and Senior Management reflecting short
and long-term performance objectives appropriate to the working of your Company and its
goals;

~ formulate appropriate policies, institute processes which enable the identification of individuals
who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed in Senior Management and
recommend the same to the Board;

~ review and implement succession and development plans for Managing Director, Executive
Directors and Senior Management;

~ Formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of
Directors.

4. Stakeholders Relationship Committee
Composition, meetings, attendance at the Stakeholders Relationship Committee meeting

A Stakeholder Relationship Committee has been constituted at the Board level, under the
Chairmanship of a Non-Executive Independent Director. The Committee comprises of 2 (two) Non-
Executive Independent Director and 1 (one) executive Director, namely, Mr. Kamaljit Singh, Mr.
Rajat Sharma, and Mr. Sidharth Lakhotia as on March 31, 2022. Mr. Kamaljit Singh is the Chairman
of the Committee.

The Committee met once during the year on 01.04.2021, 05.07.2021, 04.10.2021 and 03.01.2022
which was duly attended by all the committee members.

Compliance officer: Miss Smriti Suhasaria act as compliance officer of the company. PH: 033-
35441401 , Email: Corporate@lccinfotech.co.in

Role of Committee:
~ issue transfer/transmission of shares/debentures
~ issue of duplicate share certificates for shares/debentures

~ issue new certificates against subdivision of shares, renewal, split or consolidation of share
certificates / certificates relating to other securities;

~ jssue and allot right shares / bonus shares pursuant to a Rights Issue / Bonus Issue made by
the Company, subject to such approvals as may be required;

~ delay in transfer of shares

~ Review of Share dematerialization and rematerialization.

~ Monitoring the expeditious redressal of Investor Grievances.

~ Monitoring the performance of company’s Registrar & Transfer Agent.
~ Non receipt of annual report

~ All other matters related to the shares.

During the year, one complaint was received from shareholder, and that was attended and resolved
accordingly. Following are the other details during the year related with share transfer, transmission;
dematerialization, rematerialisation etc. are as under:

~ Number of pending shares transfer as at 31.03.2022 :None
~ Number of share transfer cases received during the year :0
~ Number of share transmission received during the yea :0
~ Number of shares dematerialized during the year :0
~ Number of shares rematerialized during the year :None

5. Whistleblower Policy & Vigil Mechanism

The Company has adopted a Whistle Blower Policy, to provide a formal mechanism to the Directors
and employees to report their concerns about unethical behaviour, actual or suspected fraud or
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violation of the Company’s Code of Conduct or ethics policy. The Policy provides for adequate
safeguards against victimization of employees who avail of the mechanism and also provides for
direct access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee. It is affirmed that no personnel of the
Company has been denied access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee.

6. Related Party Transactions

All related party transactions entered into during the financial year were on an arm’s length basis
and in the ordinary course of the business. There were no material transactions with any related
party as defined under the act and listing regulations. All related party transactions have prior
approval of the Audit Committee and are reviewed by Audit Committee on Quarterly. The same is
posted on your Company’s website at www.Iccinfotech.in

7. Management Discussion And Analysis

A separate chapter on the ‘Management Discussion and Analysis’ is included in this annual report,
constitutes a part of this report.

8. Internal Control Systems

The Company has both external and internal audit systems in place. Auditors have access to all
records and information of the Company. The Board recognizes the work of the auditors as an
independent check on the information received from the management on the operations and
performance of the Company. The Board and the management periodically review the findings and
recommendations of the statutory and internal auditors and takes corrective actions whenever
necessary.

9. Subsidiary Company
Your Company does not have any material unlisted Indian subsidiary company hence, is not required
to nominate an Independent Director of the Company on the Board of any subsidiary.
Your Company has only one subsidiary company. The accounts of the subsidiary is consolidated
with the accounts of the Company and the same is included in board report.
10. Disclosures
@ Compliance with Accounting Standards
In view of the management, all applicable accounting standards and provision of companies
act 2013 are being followed for preparation of financial statements
@ Details of non-compliance(s) by the company
There was a delay in filing of Annual Report with the stock exchanges for which NSE and BSE
has imposed a penalty of Rs.7,000/- each. The same was paid by the Company. Except this,
no penalties have been imposed or strictures have been issued by SEBI, Stock Exchanges or

any Statutory Authorities on matters relating to Capital Markets during the last three years
against the non-compliance relating to the matter aforesaid.

@ Management

~ The management of the Company develops and implements policies, procedures and practices
that attempt to translate the Company’s core purpose and mission into reality. The management
also identifies, measures, monitors and minimizes risk factors in the business and ensures
safe, sound and efficient operation. These are internally supervised and monitored by CEO
and the CFO.

~ The Management Discussion and Analysis forms part of the Annual Report and are in accordance
with the requirements of the Listing Regulations.

~ No material transaction has been entered into by your Company with its related parties that
may have a potential conflict with interests of your Company.
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@ General Body Meetings:
~ The last three Annual General Meetings of the Company was held as under:

2018-19 Bharatiya Bhasha Parisad, 28.09.2019 11.00 AM
36A Shakespeare Sarani,
Kolkata- 700 017

2019-20 Virtual Meeting /VCfrom 30.09.2020 11.00AM
Corporate Office
2/5A, Sarat Bose Road,
Kolkata700020

2020-21 Virtual Meeting /VCfrom 28.09.2021 11.00AM
Corporate Office
2/5A, Sarat Bose Road,
Kolkata700020

* No Extra Ordinary General meeting was held in last three years.

* 1 Special Resolutions was passed in last Annual general Meeting for increment of salary of
CEO of the company

@ Resolution(s) passed through Postal Ballot

No resolution was pass through postal ballot during the financial year 2021-22.

There is no proposal to conduct postal ballot for any matter in the ensuing Annual Meeting.
@ General Shareholder Information
Virtual Annual General Meeting: Thursday, 29th September 2021 at 11.30 A.M.

* The company has not declared any dividend during the year 2021-22. Further no dividend is
proposed at the ensuing AGM.

* Book Closure date: 23 September 2022 to 29th September 2022 (both days inclusive).Listing
Details: Your Company’s shares are listed at:

Name of Exchange Stock Code ISIN

1. Bombay Stock Exchange Limited 532019 INE938A01021
Floor 25, P. J. Towers, Dalal Street,
Mumbai- 400001

2. National Stock Exchange of India Limited LCCINFOTEC INE9S38A01021
Exchange Plaza, Bandra Curla Complex,
Bandra (E), Mumbai- 400005

*

@ Means of communication

e The notices and official press releases, are posted on our website, at https:// www.lIccinfortach.in.
In light of difficulties posed by the COVID-19 pandemic, SEBI vide various circulars relaxed
the requirement of publishing financial results in the newspapers. However, the Company
ensured publishing the financial results for the benefit of the stakeholders. The quarterly/
annual results are generally published in at least one English language national daily newspaper
circulating in the whole or substantially the whole of India (Financial Express) and in one
regional daily newspaper circulating in West Bengal (Arthik Lipi).

e Quarterly and annual financial statements, standalone and consolidated, along with segmental
information, are also posted on our website, at https: www.lccinfotech.in

e The proceedings of the AGM are available on our website, at https: www.lccinfotech.in

e The shareholders can also access the details of annual reports, Board and committee details,
Memorandum and Articles of Association, financial information, shareholding patterns, details
of unclaimed dividends and shares transferred / liable to transfer to IEPF, etc. on the Company’s
website.

e Other information, such as stock exchange disclosures, is regularly updated on the Company’s
website. The shareholders can also visit www.bseindia.com where the investors can view
statutory filings of the Company with the BSE.
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@ Stock Price Data

Month NSE* BSE*

High Low High Low
April 2021 4.55 2.00 5.11 1.79
May 2021 1.90 1.45 1.71 1.24
June 2021 1.75 1.70 2.37 1.68
July 2021 2.00 1.65 2.12 1.66
August 2021 2.40 1.65 2.44 1.66
September 2021 2.70 2.40 2.95 1.82
October 2021 1.90 1.70 2.00 1.68
November 2021 2.50 1.70 2.55 1.70
December 2021 5.30 2.45 3.09 1.70
January 2022 5.55 5.55 8.58 5.59
February 2022 0.00 0.00 5.92 3.15
March 2022 4.00 3.55 5.35 3.38

@ Performance in comparison to board based Indices

The Equity Shares of the Company are presently listed only on BSE Limited. The trading data of the
Company’s Equity Shares and its performance comparison to board based indices for FY 2021-22

are as under:
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Share transfers are processed and share certificates duly endorsed are delivered within a period of
seven days from the date of receipt, subject to documents being valid and complete in all respects.
The power has been delegated to the Board for approving transfer, transmission, etc. of the Company’s

securities.

A summary of transfer/transmission of securities of the Company so approved by

board is placed at every Board meeting / Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee. The Company
obtains from a Company Secretary in Practice half-yearly certificate of compliance with the share
transfer formalities as required under regulation 40 (9) of SEBI (LODR)Regulations 2015 and files
a copy of the said certificate with Stock Exchanges

@ Distribution of Shareholding as on March 31, 2022

Distribution of Distribution of Numbers of % of Number of % of
shareholders share shareholders | Shareholders shares shareholding
UPTO to 500 UPTO to 5000 19718 57.64 4274382 3.38
501 to 1000 5010 to 10000 5639 16.48 5193238 4.10
1001 to 2000 10010 to 20000 3373 9.86 5619564 4.44
2001 to 3000 20010 to 30000 1761 5.15 4613855 3.64
3001 to 4000 30010 to 40000 680 1.99 2498156 1.97
4001 to 5000 40010 to 50000 991 2.90 4858825 3.84
5001 to 10000 50010 to 100000 1160 3.39 9160234 7.24
10001 to 50000 100010 to 500000 758 2.22 15409264 12.17
50001 to 100000 500010 to 1000000 78 0.23 5741499 4.54
100001 and Above | 1000010 and Above 52 0.15 69224333 54.68
Total 34210 100.00 126593350 100.00
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@ Category of Shareholding as On 31.03.2022

Resident individual 33812 61225951 48.36
Domestic Companies 279 5385703 5.04
Non Resident Individual 110 794940 0.63
Foreign Company - - -
Mutual Fund 1 2,500 0.00
Financial Institution 0.00
Nationalized Bank 1 1,000 0.00
Promoter Company 0.00
Director Relatives 4 5,8078256 45.88
Foreign Institutional Investors 3 1,05,000 0.08
Total 34210 12,65,93,350 100.00

@ Holding Pattern as on 31.03.2022

S| No. No. of Shares | Percentage of | No. of Holders Percentage of
Shares Share holders
1 NSDL 86225452 68.11 20266 59.24
CDSL 38549552 30.45 12566 36.73
3 PHYSICAL 1818356 1.44 1379 4.03
TOTAL 12,65,93,350 100.00 34210 100.00

Dematerialisation of shares and liquidity:

As on 31st March, 2022, 98.56 % of the Company’s Share Capital representing 124775004 Shares
were in dematerialised form and the balance 1.44 % of the Company’s Share Capital representing
1818356 Shares were in Physical Form. It needs to be said that the entire Promoters shareholding

of 45. 88 % is in dematerialised form.
Insider Trading Regulation:

The Company has adopted a code of internal procedure for prevention of any unauthorised trading
in the shares of the Company by insiders, as required under SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading)

Regulations, 2015.
@ Address for Correspondence:

The Company Secretary is the Compliance Officer for this purpose.

Registered Office
LCC Infotech Limited

P-16, C.I.T. Road Kolkata - 700 014
Phone:033-2277906

Corporate Office
LCC Infotech Limited
2/5A, Sarat Bose, Road
Kolkata - 700 020
Phone:033-40033636/37

Any Query on Annual REPORT
LCC Infotech Limited
Secretarial Department
2/5A, Sarat Bose Road
Kolkata - 700 020
Phone:033-35112935
Email: corporate@Iccinfotech.co.in

Investor CORRESPONDENCE
RTA (For both Physical & Demat)
M/s S. K. Infosolution Pvt. Ltd.
D/42,Katju Nagar (Near South City Mall),
Ground Floor Katju Nagar Bazar,
Jadavpur Kolkata -700032
Phone: 033-24120027 & 033-24120029
e-mail- skcdilip@gmail.com

Compliance officer
Smriti Suhasaria
2/5A, Sarat Bose Road,
Kolkata-700020,
"Sukhsagar Building" 2nd Floor,
Phone: 033-35112935
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@ A certificate from Auditors on corporate Governance.

A certificate from the Statutory Auditors confirming compliance with the conditions of Corporate
Governance as stipulated in the Listing Regulations forms part of this Annual Report.

@ A certificate from Company Secretary in Practice on Non-Disqualification of Directors
A certificate from a Company Secretary in Practice that none of the directors on the Board of the
Company have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of
Companies by the Board / Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority forms part
of this Annual Report.
@ Adoption of Mandatory and Non-mandatory requirements
The Company has complied with all mandatory requirements of Listing regulations. The Company
has adopted following non-mandatory requirements of listing regulation:
* Reporting of Internal Auditor-The Internal Auditor directly reports to the Audit Committee
* The statutory financial statements of your Company are unqualified.
@ CEO and CFO Certification
* The CEO and the CFO of the Company give annual certification pursuant to SEBI (LODR)
Regulations 2015 and the same forms part of this report.
Other Disclosures

a. All transactions entered into, during the Financial Year, with related parties as defined under
the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, were in the ordinary course
of business and on arm’s length basis. There were no materially significant Related Party
Transactions made by the Company with its Promoters, Directors or their relatives, or the
management etc. that may have potential conflict with the interests of the Company at
large.

Transactions with related parties are disclosed in Note under ‘Notes annexed to and forming
part of the Financial Statements’ in the Annual Report.

The policy on related party transactions has been uploaded in the Company’s website
www.lccinfotech.in

b. During the last three years, there were no strictures or penalties imposed by either SEBI for
Non-Compliance of any matter related to the Capital Markets.

c. There are no pecuniary relationships or transactions with Non-Executive Independent Directors
other than those disclosed in this report.

d. The Company has not raised fund through Preferential Allotment or Qualified Institutional
Placement.

e. No Credit Rating has been obtained by the Company as no fund has been mobilized through
debt instruments or any fixed deposits.

f. There was no instances where the Board had not accepted any recommendation of any
Committee of the Board during the year under review.

g. Total fees of Rs. 50000/- is paid by the Company to the Statutory Auditor for all their services.
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Certificate on Compliance with Code of Conduct

I hereby confirm that the Company has obtained from all the members of the Board and Senior
Management Personnel, affirmation that they have complied with the Code of Conduct of the

Company for the financial year 2021-22.

P

Mr. Sidharth Lakhotia
WTD & CEO

Din: 00057511
Kolkata, 27% May 2022
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To

CEO/CFO Certification

The Board of Directors,
LCC Infotech Limited

We certify that :

1.
(1)
(i)

(1)

(ii)
(iii)

Place:
Date:

We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement of LCC Infotech Limited
for the year ended 31st March, 2022 and to the best of our knowledge and belief:

these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or
contain statements that might be misleading;

these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in
compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the
Company during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s Code of
Conduct.

We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting
and we have evaluated the effectiveness of Company’s internal control systems pertaining
to financial reporting. We have not come across any reportable deficiencies in the design or
operation of such internal controls.

We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee:

that there are no significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the
year;

that there are no significant changes in accounting policies during the year; and

that there are no instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware.

ez P

Kolkata Shidharth Lakhotia Pratik Lakhotia
27% May 2022 Director & CEO Director & CFO
DIN-00057511 DIN-00057015
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AUDITORS’ CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Members,
LCC Infotech Limited

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance procedures implemented
by LCC Infotech Limited, for the year ended 31.03.2022 as stipulated in Chapter IV of Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
("SEBI Regulations”).

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management.
Our examination was limited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company
for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of the Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit
nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanation given to us and
the representations made by the Directors and the Management, we certify that the Company has
complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in Chapter IV of Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI
Regulations”).

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs
of the Company.

For ANIL MALANI & ASSOCIATES.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No: 329096E

ANIL MALANI

Proprietor

Membership No: 066279
UDIN:22066279AZRZYQ9225

Kolkata, May 27, 2022
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

(pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

To,

The Members

LCC Infotech Limited

CIN: L72200WB1985PLC073196
P- 16, C.I.T. ROAD P S ENTALLY
Kolkata 700014

I have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the
Directors of M/s LCC Infotech Limited having CIN L72200WB1985PLC073196 and having registered
office at P-16, C.I.T.Road, Kolkata-700014 (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’), produced
before me by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation
34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the verifications (including Directors
Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and
explanations furnished to me by the Company & its officers, I hereby certify that none of the Directors
on the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending on March 31, 2022 have
been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the
Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such other Statutory
Authority:

Sr. No. Name of Director DIN Date of appointment
in Company*
1. Mr. Sidharth Lakhotia 00057511 15/05/1998
2. Mrs.Kirti Lakhotia 00057357 01/04/1999
3. Mr. Pratik Lakhotia 00057015 30/01/2003
4. Mr. Kamaljit Singh 00552381 28/07/2006
5. Mr. Rajat Sharma 01576565 14/08/2019
6. Mr. Mayur P Shah 01849708 20/08/2019

*the date of appointment is as per the MCA Portal.

Ensuring the eligibility of the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility
of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on
our verification.

This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency
or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

M Shahnawaz & Associates
Company Secretaries
Firm Regd. No- S2015WB331500

CS Md. Shahnawaz
(Proprietor)

Membership No- 21427

CP. No0.15076

UDIN: A021427D000408341
Kolkata, May 27, 2022
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Independent Auditor’'s Report

To the Members of LCC Infotech Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of LCC Infotech Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31 2022, the Statement of Profit and
Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013,
as amended (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2022, its loss including other comprehensive loss, its cash flows and the changes in
equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the standalone
Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with
the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions
of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone
financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance
in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’'s Report
thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual Report, for example, Corporate Overview, Key
Highlights, Directors’ Report, Report on Corporate Governance, Management Discussion & Analysis
Report, Business Responsibility Report, etc., but does not include the consolidated financial statements,
standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash
flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133
of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
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frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends
to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

~ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

~ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act,
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

~ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

~ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as a going concern.

~ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatement in the financial statement that, individually or
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user
of the financial statement may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative
factors in (i) planning the scope our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and
(ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

(a)
(b)
(c)

(d)
(e)
()
(9)

(1)
(i)
(iii)
(iv)

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we
give in the Annexure, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the
Order.

As required by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

in our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as appears from our examination of those books;

the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity
dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

on the basis of written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2022,
and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
31 March 2022, from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164 (2) of the Act;

with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
report in Annexure B; and

with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

(a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or
loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources
or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entities, including foreign
entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons
or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by
the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entities (*Funding Parties”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company
shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(c) Based on such audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable
and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us
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to believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material
misstatement.

(v) The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.

For Anil Malani & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 329096E

Anil Malani
Proprietor
Membership Number: 066279

Kolkata
27 May 2022

UDIN: 22066279A0XCXZ1947
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Annexure - A to the Independent Auditors’ Report

The Annexure referred to in our Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of the Company on
the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022, we report that:

(i)(a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative

(b)
(©)

(d)
(e)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)
(v)

(vi)

details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company has not capitalized any intangible assets in the books of the Company and
accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(i)(a)(B) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the management during the
year and no material discrepancies were identified on such verification.

There is no immovable property (other than properties where the Company is the lessee
and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee), held by the Company
and accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment or intangible assets during
the year ended March 31, 2022.

There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any
benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules
made thereunder.

(a) The Company’s business does not require maintenance of inventories and, accordingly,
the requirement to report on clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. five crores
in aggregate from banks or financial institutions during any point of time of the year on the
basis of security of current assets. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(ii)(b)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(@) During the year the Company has not provided loans, advances in the nature of loans,
stood guarantee or provided security to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or
any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(a) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

(b) During the year the Company has not made investments, provided guarantees, provided
security and granted loans and advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
3(iii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(c) The Company has not granted loans and advances in the nature of loans to companies,
firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to
report on clause 3(iii)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company

(d) The Company has not granted loans or advances in the nature of loans to companies,
firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to
report on clause 3(iii)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(e) There were no loans or advance in the nature of loan granted to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on
clause 3(iii)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(f) The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, either
repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment to companies,
firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to
report on clause 3(iii)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Loans, investments, guarantees and security in respect of which provisions of sections 185
and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are applicable have been complied with by the Company.

The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts
which are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Companies
Act and the rules made thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the requirement to
report on clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable and hence not commented upon.

The Central Government has not specified the maintenance of cost records under Section
148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, for the products/services of the Company.
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(vii) (a) The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

dues including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-
tax, sales-tax, wealth-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax,
cess and other statutory dues applicable to it. According to the information and explanations
given to us and based on audit procedures performed by us, no undisputed amounts payable
in respect of these statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more
than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) There are no dues of goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance,
income tax, sales-tax, service tax, customs duty, excise duty, value added tax, cess, goods
and service tax and other statutory dues which have not been deposited on account of any
dispute.

The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in
the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income
during the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company

(a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the
payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution
or government or any government authority.

(c) Term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained

(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, no funds raised
on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

(e) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has
not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its
subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.

(f) The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies. Hence, the requirement to report on
clause (ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) According to the information and explanations provided to us, the Company has not
raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer / further public offer (including
debt instruments). Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is
not applicable and hence not commented upon.

(b) According to the information and explanations provided to us, the Company has not
made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares /fully or partially or optionally
convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable and hence not commented upon.

(a) No fraud/ material fraud by the Company or no fraud / material fraud on the Company
has been noticed or reported during the year.

(b) During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013 has been filed by cost auditor or secretarial auditor or by us in Form ADT - 4 as
prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central
Government.

(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received
by the Company during the year.

In our opinion, the Company is not a nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013. Therefore, the requirements to report on clause 3(xii)(a) (b) and (c) of the Order
are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, transactions with
the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013
where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements for the year, as required by applicable accounting standards.

(a) The Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its
business.

(b) The internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of the audit report, for the
period under audit have been considered by us.
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(xv)

(xvi)

(xvii)

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with
the directors or persons connected with its directors and hence requirement to report on
clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) The provisions of section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) are
not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(a) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities
without obtained a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as
per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made by
Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

(d) There are no other Companies part of the Group, hence, the requirement to report on
clause 3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has incurred cash losses in the current year amounting to Rs. 73.61 Lakhs. In

the immediately preceding financial year, the Company has incurred cash losses amounting
to Rs. 149.50 lakhs.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly

(xix)

(xx)

requirement to report on Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 30 statements, ageing and expected
dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and
management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions,
nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty
exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities
existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year
from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future
viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the
date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities
falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the
Company as and when they fall due.

(a) The provisions of Section 135 to the Companies Act, 2013 in relation to Corporate Social
Responsibility is not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on
clause 3(xx)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
(b) The provisions of Section 135 to the Companies Act, 2013 in relation to Corporate Social
Responsibility is not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on
clause 3(xx)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

For Anil Malani & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 329096E

Anil Malani
Proprietor
Membership Number: 066279

UDIN:

22066279A0XCXZ1947

Kolkata
27 May 2022
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Annexure - B to the Independent Auditors’ Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of LCC Infotech Limited
(“the Company”) as of 31 March 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of
the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit on Internal
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (‘'ICAI’). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets,
the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies
Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards
on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies
Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an
audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of
the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors
of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material
effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
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internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at 31 March 2022, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Anil Malani & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 329096E

Anil Malani

Proprietor

Membership Number: 066279
UDIN: 22066279A0XCXZ1947

Kolkata
27 May 2022
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LCC Infotech Limited
P-16, CIT Road, Kolkata-14
CIN :
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022

L72200WB1985PLC073196

Rs. in lacs
Particulars Note No. As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Assets
Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 3 186.12 190.74
(b) Financial assets
(i) Investments 4 1,933.17 1,933.17
(ii) Loan 5 1,901.37 1,889.99
(iii) Other financial assets 6 46.93 40.92
4,067.59 4,054.82
Current assets
(a) Inventories 7 10.75 10.75
(b) Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 8 1,963.96 2,033.99
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 9 22.57 1.39
(c) Other current assets 10 119.24 113.33
2,116.52 2,159.46
TOTAL ASSETS 6,184.11 6,214.28
Equity and Liabilities
Equity
(a) Equity share capital 11 2,531.87 2,531.87
(b) Other equity 12 3147.55 3,221.16
Total equity 5,679.42 5,753.03
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 13 32.12 38.29
32.12 38.29
Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 14 256.51 232.02
(ii) Trade Payables
(a) Total outstanding dues of micro
enterprises and small enterprises - -
(b)Total outstanding dues of creditor other
than micro enterprises and small enterprises 15 95.54 84.43
(iii) Other Financial Liabilities 16 120.47 106.43
(b) Other Current Liabilities 17 0.05 0.08
472.57 422.96
Total liabilities 504.69 461.25
Total Equity and Liabilities 6,184.11 6,214.28

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2.1
The accompanying notes are an integral

part of the financial statements

In terms of our report attached on the even date

For Anil Malani & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No: 329096E

LCC InfoTech Limited

Anil Malani Kriti Lakhotia
Proprietor Managing Director
Membership No. 066279 DIN : 00057357
Pratik Lakhotia
Place : Kolkata Chief Financial Officer
Date : 27th May 2022 DIN : 00057015
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sidharth Lakhotia
Director
DIN : 00057511

Smriti Suhasari
Company Secretary
ICSI Membership No. A36813
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LCC Infotech Limited
P-16, CIT Road, Kolkata-14

CIN : L72200WB1985PLC073196
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2022

Rs. in lacs

Particulars Notes

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Income
I. Revenue from operations 18
II. Other income 19

116.05 1.80
4.98 8.92

III. Total income (I+II)

121.03 10.72

Expenses

Changes in inventories of finished goods,
work-in-progress and stock-in-trade 20
Employee benefits expense 21
Finance costs 22
Depreciation and amortisation expense 3
Other expenses 23

16.76 33.78
3.82 2.93
4.98 8.68

169.08 114.83

IV. Total expense

194.64 160.22

V. Profit/ (loss) before Tax ( III - IV)

(73.61) (149.50)

VI. Tax expense
(a) Current tax
(b) Deferred tax

VII. Profit/(loss) for the year (V -VI)

(73.61) (149.50)

VIII. Other comprehensive income/

(loss) for the year

(i) Items that will be not reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss

(ii) Items that will be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss

Other Comprehensive Income/ (Loss) for

the year (i +ii)

IX. Total Comprehensive Income/(loss)
for the year ( VII + VIII)

Earnings per share - Basic and diluted
(Nominal value Rs. 2 per share) 24

(73.61) (149.50)

(0.06) (0.12)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2.1
The accompanying notes are an integral part

of the financial statements

In terms of our report attached on the even date

For Anil Malani & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants LCC InfoTech Limited
ICAI Firm Registration No: 329096E

Anil Malani Kriti Lakhotia
Proprietor Managing Director
Membership No. 066279 DIN : 00057357

Pratik Lakhotia
Place : Kolkata Chief Financial Officer
Date : 27th May 2022 DIN : 00057015

Sidharth Lakhotia
Director
DIN : 00057511

Smriti Suhasari
Company Secretary
ICSI Membership No. A36813
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LCC Infotech Limited
P-16, CIT Road, Kolkata-14
CIN : L72200WB1985PLC073196

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2022

Rs. in lacs

Particulars Note Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
A. Operating Activities
Profit/ (Loss) before tax (73.61) (149.50)
Adjustments to reconcile profit/(loss) before
tax to net cash flows:
Depreciation and amortisation expense 3 4.98 8.68
Bad Debt - 30.00
Finance costs 3.82 2.93
Operating cash flows before working
capital changes (64.81) (107.89)
Working capital adjustments:
Decrease / (Increase) in Trade receivables 70.03 61.12
Decrease / (Increase) in Inventories - -
Decrease / (Increase) in Other financial assets (5.91) (16.98)
Increase / (Decrease) in trade payables 25.12 (19.09)
Increase / (Decrease) in Loans & Advances (18.27) (7.94)
Cash used in operations 6.16 (90.78)
Income tax paid (net of refund) - -
Net cash used in Operating Activities a 6.16 (90.78)
B. Investing Activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment,
capital work in progress & intangible
assets (including capital advances) (0.36) (0.84)
Investment in fixed bank deposits - (36.19)
Proceeds from fixed bank deposits 0.88 28.90
Net cash flows from Investing Activities b 0.52 (8.13)
C. Financing Activities
Proceeds from borrowings 25.83 104.39
Repayment of borrowings (7.51) (4.68)
Interest paid (3.82) (2.93)
Net cash flows from /(used in) Financing
Activities c 14.50 96.78
Net Increase / (decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents a+b+c 21.18 (2.13)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 1.39 3.52
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the
year (refer note 13) 22.57 1.39

Explanation:

1. The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the “Indirect Method” as set out in Ind

AS - 7 “Statement of Cash Flows”

2. Components of Cash & Cash Equivalents (Refer Note 9):

Balances with banks :
In Current Accounts
Cash on Hand

Total

20.40
2.17
22.57

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

In terms of our report attached on the even date

For Anil Malani & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No: 329096E

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
LCC InfoTech Limited

Anil Malani Kriti Lakhotia Sidharth Lakhotia
Proprietor Managing Director Director

Membership No. 066279 DIN : 00057357 DIN : 00057511
Place : Kolkata Pratik Lakhotia Smriti Suhasari

Date : 27th May 2022

DIN :

Chief Financial Officer
00057015

Company Secretary

ICSI Membership No. A36813
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LCC Infotech Limited

P-16, CIT Road, Kolkata-14
L72200WB1985PLC073196

CIN :

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2022
A) Equity share capital (refer note 11)

1) Current reporting Year

Rs. in lacs

Balance as at Change in Restated balance Change in Balance as at
April 1, 2021 equity Share as at April 1, 2021 equity Share March 31, 2022
Capitl due to Capital during
prior period errors the current year
2,531.87 - 2,531.87 - 2,531.87
2)Previous reporting Year
Balance as at Change in Restated balance Change in Balance as at
April 1, 2021 equity Share as at April 1, 2021 equity Share March 31, 2022
Capitl due to Capital during
prior period errors the current year
2,531.87 - 2,531.87 - 2,531.87
B) Other equity (refer note 12)
1) Current reporting Year Rs. in lacs
Reserves and Surplus
Securities General Reserve | Retained earnings Total
Premium (including Other
Comprehensive
Income)
Balance as at April 1, 2021 4,005.95 0.70 (785.49) 3,221.16
Profit/(Loss) for the year - - (73.61) (73.61)
Other comprehensive income/
(loss) for the year - - - -
Balance as at March 31, 2022 | 4,005.95 0.70 (859.10) 3,147.55
2) Previous reporting Year
Rs. in lacs
Reserves and Surplus Total
Securities General Reserve | Retained earnings
(including Other
Comprehensive
Income)
Balance as at April 1, 2020 4,005.95 0.70 (635.99) 3,370.66
Profit/(Loss) for the year - - (149.50) (149.50)
Other comprehensive income/
(loss) for the year - - - -
Balance as at March 31, 2021 4,005.95 0.70 (785.49) 3,221.16

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
In terms of our report attached on the even date

For Anil Malani & Associates

Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No:

Anil Malani
Proprietor
Membership No. 066279

Place: Kolkata
Date: 27th May 2022

329096E

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
LCC InfoTech Limited

Kriti Lakhotia
Managing Director
DIN : 00057357

Pratik Lakhotia

Chief Financial Officer

DIN : 00057015

Sidharth Lakhotia
Director

DIN :

00057511

Smriti Suhasari
Company Secretary

ICSI Membership

No. A36813
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LCC INFOTECH LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statesments as at and for the year ended March 31, 2022
1. Corporate Information

LCC Infotech Limited ("Company" or "LCC") is a public limited company domiciled in India. The
registered office of the company is located at P-16, CIT Road, Kolkata - 700014.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company has been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as
amended from time to time) and presentation requirements of Division II of Schedule III to the
Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS compliant Schedule III).

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis.

The financial statements are presented in INR and all values are rounded to the nearest lacs (INR
'00,000), except when otherwise indicated.

The company has prepared the financial statements on the basis that it will continue to operate as
a going concern.

Recent Accounting Developments

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards.
There is no such notification which would have been applicable.

MCA issued notifications dated March 24, 2021, to amend Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013
to enhance the disclosures required to be made by the company in its Financial Statements. These
amendments are applicable to the company for the financial period starting April 01, 2021.

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies
a. Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-
current classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:

~ Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
~ Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

~ Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability
for at least twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is current when:
~ It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle
~ It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

~ There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation
in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

a) Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured.

b) Dividend income is recognized when the shareholder's right to receive dividend is established
by the balance sheet date.

Trade receivables

A receivable is recognised if an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage
of time is required before payment of the consideration is due).

a. Operating Cycle

All assets and liabilities have been classified as per the Company's normal operating cycle and
other criteria set out in the Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013 and Ind AS 1 - Presentation of
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Financial Statements based on the nature of products and the time between the acquisition of
assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents.

b. Property, plant and equipment

Plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

Depreciation is calculated on a Straight Line Method (SLM) basis over the estimated useful lives of
the assets as follows:

Type of Asset Useful Life estimated by the management
Building 60 Years
Plant & Equipment 15 years
Computers 3 years
Furniture & Fixtures 10 years
Office equipments 5 years
Electrical Equipments] 10 years
Motor Vehicles 8 years

The Company depreciates its Property, plant and equipment over estimated useful lives which are
as per the useful life prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 except Plant & Equipment
which is lower than those indicated in Schedule II i.e. 5-15 years. The management believes that
these useful lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over which the assets
are likely to be used.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain
or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit and loss when
the asset is derecognised.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed at the end of each financial year and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

c. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and bank
balances.

d. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to equity holders
of parent company (after deducting preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable
to equity shareholders of the parent company and the weighted average number of shares outstanding
during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

e. Contingent Liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the
control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in
extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be
measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence
in the financial statements.

2.3 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities,
and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about
these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to
the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.
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a. Useful lives of property, plant and equipment:

As described in the significant accounting policies, the Company reviews the estimated useful lives
of property, plant and equipment at the end of each reporting period.

b. Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. Existing circumstances
and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or
circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the company. Such changes are reflected in
the assumptions when they occur.

c. Provisions Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provision is recognized in the accounts when there is a present obligation as a result of past
event(s) and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and
a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are not discounted to their present value and are
determined based on the best estimate required to settle the obligation at the reporting date.
These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimates. Contingent liabilities are disclosed unless the possibility of outflow of resources is remote.
Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in the financial statements.
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LCC Infotech Limited
P-16, CIT Road, Kolkata-14
CIN : L72200WB1985PLC073196

4: Investments

Rs. In Lacs

Name of the Company

As at
March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

Investments at Amortised Cost
Quoted Equity Share (Fully Paid Up)

NIIT Limited(100 equity shares
(March 31, 2021 : 100) of Rs.2 each)

Universal Media Network Limited
(7,82,425 equity shares (March 31, 2021 :
7,82,425) of Rs.2 each)

R. S. Software Limited (1,500 equity shares
(March 31, 2021 : 1,500) of Rs. 10 each)

ATN International Limited( 1,51,673 equity
shares (March 31, 2021 : 1,51,673)
of Rs. 4 each)

Tata Steel Limited (7,500 equity shares
(March 31, 2021 : 7,500) of Rs. 10 each)

Sun Pharma Advance Research Co. Ltd (3,000 equity
shares (March 31, 2021 : 3,000) of Rs. 5 each)

Unquoted Equity Shares ( fully paid up )
- In wholly owned subsidiary companies

eLcc Info. Com Limited (18,41,750 equity shares
(March 31, 2021: 18,41,750) of Rs. 10 each)

- In other companies

Abex Infocom Pvt. Ltd. (50,000 equity shares
(March 31, 2021 : 50,000) of Rs. 10 each)

Advertiser’s Advertising Agency Limited
( 2,400 equity shares (March 31, 2021 : 2,400)
of Rs. 10 each)

Alkon Trading Pvt. Ltd.( 26,000 equity shares
(March 31, 2021 : 26,000) of Rs. 10 each)
Aradhana VyaparPvt. Ltd.( 36,000 equity shares
(March 31, 2021 : 36,000) of Rs. 10 each)
Aristo Projects Ltd.( 45,650 equity shares
(March 31, 2021 : 45,650) of Rs. 10 each)
Ashoke Paper Mills Ltd.( 1,50,000 equity shares
(March 31, 2021 : 1,50,000) of Rs. 10 each)
Bhairav Trde Link Ltd.( 4,000 equity shares
(March 31, 2021 : 4,000) of Rs. 10 each)

Casecade Dealcom Pvt. Ltd.( 93,450 equity shares
(March 31, 2021 : 93,450) of Rs. 10 each)

Celeste Merchandise Pvt. Ltd.( 12,258 equity shares
(March 31, 2021 : 12,258) of Rs. 10 each)

25.04

8.23

14.41

6.84

13.50

184.18

25.00

2.40

8.84

18.00

20.54

15.00

1.32

30.87

3.80

2.15

25.04

8.23

14.41

6.84

13.50

184.18

25.00

2.40

8.84

18.00

20.54

15.00

1.32

30.87

3.80
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LCC Infotech Limited
P-16, CIT Road, Kolkata-14
CIN : L72200WB1985PLC073196

4: Investments

Rs. In Lacs

Name of the Company

As at
March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

Investments at Amortised Cost
Quoted Equity Share (Fully Paid Up)

Unquoted Equity Shares (fully paid up )
- In other companies

Champak Niketan Pvt. Ltd.( 30,000 equity
shares (March 31, 2021 : 30,000) of Rs. 10 each)

Destiny International Ltd.( 1,00,000 equity
shres (March 31, 2021 : 1,00,000) of Rs. 10 each)

Dhansafal Vyapaar Pvt. Ltd.( 49,000 equity
shares (March 31, 2021 : 49,000) of Rs. 10 each)

Escrots Trade Link Pvt. Ltd.( 74,000 equity shares
(March 31, 2021 : 74,000) of Rs. 10 each)"

Galvenotek Industries Pvt. Ltd.( 1,30,000 equity
shares (March 31, 2021 : 1,30,000) of Rs. 10 each)

Goldwine Merchendise Pvt. Ltd.( 20,000 equity
shares (March 31, 2021 : 20,000) of Rs. 10 each)

Gurupath Merchendise Pvt. Ltd.( 25,000 equity
shares (March 31, 2021 : 25,000) of Rs. 10 each)

Hanurag Projects Pvt. Ltd.( 87,850 equity
shares (March 31, 2021 : 87,850) of Rs. 10 each)

Indivar Kutir Pvt. Ltd.( 30,000 equity shares
(March 31, 2021 : 30,000) of Rs. 10 each)

Jeet Vaniya Ltd.( 36,000 equity shares
(March 31, 2021 : 36,000) of Rs. 10 each)

Jhalar Vincom Pvt. Ltd.( 36,000 equity shares
(March 31, 2021 : 36,000) of Rs. 10 each)

Jmd Sounds Ltd.( 36,000 equity shares
(March 31, 2021 : 36,000) of Rs. 10 each)

Mangalmayee Garments Pvt. Ltd.(16,000 equity
shares (March 31, 2021 : 16,000) of Rs. 10 each)

Mansingh Oils & Grains Pvt. Ltd.( 3,91,967 equity
shares (March 31, 2021 : 3,91,967) of Rs. 10 each)

Nathoo Commodities Pvt. Ltd.( 40,000 equity
shares (March 31, 2021 : 40,000) of Rs. 10 each)

Nutshell Vyapar Pvt. Ltd.( 80,000 equity shares
(March 31, 2021 : 80,000) of Rs. 10 each)

Ojas Suppliers Ltd.( 26,000 equity shares
(March 31, 2021 : 26,000) of Rs. 10 each)

Pentacon Plastic Co. Pvt. Ltd.( 36,000 equity
shares (March 31, 2021 : 36,000) of Rs. 10 each)

15.00

50.00

14.90

37.00

65.00

10.00

6.75

37.77

15.00

12.78

18.00

5.77

13.76

293.98

20.00

40.00

6.37

18.00

15.00

50.00

14.90

37.00

65.00

10.00

6.75

37.77

15.00

12.78

18.00

5.77

13.76

293.98

20.00

40.00

6.37

18.00
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LCC Infotech Limited
P-16, CIT Road, Kolkata-14

CIN :
4: Investments

L72200WB1985PLC073196

Rs. In Lacs

Name of the Company

As at
March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

Investments at Amortised Cost
Quoted Equity Share (Fully Paid Up)

Unquoted Equity Shares (fully paid up )
- In other companies

PKV Spun Pipe Impex Pvt. Ltd.( 36,000 equity
shares (March 31, 2021 : 36,000) of Rs. 10 each)

Platinum BioTech Pvt. Ltd.( 7,500 equity shares
(March 31, 2021 : 7,500) of Rs. 10 each)

Pleasure Investment Pvt. Ltd.( 1,02,300 equity

shares (March 31, 2021 : 1,02,300) of Rs. 10 each)

Pushpak Trading & Consultancy Pvt. Ltd.( 82,000
equity shares (March 31, 2021 : 82,000) of Rs. 10 each)

Rangbarshi Projects Ltd.( 60,000 equity shares
(March 31, 2021 : 60,000) of Rs. 10 each)

Raunak Tracon Pvt. Ltd.( 42,550 equity shares
(March 31, 2021 : 42,550) of Rs. 10 each)

Ricon Tieup Ltd.( 50,000 equity shares
(March 31, 2021 : 50,000) of Rs. 10 each)

Rolex Merchant Pvt. Ltd.( 2,800 equity shares
(March 31, 2021 : 2,800) of Rs. 10 each)

Rubion Marketing Ltd."( 30,000 equity shares
(March 31, 2021 : 30,000) of Rs. 10 each)

Sapience Commodities Pvt. Ltd.( 25,500 equity
shares (March 31, 2021 : 25,500) of Rs. 10 each)

Savera Traders Ltd.( 29,750 equity shares
(March 31, 2021 : 29,750) of Rs. 10 each)

Shalu Properties Pvt. Ltd.( 18,000 equity shares
(March 31, 2021 : 18,000) of Rs. 10 each)

Sheetal Farms Ltd."( 50,000 equity shares
(March 31, 2021 : 50,000) of Rs. 10 each)

Shivganga Distributors Pvt. Ltd.( 30,000 equity
shares (March 31, 2021 : 30,000) of Rs. 10 each)

Shree Agro Industries Ltd.( 7,11,600 equity shares
(March 31, 2021 : 7,11,600) of Rs. 10 each)

Shyam Sree Steels Ltd.( 1,790 equity shares
(March 31, 2021 : 1,790) of Rs. 10 each)

Skylark Commerce Pvt. Ltd.( 50,000 equity shares
(March 31, 2021 : 50,000) of Rs. 10 each)

StarPoint Management Pvt. Ltd.( 29,000 equity
shares (March 31, 2021 : 29,000) of Rs. 10 each)

18.00

6.00

51.15

41.00

48.20

19.57

50.00

28.00

11.70

8.42

29.75

9.00

50.00

15.00

177.90

0.90

25.00

21.60

18.00

6.00

51.15

41.00

48.20

19.57

50.00

28.00

11.70

8.42

29.75

9.00

50.00

15.00

177.90

0.90

25.00

21.60
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4: Investments

Rs. In Lacs

Name of the Company

As at
March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

Investments at Amortised Cost

Quoted Equity Share (Fully Paid Up)
Unquoted Equity Shares ( fully paid up )
- In other companies

Sudhanil Vanija Ltd.( 29,050 equity shares

(March 31, 2021 : 29,050) of Rs. 10 each) 5.51 5.51

Swarnima Properties Pvt. Ltd.( 50,000 equity

shares (March 31, 2021 : 50,000) of Rs. 10 each) 25.00 25.00

Tayal Trading Pvt. Ltd.( 40,000 equity shares

(March 31, 2021 : 40,000) of Rs. 10 each) 20.00 20.00

The Thermic Steel Co. Pvt. Ltd.( 53,000 equity

shares (March 31, 2021 : 53,000) of Rs. 10 each) 26.50 26.50

Top Light Tradelink Pvt. Ltd.( 1,00,000 equity

shares (March 31, 2021 : 1,00,000) of Rs. 10 each) 50.00 50.00

Triplerank Marketing Pvt. Ltd."( 30,000 equity

shares (March 31, 2021 : 30,000) of Rs. 10 each) 15.00 15.00

Turnkey Commodities Ltd.( 1,04,500 equity

shares (March 31, 2021 : 1,04,500) of Rs. 10 each) 36.57 36.57

Twinkle Traders Pvt. Ltd."( 40,000 equity shares

(March 31, 2021 : 40,000) of Rs. 10 each) 20.00 20.00

Vijay Investment & Trading Pvt. Ltd. ( 55,500 equity

shares (March 31, 2021 : 55,500) of Rs. 10 each) 27.75 27.75

Vijay Path Distributors Ltd."( 52,000 equity shares

(March 31, 2021 : 52,000) of Rs. 10 each) 26.00 26.00

Weldorf Tradelink Ltd. ( 15,000 equity shares

(March 31, 2021 : 15,000) of Rs. 10 each) 4.65 4.65

Whiteline Barter Ltd. ( 15,000 equity shares

(March 31, 2021 : 15,000) of Rs. 10 each) 4.80 4.80
1,933.17 1,933.17

Aggregate book value of quoted investment 70.17 70.17

Aggregate book value of unquoted investment

Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investment

Note:

1,863.00

All investments are inside India only. No investments have been made

1,863.00

outside India
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5: Loans (Unsecured considered good, unless otherwise stated) (At Amortised Cost)

Rs. In Lacs
Non-current

As at As at

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Loans to Others 1,901.37 1,889.99
1,901.37 1,889.99

Amount of loan or % of the total Loans and

advance in the nature of Advances in the nature of

Type of Borrower loan outstanding loans
Loans to Others 1,901.37 100%

6: Other financial asset (Unsecured considered good, unless otherwise stated)

Rs. In Lacs
Non-current
As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Security deposits 7.96 0.88
Bank deposits with original maturity greater
than 12 months 37.39 38.27
Staff Advance 1.58 1.77
46.93 40.92
7: Inventories Rs. In Lacs
As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
(Valued at lower of cost and net
realisable value)
Others ( Study Material) 10.75 10.75
Total 10.75 10.75
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8 : Trade Receivables Rs. In Lacs
Asat As at
Particulars March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
At amortised cost
Trade Receivable considered good - Secured - -
Trade Receivable considered good - Unsecured 1,963.96 2,033.99
Trade Receivable credit impaired - Unsecured - -
1,963.96 2,033.99
Less :Trade Receivables - creditimpaired - -
Total Trade receivables 1,963.96 2,033.99
Receivable from related parties - -
Others 1,963.96 2,033.99
Total Trade receivables 1,963.96 2,033.99
Receivables are secured to the extent of Security Deposits taken from customers.
Trade Receivable Ageing Schedule as on March 31, 2022 Rs. In Lacs
Outstanding periods from due date of transaction
Particular -
Less than 6 6 months -1 1-2 Years | 2-3 Years More than 3 Total
months Years Years
Undisputed
(i) Considered good - - - 41.19 1,922.77 1,963.96
(i) Credit impaired - - - - -
- - 41.19 1,922.77 1,963.96
Less: Credit Impaired - - - - -
Total Undisputed (A) - - 41.19 1,922.77 1,963.96
Disputed
(i) Considered good * - - - - -
(i) Credit impaired - - - - -
Less: Credit Impaired - - - - -
Total Disputed (B) - - - - -
Total Trade Receivable (A+B) - - 41.19 1,922.77 1,963.96
* Management is confident of recovering the entire balance
Trade Receivable Ageing Schedule as on March 31, 2021 Rs. In Lacs
Outstanding periods from due date of transaction
Particular -
Less than 6 6 months -1 1-2 Years | 2-3 Years More than 3 Total
months Years Years
Undisputed
(i) Considered good - - - 32238 1,711.61 2,033.99
(i) Credit impaired - - - - -
- - 32238 1,711.61 2,033.99
Less: Credit Impaired - - - - -
Total Undisputed (A) - - 322.38 1,711.61 2,033.99
Disputed
(i) Considered good - - - - -
(i) Credit impaired - - - - -
Less: Credit Impaired - - - - -
Total Disputed (B) - - - - -
Total Trade Receivable (A+B) - - 32238 1,711.61 2,033.99

ii. Trade receivables are non-interest bearing.

iii. There are no unbilled receivables as on each reporting date, hence the same is not disclosed in the ageing schedules.

i. No trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the company either severally or jointly with any other person.
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9: Cash and cash equivalent

Rs. In Lacs

As at
March 31, 2022

Balances with banks :

As at
March 31, 2021

On current accounts 20.40 1.18
Cash on hand 2.17 0.21
22.57 1.39

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following:

As at
March 31, 2022

Balances with banks :

Rs. In Lacs

As at
March 31, 2021

On current accounts 20.40 1.18
Cash on hand 2.17 0.21
22.57 1.39
Rs. In Lacs
Break up of financial assets carried at amortised cost
As at As at

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

Investments (Note 4) 1,933.17 1,933.17
Loan (Note 5) 1,901.37 1,889.99
Other financial assets (Note 6) 46.93 40.92
Trade receivables (Note 8) 1,963.96 2,033.99
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 9) 22.57 1.39
Total financial assets carried at
amortised cost 5,868.00 5,899.46
10: Other assets Rs. In Lacs
Current
As at As at

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

Unsecured, considered good
Balance with government authorities 119.24

119.24

113.33
113.33
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Rs.In lacs

Particulars

As at
March 31,2022

As at
March 31,2021

Authorized capital

25,50,00,000 (March 31, 2021: 25,50,00,000) equity shares of Rs. 2/- each 5,100.00 5,100.00
5,100.00 5,100.00

Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital

12,65,93,350 (March 31, 2021: 12,65,93,350) equity shares of Rs. 2/- each fully paid 2,531.87 2,531.87
2,531.87 2,531.87

(a) Terms / Rights attached to the equity shares

Meeting.

(b) Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding as at the beginning and at the end of year

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs. 2 per share. Each holder of equity share s entitled to one vote per share. The Company declares
and pays dividends in Indian Rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential
amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

As at March 31,2022

As at March 31,2021

No. of Shares Rs.In Llacs No. of Shares Rs.In Lacs
At the beginning of the year 126,593,350 2,531.87 126,593,350 2,531.87
Fresh issue of Equity shares during the year - - - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 126,593,350 2,531.87 126,593,350 2,531.87
(c) The details of shareholders holding more than 5% equity shares is set below: Rs. In Lacs
As at March 31,2022 As at March 31,2021
No. of Shares % Holding No. of Shares % Holding

Equity Shares of Rs.2 each, fully paid
Kirti Lakhotia 36,221,235 28.61 25,083,990 19.81
Pratik Lakhotia 7,513,205 593 11,213,205 8.86
Prashant Lakhotia 7,194,142 5.68 10,894,142 8.61
Sidharth Lakhotia 7,149,674 5.65 10,859,674 8.58
(d) Disclosure of Shareholdings of Promoter's
Disclosure of shareholding of promoters as at March 31, 2022 is as follows :

As at March 31,2022 As at March 31,2021 N
Name of shareholders % of Total No. of Shares % change during

No. of Shares ) the year
Shares % of Total Shares

Equity Shares of Rs.2 each, fully paid
Kirti Lakhotia 36,221,235 28.61 25,083,990 19.81 8.80
Pratik Lakhotia 7,513,205 5.93 11,213,205 8.86 (2.92)
Prashant Lakhotia 7,194,142 5.68 10,894,142 8.61 (2.92)
Sidharth Lakhotia 7,149,674 5.65 10,859,674 8.58 (2.93)
Disclosure of shareholding of promoters as at March 31, 2021 is as follows :

As at March 31,2021 As at March 31,2020 o N
Name of shareholders % of Total No. of Shares % change during

No. of Shares the year
Shares % of Total Shares

Equity Shares of Rs.2 each, fully paid
Kirti Lakhotia 25,083,990 19.81 25,083,990 19.81 [ NA
Pratik Lakhotia 11,213,205 8.86 11,213,205 8.86 | NA
Prashant Lakhotia 10,894,142 8.61 10,894,142 8.61| NA
Sidharth Lakhotia 10,859,674 8.58 10,859,674 8.58 | NA

above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownership of shares.

*As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders / members and other declarations received from shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the|

e. No ordinary shares have been reserved for issue under options & contracts/commitments for sale of shares/disinvestment as at the Balance Sheet Date;
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12: Other equity

Rs. In Lacs

As at As at

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

A. Securities premium 4,005.95 4,005.95
B. General reserve 0.70 0.70
C. Retained earnings (859.10) (785.49)
Total - Other equity 3,147.55 3,221.16

Movement in retained earnings

Rs. In Lacs

As at As at

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Opening Balance (785.49) (635.99)
Add: Profit/(Loss) for the year (73.61) (149.50)
Closing Balance (859.10) (785.49)

Nature and purpose of reserve:

A. General Reserve

The general reserve is a free reserve which is used from time to time to transfer profits from

retained earnings for appropriation purposes.

B. Securities Premium

Securities premium reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve can be
utilised only for limited purposes such as issuance of bonus shares in accordance with the provisions

of the Companies Act, 2013.

13: Non- Current Borrowings (At Amortised Cost)

Rs. In Lacs

As at As at

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Term Loan (Refer Note 13.1) 32.12 38.29
32.12 38.29

13.1 Term Loan

Term Loan from ICICI Bank was taken during the financial year 2018-19 and carries interest @
8.45% pa. The loan is repayable in 121 installments of Rs.63,405 each along with interest from
date of loan. The loan is secured by Hypothication of Office Premises at Chennai location.
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14 : Current Borrowings (At Amortised Cost)

Rs. In Lacs
Asat Asat
March 31,2022 | March 31, 2021
Current Maturities of Long termloan 433 5.67
Advances from Directors (Interest Free) 252.18 226.35
256.51 232.02
15 : Trade payables (at amortised cost)
Rs.In lacs
Asat Asat
March 31,2022 | March 31, 2021
Trade payables
To Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises - -
To Other than Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises 95.54 84.43
Trade payables to related parties - -
95.54 8443
Note 15.1:
Disclosure as required under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Devel Act, 2006, to the extent ascertained, and as per notification
number GSR 679 (E) dated 4th Sey ber, 2015 Rs. In Lacs
Asat Asat
March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each
accounting year :
- Principal amount - -
- Interest due on above - -
The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act 2006 along with the amounts
of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year
The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but
beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act 2006
[The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year R _
The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the
interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible - -
expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act 2006

Trade Payable Ageing Schedule as on March 31, 2022 Rs. In Lacs
Outstanding for following periods from due date of transaction
Particular Unbilled Dues Less than1 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Total
Year Years
i) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - - - - - -
ii) Total outstanding dues of creditor other than micro enterprises and small 1.20 13.03 - - 8131 95.54
enterprises
iii) Disputed dues-MSME - - - - - -
iv) Disputed dues-Others - - - - - -
Total trade payable 120 13.03 - - 8131 95.54
Trade Payable Ageing Schedule as on March 31, 2021 Rs. In Lacs
Outstanding for following periods from due date of transaction
Particular Unbilled Dues Lessthan1 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Total
Year Years
i) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - - - - - -
i) Total outstanding dues of creditor other than micro enterprises and small 114 1.96 - - 8133 84.43
enterprises
iii) Disputed dues-MSME - - - - - -
iv) Disputed dues-Others - - - - - -
Total trade payable 1.14 1.96 - - 8133 84.43
16 : Other Finandial Liabilities (at amortised cost)
Rs.In lacs
Asat Asat
March 31,2022 | March 31,2021
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18 Revenue from operation

Rs. In Lacs

Year ended
March 31, 2022

Year ended
March 31, 2021

Sale of Services

116.05

1.80

116.05

1.80

Contract balances

Year ended
March 31, 2022

Year ended
March 31, 2021

Trade receivables 1,963.96 2,033.99
Trade Receivables are not Interest Bearing.
19 Other income

Rs. In Lacs

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2022

Year ended
March 31, 2021

Interest on Fixed Deposits
Rental Income

0.15

4.83
4.98

3.91

5.01
8.92

20 Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-trade

Rs. In Lacs

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2022

Year ended
March 31, 2021

Inventories at the beginning of the year

Stock in Trade 10.75 10.75
10.75 10.75
Less: Inventories at the end of the year (Refer Note 7)
Stock in Trade 10.75 10.75
10.75 10.75
21 Employee benefits expense
Rs. In Lacs

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2022

Year ended
March 31, 2021

Salaries, wages and bonus
(Including Director's Remuneration)

(Refer Note 34) 15.45 30.85
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 0.21 0.09
Staff welfare expenses 1.10 2.84
16.76 33.78
22 Finance costs
Rs. In Lacs

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2022

Year ended
March 31, 2021

Interest Expense:
-On borrowings

3.82
3.82

2.93
2.93
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23. Other Expenses

Rs. In Lacs

Particulars

Year ended

March 31, 2022

Year ended
March 31, 2021

Electricity expenses 0.48 0.55
Communication Expenses 0.39 0.86
Audit Fees
Staturory Audit 0.81 0.76
Limited Review 0.24 0.24
Postage & Courier 0.12 0.07
Rent 1.14 0.53
Repairs and maintenance
Building 2.19 0.89
Machinery - 0.22
Others 1.75 2.45
Bad Debt - 30.00
Course Execution & Project expenses 140.33 9.54
Rates and taxes 7.92 2.84
Bank & Demat Charges - 0.95
Listing & Custodian Fees 7.77 6.15
Relisting & Revocation - 47.68
Legal and Professional Fees 3.00 1.49
Printing and Stationery 0.98 1.16
Travelling and Conveyance 1.52 1.61
Loss on Sale of Motor Car - 5.80
Miscellaneous Expenses 0.44 1.04
169.08 114.83
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Notes to Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 31,2022

24. Earning Per Share

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the company by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the|
year.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the company (after adjusting for interest on the convertible preference shares) by the weighted

average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of Equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential Equity
shares into Equity shares.

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

Rs.In lacs

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31,2022 March 31, 2021

Profit /(Loss) attributable to equity holders of the company (Rs. in lacs) (73.61) (149.50)
Weighted Average number of Equity shares * 12,65,93,350 12,65,93,350
Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share (0.06) (0.12)|

* The weighted average number of shares takes into account the weighted average effect of changes in treasury share transactions during the year. There have been no other transactions
involving Equity shares or potential Equity shares between the reporting date and the date of authorisation of these financial statements.

25.Contingent liabilities, commitments and leasing arrangements
25.a. Lease
There are no Lease agreements.

25.b. Commitments

There are no commitments by the company

25.c. Contingent Liabilities

The Company does not have any contingent liability that would impact the financial position as on 31st March 2022.

26. Related parties transactions

Name of . iption of relationshi

i) Related parties where control exists
a) Subsidiary Companies
elcc Infotech Limited
i) Name of other related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year

a) Key Managerial Personnel
Mr. Sidharth Lakhotia

Mr. Pratik Lakhotia

Mr. Prashant Lakhotia

CS Smriti Suhasaria

Related party transactions during the year:

Rs. In Lacs|
SI.No Related Parties Nature of Transactions Transactions during Transactions Payable/(Receivable)
the year ended March | Amount paid during | during the year A'T"’“"t paid
31,2022 the year 2021-22 | ended March 31, | during the vear [ march 31,2022 [ March 31, 2021
2021 202021
Loan from Promoter /Director/ Promoter Group
1 _|Mr. Sidharth Lakhotia Loan 50.84 20.00 68.78 28.11 108.99 78.15
2 [Mr. Kirti Lakhotia Loan - 5.00 30.08 0.40 88.06 93.07
Mr. Pratik Lakhotia 16.89 15.64 15.64
Mr. Prashant Lakhotia 18.39 39.49 39.49
| [Key Managerial Personnel
3 |Mr. Sidharth Lakhotia Director's Remuneration 9.20 4.38 3.60 3.63 17.70 12.88
4 [Mr. Pratik Lakhotia Director's Remuneration 3.00 - 3.00 20.28 17.28
5 |Mr. Prashant Lakhotia Director's Remuneration 1.20 - 1.20 7.24 6.04
6 |Mr.Kirti Lakhotia Director's Remuneration 6.00 0.16 6.00 71.66 65.82
7 _|CS Smriti Suhasaria Remuneration 1.80 1.80 1.80 1.80 - -

'Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties
The sales to and purchases from related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions. Outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured and
settlement occurs in cash. There have been no guarantees provided or received for any related party receivables or payables except as disclosed above.

27.Segment reporting
The Company operates in only one business segment i.e. Education in the field of skill development and in only one geographic segment i.e. India. Accordingly there are no separate
reportable segments under Ind AS - 108 - Operating Segments.
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28. Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company’s financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowing and other payables. The main
purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operation. The Company’s financial
assets include loans, trade & other receivables and cash & cash equivalents. The Company is
exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s senior management has the
overall responsibility for establishing and governing the Company’s financial risk management
framework and developing and monitoring the Company’s financial risk management policies. The
Company’s financial risk management policies are established to identify and analyze the risks
faced by the Company, to set and monitor appropriate controls.

28.1. Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three type of risk i.e. currency risk,
interest rate risk and other price risk such as commodity price risk and equity price risk. Financial
instruments affected by market risk include trade payable, trade receivables, borrowings etc.
Currency risk is not applicable to the Company it is not involved in substantial foreign currency
transactions.
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28.1.1 Interest rate risk
The Company takes debt to finance its working capital , which exposes it to interest rate risk. Borrowings issued at variable rates expose the Company to interest rate risk.
|Interest rate risk exposure:

March 31,2022 March 31, 2021

Rsinlacs Rsinlacs
Variable rate borrowing - -
Fixed rate borrowing 36.45 43.96
36.45 43.96

Interest rate sensitivity:
Profit or loss and equity is sensitive to higher/lower interest expense from borrowings as a result of changes in interest rates.

March 31,2022 March 31, 2021

Rsinlacs Rsinlacs
Effect on Statement of profit & loss -
(Loss)/Profit
Interest Rates increase by 50 basis points (0.21) (0.16)
Interest Rates decrease by 50 basis points 0.21 0.16

28.1.2. Price Risk

The Company’s non-listed equity securities are susceptible to market price risk arising from uncertainties about future values of the investment securities. The Company manages the equity
price risk through diversification and by placing limits on individual and total instruments. Reports on the portfolio are submitted to the Company’s senior management on a regular basis.
The Company’s Board of Directors reviews and approves all investment decisions.

28.2. Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations resultingin financial loss to the Company. Credit risk arises primarily from financial assets such as trade receivables,)
bank balances, loans, investments and other financial assets. At each reporting date, the Company measures loss allowance for certain class of financial assets based on historical trend,|
industry practices and the business environmentin which the Company operates.

Customer creditrisk is managed by the Company’s established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly|
monitored and credit quality of a customer is assessed and individual credit limits are defined in accordance with this assessment. Credit risk arising from investments, financial
instruments and balances with banks is limited because the counterparties are banks and recognised financial institutions with high credit worthiness.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables considered from the date of invoice as follows:

S Lessthan 1 Year More than 1 Year Total
Financial Year Ended as on X R R
Rsinlacs Rsinlacs Rsinlacs
March 31,2022 - 1,963.96 1,963.96
March 31,2021 - 2,033.99 2,033.99

28.3. Liquidity Ri
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial
asset. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due. Management monitors|
rolling forecasts of the Company’s liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows. The Company takes into account the liquidity of the market in which
the entity operates.

Maturities of Finandial Liabilities :
The table below analyzes the Company's Financial Liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual maturities :

As at March 31, 2022 Rs. In Lacs|
Less than 1 Year Between1-2 Between2-3 More than 3 years Total
Years Years
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 256.51 476 5.23 2213 288.63
Trade Payables 14.23 - - 8131 95.54
Other Financial Liabilities 1255 13.24 13.62 81.06 12047
As at March 31, 2021 Rs. In Lacs|
Less than 1 Year Between1-2 Between2-3 More than 3 years Total
Years Years

Financial Liabilities

Borrowings 232.02 433 4.76 29.20 27031
Trade Payables 3.10 - - 8133 84.43
Other Financial Liabilities 15.26 13,62 13.55 64.00 106.43

29. Capital management

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, security premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the

The Company’s objectives when managing capital is to safeguard continuity, maintain a strong credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and provide adequate
return to shareholders through continuing growth and maximise the shareholders value. The Company sets the amount of capital required on the basis of annual business and long-term|
operating plans which include capital and other strategic investments. The funding requirements are met through a mixture of equity, internal fund generation and borrowed funds. The|
Company monitors capital on the basis of the net debt to equity ratio. Net debts are long term and short term debts as reduced by cash and cash equivalents (including restricted cash and
cash equivalents). Equity comprises share capital and free reserves (total reserves excluding OCl). The following table summarizes the capital of the Company:
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CIN : L72200WB1985PLC073196

Rs in lacs Rs in lacs
Borrowings 288.63 270.31
Less : Cash & cash equivalents 22.57 1.39
Net debt 266.06 268.92
Equity 2,531.87 2,531.87
Equity and Net debts 2,797.93 2,800.79
Gearing ratio 0.10 0.10
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LCC Infotech Limited
P-16, CIT Road, Kolkata-14
CIN : L72200WB1985PLC073196

Note to Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2022
31: Utilisation of Borrowed Fund & Share Premium

The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company
shall: (a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or (b) provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

The Company has not advanced or lent or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall: (a)
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by
or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or (b) provide any guarantee, security or the
like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

32: Other Statutory Informations:

32.1: Benami Property

No proceeding has been initiated or pending against the group for holding any benami property
under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

32.2: Wilful Defaulter
The company is not a declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.
32.3: Relationship with Struck off Companies

The Company has no transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act,
2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956.

32.4: Undisclosed income

The Company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that
has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year ended March 31, 2022 and March 31,
2021 in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other
relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961)

32.5: Crypto Currency

The Company has not traded or invested in Cryptocurrency/ Virtualcurrency transactions / balances
during the current and previous financial year.

32.6: The Company is not getting covered under sec 135 of the Companies Act 2013 and as such the
provisions of CSR are not applicable on the Company.

32.7: The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC
beyond the statutory period.

32.8: There is no such requirement of compliance in relation to number of layers prescribed under
clause (87) of section 2 of the Companies Act read with Companies (Restriction on number of layers)
Rules, 2017 as the company doesn't have any subsidiary.

32.9: The Company has not filed any Scheme of Arrangements in terms of sections 230 to 237 of the
Companies Act, 2013 with any Competent Authority.

33: Previous years figures have been regrouped/reclassified, where necessary, to confirm to current
year classification.

In terms of our report attached on the even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For Anil Malani & Associates LCC InfoTech Limited

Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No: 329096E

Anil Malani Kriti Lakhotia Sidharth Lakhotia
Proprietor Managing Director Director
Membership No. 066279 DIN : 00057357 DIN : 00057511
Place : Kolkata Pratik Lakhotia Smriti Suhasari
Date : 27th May 2022 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

DIN : 00057015 ICSI Membership No. A36813
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LCC Infotech Limited
P-16, CIT Road, Kolkata-14
CIN :L72200WB1985PLC073196
INotes to Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2022
30. Ratio Analysis and its elements
Isr No Ratios Numerator Denominator 2021-22 2020-21 Variance (%) Reason for Variance greater than 25%
1 |CurrentRatio Current Assets Current Liabilities 4.48 5.11 -12%
2 |Debt- Equity Ratio Debt (Borrowing + Lease liabilities) Total Equity 0.051 0.047 8%
Earnings for Debt Service (Profit for
the perfod/year * F\.nance cost+ In previous year 2020-21 , Company was
Depreciation - Profit on sale of : P
roperty, plant and equipment having minimal revenue of INR 10.72]
Eiabpilitive's‘; rovisionsqnoplon er Debt Service (Interest] lakhs & has incurred higher loss of INR
required wittten backsbroviston for |8 Lease payments + 149.50 lakhs due to outbreak of Covid 19
3 [Debt service Coverage Ratio N Jease Hay (5.72) (1357)(  58%  |Pandemic compared to the current year
doubtful debts & advances+Bad Principal Re-
debts/ad itten off) ) 2021-22 where the company had
Ee St_a "alnlctes “":”, e"‘lj - paymen generated a revenue of INR 121.03 lakhs
-xceptiona | ftem-rair value gain on and the loss was reduced to INR 73.61
financials instrument at FVTPL-Profit lakhs
on sale of current investments+Loss
on sale of fixed assets
In previous year 2020-21 , Company was|
having minimal revenue of INR 10.72]
lakhs & has incurred higher loss of INR
A 149.50 lakhs due to outbreak of Covid 19|
4 |Return on Equity Ratio Profit for the period Sh"e'a:eld < Eaui (0.01) (0.03) 50%  |Pandemic compared to the current year|
areholder's Equity 2021-22 where the company had
generated a revenue of INR 121.03 lakhs
and the loss was reduced to INR 73.61
lakhs
In previous year 2020-21 , Company was
having minimal revenue of INR 10.72]
lakhs due to outbreak of Covid 19|
5 |inventory Turnover Ratio Revenue from operations Average Inventory 11.26 1.00 1020% |Pandemic compared to the current year,
2021-22 where the company had
generated a revenue of INR 121.03 lakhs
whereas the inventory remained the same]
in both years
In previous year 2020-21 , Company was|
having minimal revenue of INR 10.72]
6 Traf:le Receivables Turnover Revenue from operations Aver?geTrade 0.061 0.005 1066% lakhs cAlue to outbreak of Covid 19
Ratio Receivables Pandemic compared to the current year|
2021-22 where the company had
generated a revenue of INR 121.03 lakhs.
Purchases during the year of raw
7 |Trade Payables Turnover Ratio materials and and stoc!ﬂn trade + Average Trade 211 184 15%
Other Expenses (excluding non cash |Payables
provisions)
In previous year 2020-21 , Company was
having minimal revenue of INR 10.72]
lakhs & has incurred higher loss of INR
149.50 lakhs due to outbreak of Covid 19|
8 |Net Capital Turnover Revenue from operations Working Capital * 0.07 0.01 1093% Pandemic compared to the current year|
2021-22 where the company had
generated a revenue of INR 121.03 lakhs
and the loss was reduced to INR 73.61
lakhs
In previous year 2020-21 , Company was
having minimal revenue of INR 10.72
lakhs & has incurred higher loss of INR
149.50 lakhs due to outbreak of Covid 19
N ) Revenue from :
9 [Net Profit Ratio Profit for the year operations (0.63) (83.06) -99% Pandemic compared to the current year
P 2021-22 where the company had
generated a revenue of INR 121.03 lakhs
and the loss was reduced to INR 73.61
lakhs
Capital Employed [ Loss incurred during the previous year
Tangible Net Worth + 2020-21 is Rs.149.50 lakhs due to the
h . | : ic.
10 |Return on Capital employed Earnlvngs before mter‘est and taxes Tota De‘bt (0.012) (0.024) 52% worst effect of Covid 19 pa m‘iemlc But
(Profit Before Tax + Finance Cost) (Borrowing + Lease loss during the current year is Rs.73.61
liabilities) + Deferred lakhs which is almost 50% compared to
Tax Liability ] the previous year loss.
Int tl fixed d it
nierestincome on fixed deposits, Average (Current Interest on Fixed deposit received during
bonds and debentures + Profiton . .
! ! | investments + Non the current year 2021-22 is only Rs.0.15
11 |Return on Investment sale of investments + Profit on fair 0.003 0.10 -97% .
\uati £i ¢ ts ied at current Investments + lakhs compared to Rs.3.91 lakhs received
va uation of Investments carmied at | other bank balances) during the previous year 2020-21.
FVTPL + Fair value on Bonus CCPS
* Working capital has been calculated as currentassets minus current liabilities.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of

LCC Infotech Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

1. We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of LCC Infotech Limited
(hereinafter referred to as the "Holding Company") and its subsidiary (Holding Company and its
subsidiary together referred to as "the Group"), which comprise the consolidated Balance Sheet as at
March 31, 2022, and the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income), the consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the consolidated Statement of Cash
Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a sum-
mary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as
"the consolidated financial statements").

2. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013 ("the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as
at March 31, 2022, of consolidated total comprehensive income (comprising of profit and other
comprehensive income), consolidated changes in equity and its consolidated cash flows for the year
then ended.

Basis for Opinion

3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Sec-
tion 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the
"Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements" section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are rel-
evant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements in India in terms of the Code of Ethics
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the relevant provisions of the Act, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained, and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in
terms of their reports referred to in paragraph 16 of the Other Matters section below, is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Information Other than the consolidated financial statements and auditor's report thereon

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other informa-
tion. The other information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and
Analysis, Board's Report including annexures to the Board's Report, Corporate Governance & other
Shareholder's Information, but does not include the Consolidated Financial Statements, Standalone
Financial Statement and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information, compare with the financial statement of the subsidiary audited by the other
auditors, to the extent it relates to these entities and, in doing so, place reliance on the work of the
other auditors and consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Consoli-
dated Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. Other information so far as it relates to the subsidiary, is traced
from their financial statements audited by the other auditors.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of
these consolidated financial statements in term of the requirements of the Act that give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance and consolidated
cash flows, and changes in equity of the Group in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. The
respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for mainte-
nance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding
the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reason-
able and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the
Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

5. In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the com-
panies included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going con-
cern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease opera-
tions, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

6. The respective Board of Directors of the company included in the Group are responsible for
overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group.

Auditors' Responsibility for the Audit of the consolidated financial statements

7. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial state-
ments as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material mis-
statement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic deci-
sions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

8. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

~ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial state-
ments, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omis-
sions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

~ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3) (i) of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Holding company has adequate
internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

~ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of account-
ing estimates and related disclosures made by management.

~ Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of account-
ing and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial state-
ments or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group and to cease to continue as a going concern.

~ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial state-
ments, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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~ Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of
the financial statements of such entities included in the consolidated financial statements of
which we are the independent auditors. For the other entities included in the consolidated
financial statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them.
We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

9. Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements that, indi-
vidually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledge-
able user of the consolidated financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative ma-
teriality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the
results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the consolidated
financial statements.

10. We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other
entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

11. We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relation-
ships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

12. From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those mat-
ters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

Other Matters

13. We did not audit the financial statements of One ("1") subsidiary, included in the Statement,
whose financial statements reflect total assets of Rs. 148.77 Lakhs and net assets of Rs. 148.45
Lakhs as at March 31, 2022, total revenues of Nil, total net loss after tax of Rs. 0.11 Lakhs, total
comprehensive loss of Rs. 0.11 Lakhs (net of tax) and net cash in-flow amounting to Nil for the
financial year ended on that date as considered in the consolidated financial statement. This financial
statements/ financial information has been audited by other auditors whose reports have been fur-
nished to us by the management and in our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far
as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of subsidiary are based solely on the
reports of the other auditors and the procedures performed by us as under Auditor's Responsibilities
section above.

14. Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements is not modified in respect of the above
matters with respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
15. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("CARO 2020"), issued by the

Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the
Annexure A, a statement on the matter specified in paragraph 3(xxi) of CARO 2020.

16. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of the
reports of other auditors on separate Financial Statements of subsidiary incorporated in India, re-
ferred in the Other Matters paragraph above we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consoli-
dated financial statements.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our
examination of those books and the reports of the other auditors.

(c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including
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(d)
(e)

()

(9)

(h)

ii)

iii)

iv)

v)

other comprehensive income), the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Con-
solidated Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant
books of account and records maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements.

In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Com-
pany taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the reports of the
statutory auditors of its subsidiay incorporated in India, none of the directors of the Group
companies incorporated in India is disqualified as on March 31, 2022 from being appointed as
a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated finan-
cial statements of the Group and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate report in Annexure B.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

The Group incorporated in India have paid/ provided for managerial remuneration in accor-
dance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule
V of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditor's) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

The consolidated financial statements does not have any pending litigations as on March 31,
2022 on the consolidated financial position of the Group.

The Group did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses during the year ended 31st March, 2022.

There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Holding Company, its subsidiary incorporated in India
during the year ended March 31, 2022.

(a) The respective Managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary which are compa-
nies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act have
represented to us and the other auditors of such subsidiary companies respectively that, to
the best of their knowledge and belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Holding Company or any of such subsidiary to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), includ-
ing foreign entities ("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company or any of such
subsidiary ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) The respective Managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary which are compa-
nies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act have
represented to us and the other auditors of such subsidiary respectively that, to the best of
their knowledge and belief, no funds have been received by the Company or any of such
subsidiary from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Funding Parties"), with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company or any of such
subsidiary shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(c) Based on the audit procedures, that has been considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, performed by us and those performed by the auditors of the subsidiary
which are companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited
under the Act, nothing has come to our or other auditor's notice that has caused us or the
other auditors to believe that the representations under paragraph 19 (h) (iv)(a) &(b) above,
contain any material misstatement.

The Company, its subsidiary incorporated in India has not declared any dividend in previous
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financial year which has been paid in current year. Further, no dividend has been declared/
proposed for the current year. Accordingly, the provision of section 123 of the Act is not
applicable to the company.

For Anil Malani & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 329096E

Anil Malani

Proprietor

Membership Number: 066279
UDIN: 22066279AJSCPS5881

Kolkata
27 May 2022
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ANNEXURE A TO INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

ANNEXURE - A referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading "Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements" of our report of even date Re: LCC Infotech Limited (the "Parent Company")

In terms of the information and explanations sought to us by and the given by the Parent Company
and the books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best
of our knowledge and belief and based on the consideration of report of respective auditors of its
subsidiary company incorporated in India, we state that:

(xxi) There are no qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective auditors in their report on
Companies (Auditors Report) order, 2020 of the Companies included in the Consolidated fi-
nancial statements.

For Anil Malani & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 329096E

Anil Malani

Proprietor

Membership Number: 066279
UDIN: 22066279AJSCPS5881

Kolkata
27 May 2022
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ANNEXURE - B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Consolidated Financial State-
ments under clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

1. In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and for
the year ended March 31, 2022, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements of LCC Infotech Limited (hereinafter referred to as "the Holding Company") and
its subsidiary which are companies incorporated in India, as of that date.

Management's responsibility for internal financial controls

2. The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company, its subsidiary to whom reporting under
clause (i) of sub section 3 of Section 143 of the Act in respect of the adequacy of the internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements is applicable, which are companies incorporated in
India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential com-
ponents of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting ("the Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
("ICAI"). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient con-
duct of its business, including adherence to the respective company's policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under
the Act.

Auditor's responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Holding Company's internal financial controls
with reference to consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI and the Standards on Auditing deemed to be
prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of
internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and both issued by
the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements was established and maintained
and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system with reference to consolidated financial statements and their oper-
ating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to con-
solidated financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other
auditors in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Holding Company's internal financial
controls system with reference to consolidated financial statements.

Meaning of internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to consoli-
dated financial statements

6. A company's internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial statements is a
process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and
the preparation of consolidated financial statements for external purposes in accordance with gener-
ally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control with reference to consoli-
dated financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance
of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of
the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of consolidated financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) pro-
vide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
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or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the consolidated financial
statements.

Inherent limitation of internal financial control over financial reporting with reference
to consolidated financial statements

7. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of con-
trols, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections
of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements
to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to consoli-
dated financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8. In our opinion, the Holding Company, its subsidiary which are companies incorporated in India,
have, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system with reference to con-
solidated financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the internal control
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI.

Other Matters

9. Our aforesaid reports under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effective-
ness of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements insofar as it
relates to subsidiary, which are companies incorporated in India, is based on the corresponding
reports of the auditors of such companies incorporated in India. Our opinion is not modified in
respect of this matter.

For Anil Malani & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 329096E

Anil Malani

Proprietor

Membership Number: 066279
UDIN: 22066279AJSCPS5881

Kolkata
27 May 2022
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LCC Infotech Limited
P-16, CIT Road, Kolkata-14

CIN :

L72200WB1985PLC073196

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022

Particulars

Note No.

Assets

Non-current assets

(a) Property, plant and equipment
(b) Financial assets

(i) Investments

(ii) Loan

(iii) Other financial assets

Current assets
(a) Inventories
(b) Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents
(c) Other current assets

TOTAL ASSETS

Equity and Liabilities

Equity

(a) Equity share capital

(b) Other equity

Minority Interest

Total equity

Non-current liabilities

(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings

Current liabilities

(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings
(ii) Trade Payables
(a) Total outstanding dues of micro
enterprises and small enterprises
(b) Total outstanding dues of creditor
other than micro enterprises and
small enterprises
(iii) Other Financial Liabilities
(b) Other Current Liabilities

Total liabilities
Total Equity and Liabilities

(o) N0, I

10

11

13

14

15

17

Rs. in lacs
As at March 31, 2022| As at March 31, 2022
186.12 190.74
1,748.99 1,748.99
2,050.14 2,038.87
46.93 40.92
4,032.18 4,019.52
10.75 10.75
1,963.96 2,033.99
22.57 1.39
119.24 113.33
2,116.52 2,159.46
6,148.70 6,178.98
2,531.87 2,531.87
3,111.80 3,185.52
0.02 0.02
5,643.69 5,717.41
32.12 38.29
32.12 38.29
256.80 232.31
95.57 84.46
120.47 106.43
0.05 0.08
472.89 423.28
505.01 461.57
6,148.70 6,178.98

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2.1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

In terms of our report attached on the even date

For Anil Malani & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No: 329096E

Anil Malani
Proprietor
Membership No. 066279

Kolkata
27th May 2022

Place :
Date :

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
LCC Infotech Limited

Kriti Lakhotia
Managing Director
00057357

DIN :

Pratik Lakhotia
Chief Financial Officer
00057015

DIN :

Sidharth Lakhotia
Director
DIN :

00057511

Smrriti Suhasari
Company Secretary
ICSI Membership No. A36813
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LCC Infotech Limited
P-16, CIT Road, Kolkata-14
CIN:L72200WB1985PLC073196

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2022

Rs. in lacs

Particulars Notes Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Income
I. Revenue from operations 18 116.05 1.80
II. Other income 19 4.98 8.92
III. Total income (I+II) 121.03 10.72
Expenses
Changes in inventories of finished goods,
work-in-progress and stock-in-trade 20 - -
Employee benefits expense 21 16.76 33.78
Finance costs 22 3.82 2.93
Depreciation and amortisation expense 0 4.98 8.68
Other expenses 23 169.19 114.93
IV. Total expense 194.75 160.32
V. Profit/(loss) before Tax ( III - IV ) (73.72) (149.60)
VI. Tax expense
(a) Current tax - -
(b) Deferred tax - -
VII. Profit/(loss) for the year (V -VI) (73.72) (149.60)
VIII. Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year
(i) Items that will be not reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss - -
(ii) Items that will be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss - -
Other Comprehensive Income/ (Loss)
for the year (i +ii) - -
IX. Total Comprehensive Income/(loss) for the
year ( VII + VIII) (73.72) (149.60)
Earnings per share - Basic and diluted
(Nominal value Rs. 2 per share) 23 (0.06) (0.12)
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2.1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the
financial statements

In terms of our report attached on the even date
For Anil Malani & Associates

Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No: 329096E

LCC InfoTech Limited

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Anil Malani Kriti Lakhotia Sidharth Lakhotia

Proprietor Managing Director Director

Membership No. 066279 DIN : 00057357 DIN : 00057511
Pratik Lakhotia Smriti Suhasari

Place : Kolkata Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Date : 27th May 2022 DIN : 00057015 ICSI Membership No. A36813
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LCC Infotech Limited
P-16, CIT Road, Kolkata-14
CIN : L72200WB1985PLC073196

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2022

Rs. in lacs
Particulars Note Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

A. Operating Activities
Profit/ (Loss) before tax (73.72) (149.60)
Adjustments to reconcile profit/(loss)
before tax to net cash flows:

Depreciation and amortisation expense 3 4.98 8.68
Bad Debt - 30.00
Finance costs 3.82 2.93
Operating cash flows before working capital changes (64.92) (107.99)
Working capital adjustments:

Decrease / (Increase) in Trade receivables 70.03 61.12
Decrease / (Increase) in Inventories - -
Decrease / (Increase) in Other financial assets (5.91) (16.88)
Increase / (Decrease) in trade payables 25.12 (19.09)
Increase / (Decrease) in Loans & Advances (18.16) (7.94)
Cash used in operations 6.16 (90.78)
Income tax paid (net of refund) - -
Net cash used in Operating Activities a 6.16 (90.78)

B. Investing Activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment,
capital work in progress & intangible assets

(including capital advances) (0.36) (0.84)
Investment in fixed bank deposits - (36.19)
Proceeds from fixed bank deposits 0.88 28.90
Net cash flows from Investing Activities b 0.52 (8.13)
C. Financing Activities

Proceeds from borrowings 25.83 104.39
Repayment of borrowings (7.51) (4.68)
Interest paid (3.82) (2.93)
Net cash flows from /(used in) Financing

Activities c 14.50 96.78
Net Increase / (decrease) in cash and cash

equivalents a+b+c 21.18 (2.13)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning

of the year 1.39 3.52
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of

the year (refer note 13) 22.57 1.39

Explanation:

1. The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the “Indirect Method” as set out in Ind AS
- 7 “Statement of Cash Flows”

2. Components of Cash & Cash Equivalents (Refer Note 9):

Balances with banks :

In Current Accounts 20.40 1.18
Cash on Hand 2.17 0.21
Total 22.57 1.39

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
In terms of our report attached on the even date

For Anil Malani & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants LCC Infotech Limited
ICAI Firm Registration No: 329096E
Anil Malani Kriti Lakhotia Sidharth Lakhotia
Proprietor Managing Director Director
Membership No. 066279 DIN : 00057357 DIN : 00057511
Place : Kolkata Pratik Lakhotia Smriti Suhasari
Date : 27th May 2022 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

DIN : 00057015 ICSI Membership No. A36813
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LCC Infotech Limited
P-16, CIT Road, Kolkata-14
CIN:L72200WB1985PLC073196

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2022
A) Equity share capital (refer note 11)

1) Current reporting Year Rs. in lacs
Balance as at Change in Equity | Restated balance Change in Balance as at
April 1, 2021 Share Capital as at April 1, 2021 Equity Share April 1, 2022
due to prior capital during
errors the current
year
2,531.87 - 2,531.87 - 2,531.87
2) Previous reporting Year Rs. in lacs
Balance as at Change in Equity | Restated balance Change in Balance as at
April 1, 2021 Share Capital as at April 1, 2020 Equity Share April 1, 2021
due to prior capital during
errors the current
year
2,531.87 - 2,531.87 - 2,531.87
B) Other equity (refer note 12)
1) Current reporting Year Rs. in lacs
Reserves and Surplus
Securities General Retained Total
Premium Reerve earnings
(Including Other
Comprehensive
Income)
Balance as at April 1, 2021 4,005.95 0.70 (821.13) 3,185.52
Profit/(Loss) for the year - - (73.72) (73.72)
Other comprehensive income/
(loss) for the year - - - -
Balance as at March 31, 2022 4,005.95 0.70 (894.85) 3,111.80
2) Previous reporting Year Rs. in lacs
Reserves and Surplus
Securities General Retained Total
Premium Reerve earnings
(Including Other
Comprehensive
Income)
Balance as at April 1, 2020 4,005.95 0.70 (671.53) 3,335.12
Profit/(Loss) for the year - - (149.60) (149.60)
Other comprehensive income/
(loss) for the vear - - - -
Balance as at March 31, 2021 4,005.95 0.70 (821.13) 3,185.52

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
In terms of our report attached on the even date

For Anil Malani & Associates
Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

LCC InfoTech Limited

ICAI Firm Registration No: 329096E

Anil Malani
Proprietor
Membership No. 066279

Kolkata
27th May 2022

Place :
Date :

Kriti Lakhotia
Managing Director
DIN : 00057357

Pratik Lakhotia

Chief Financial Officer

DIN : 00057015

Sidharth Lakhotia
Director

DIN : 00057511

Smriti Suhasari
Company Secretary
ICSI Membership No. A36813
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LCC Infotech Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2022

1. Corporate Information

The consolidated financial statements comprise financial statements of LCC Infotech Limited (the
"Company") and its subsidiary (collectively, the Group) for the year ended 31 March 2022. The
company is a public company domiciled in India and is incorporated under the provisions of the
Companies Act applicable in India. Its shares are listed on BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange
of India Limited. The registered office of the company is located at P-16, CIT Road, Kolkata - 700014.

At present, the group is focusing largely on the business of digital network of healthcare and portfolio
management service.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The Consolidated financial statements of the group has been prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015 (as amended from time to time) and presentation requirements of Division III of Schedule III
to the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS compliant Schedule III).

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in INR and all values are rounded to the nearest
lakhs (INR '00,000), except when otherwise indicated.

The company has prepared the financial statements on the basis that it will continue to operate as a
going concern.

2.2. Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the group and its subsid-
iary as at 31 March 2022. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the investee. Specifically, the Group controls an investee if and only if the Group has:

~ Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee)

~ Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and
~ The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights result in control. To support this
presumption and when the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an
investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power
over an investee, including:

~ The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee
~ Rights arising from other contractual arrangements
~ The Group's voting rights and potential voting rights

~ The size of the group's holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of the
holdings of the other voting rights holders

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary
begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control
of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date the Group gains
control until the date the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transac-
tions and other events in similar circumstances. If a member of the Group uses accounting policies
other than those adopted in the consolidated financial statements for like transactions and events in
similar circumstances, appropriate adjustments are made to that Group member's financial state-
ments in preparing the consolidated financial statements to ensure conformity with the Group's
accounting policies.

The financial statements of all entities used for the purpose of consolidation are drawn up to same
reporting date as that of the parent company, i.e., year ended on 31 March. When the end of the
reporting period of the parent is different from that of a subsidiary, the subsidiary prepares, for
consolidation purposes, additional financial information as of the same date as the financial state-
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ments of the parent to enable the parent to consolidate the financial information of the subsidiary,
unless it is impracticable to do so.

Consolidation procedure:

(a) Combine like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the parent
with those of its subsidiaries. For this purpose, income and expenses of the subsidiary are
based on the amounts of the assets and liabilities recognised in the consolidated financial
statements at the acquisition date.

(b) Offset (eliminate) the carrying amount of the parent's investment in each subsidiary and the
parent's portion of equity of each subsidiary. Business combinations policy explains how to
account for any related goodwill.

(c) Eliminate in full intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between entities of the group (profits or losses resulting from intra-
group transactions that are recognised in assets, such as inventory and fixed assets, are
eliminated in full). Intragroup losses may indicate an impairment that requires recognition in
the consolidated financial statements. Ind AS 12 Income Taxes applies to temporary differ-
ences that arise from the elimination of profits and losses resulting from intragroup transac-
tions.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCI) are attributed to the equity
holders of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance. When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the Group's accounting
policies. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an
equity transaction. If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it:

~ De-recognises the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary at their carrying
amounts at the date when control is lost

~ De-recognises the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests

~ De-recognises the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity

~ Recognises the fair value of the consideration received

~ Recognises the fair value of any investment retained

~ Recognises any surplus or deficit in profit or loss

~ Recognise that distribution of shares of subsidiary to Group in Group's capacity as owners

~ Reclassifies the parent's share of components previously recognised in OCI to profit or loss or
transferred directly to retained earnings, if required by other Ind ASs as would be required if
the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities

~ The Subsidiaries considered in these consolidated financial statements are as under:

SI. No. Name Country of % of Voting Power / Ownership Interest
Incorporation As at As at

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
1) eLCC Info.Com Limited India 99.98% 99.98%

3.1. Summary of significant accounting policies
a. Income Recognition

Income from Royalty is recognised on an accrual basis in accordance with the terms of the relevant
agreement.

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the revenue can be reliably measured.
b. Operating Cycle

All assets and liabilities have been classified as per the Company's normal operating cycle and other
criteria set out in the Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013 and Ind AS 1 - Presentation of
Financial Statements based on the nature of products and the time between the acquisition of assets
for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents.
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c. Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

d. Investments
Investment in subsidiaries, are carried at cost less accumulated impairment, if any.
e. Retirement and other employee benefits

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The group has no
obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The group recognizes contribu-
tion payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the related
service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the balance sheet date
exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability
after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribu-
tion due for services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset
to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash
refund.

f. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand and
at bank.

g. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to equity holders
of parent company (after deducting preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attrib-
utable to equity shareholders of the parent company and the weighted average number of shares
outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

h. Contingent Liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the
control of the group or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in
extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be
measured reliably. The group does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in
the financial statements.

3.2. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and
the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carry-
ing amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

a. Useful lives of property, plant and equipment:

As described in the significant accounting policies, the group reviews the estimated useful lives of
property, plant and equipment at the end of each reporting period.

b. Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. Existing circumstances
and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or cir-
cumstances arising that are beyond the control of the group. Such changes are reflected in the
assumptions when they occur.

c. Provisions Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
Provision is recognized in the accounts when there is a present obligation as a result of past event(s)
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and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Provisions are not discounted to their present value and are determined
based on the best estimate required to settle the obligation at the reporting date. These estimates
are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. Contingent
liabilities are disclosed unless the possibility of outflow of resources is remote. Contingent assets are
neither recognized nor disclosed in the financial statements.
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LCC Infotech Limited
P-16, CIT Road, Kolkata-14
CIN : L72200WB1985PLC073196

4: Investments
Name of the Company

As at
March 31, 2022

Rs. In Lacs
As at
March 31, 2021

Investments at Amortised Cost

Quoted Equity Share (Fully Paid Up)
NIIT Limited (100 equity shares
(March 31, 2021 : 100) of Rs.2 each)

Universal Media Network Limited(7,82,425
equity shares (March 31, 2021 : 7,82,425) of Rs.2 each)

R. S. Software Limited"(1,500 equity shares
(March 31, 2021 : 1,500) of Rs. 10 each)

ATN International Limited( 1,51,673 equity shares
(March 31, 2021 : 1,51,673) of Rs. 4 each)

Tata Steel Limited( 7,500 equity shares
(March 31, 2021 : 7,500) of Rs. 10 each)

Sun Pharma Advance Research Co. Ltd
( 3,000 equity shares (March 31, 2021 : 3,000)
of Rs. 5 each)

Unquoted Equity Shares ( fully paid up)
- In wholly owned subsidiary companies

Abex Infocom Pvt. Ltd.( 50,000 equity shares
(March 31, 2021 : 50,000) of Rs. 10 each)

Advertiser's Advertising Agency Limited
(2,400 equity shares (March 31, 2021 : 2,400)
of Rs. 10 each)

Alkon Trading Pvt. Ltd.( 26,000 equity shares
(March 31, 2021 : 26,000) of Rs. 10 each)

Aradhana VyaparPvt. Ltd.( 36,000 equity shares
(March 31, 2021 : 36,000) of Rs. 10 each)

Aristo Projects Ltd.( 45,650 equity shares
(March 31, 2021 : 45,650) of Rs. 10 each)

Ashoke Paper Mills Ltd.( 1,50,000 equity shares
(March 31, 2021 : 1,50,000) of Rs. 10 each)

Bhairav Trde Link Ltd.(4,000 equity shares
(March 31, 2021 : 4,000) of Rs. 10 each)

Casecade Dealcom Pvt. Ltd.( 93,450 equity shares
(March 31, 2021 : 93,450) of Rs. 10 each)

Celeste Merchandise Pvt. Ltd."( 12,258 equity shares
(March 31, 2021 : 12,258) of Rs. 10 each)

25.04

8.23

14.41

6.84

13.50

25.00

2.40

8.84

18.00

20.54

15.00

1.32

30.87

3.80

25.04

8.23

14.41

6.84

13.50

25.00

2.40

8.84

18.00

20.54

15.00

1.32

30.87

3.80
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LCC Infotech Limited
P-16, CIT Road, Kolkata-14
CIN : L72200WB1985PLC073196

4: Investments

Rs. In Lacs

Name of the Company

As at
March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

Investments at Amortised Cost

Unquoted Equity Shares ( fully paid up )

- In other companies

Champak Niketan Pvt. Ltd.( 30,000 equity shares
(March 31, 2021 : 30,000) of Rs. 10 each)

Destiny International Ltd.( 1,00,000 equity shares
(March 31, 2021 : 1,00,000) of Rs. 10 each)

Dhansafal Vyapaar Pvt. Ltd.( 49,000 equity shares
(March 31, 2021 : 49,000) of Rs. 10 each)"

Escrots Trade Link Pvt. Ltd."( 74,000 equity shares
(March 31, 2021 : 74,000) of Rs. 10 each)"

Galvenotek Industries Pvt. Ltd.( 1,30,000 equity
shares (March 31, 2021 : 1,30,000) of Rs. 10 each)

Goldwine Merchendise Pvt. Ltd.( 20,000 equity
shares (March 31, 2021 : 20,000) of Rs. 10 each)

Gurupath Merchendise Pvt. Ltd.( 25,000 equity
shares (March 31, 2021 : 25,000) of Rs. 10 each)

Hanurag Projects Pvt. Ltd.( 87,850 equity
shares (March 31, 2021 : 87,850) of Rs. 10 each)

Indivar Kutir Pvt. Ltd."( 30,000 equity shares
(March 31, 2021 : 30,000) of Rs. 10 each)

Jeet Vaniya Ltd.( 36,000 equity shares
(March 31, 2021 : 36,000) of Rs. 10 each)

Jhalar Vincom Pvt. Ltd.( 36,000 equity shares
(March 31, 2021 : 36,000) of Rs. 10 each)

Jmd Sounds Ltd.( 36,000 equity shares
(March 31, 2021 : 36,000) of Rs. 10 each)

Mangalmayee Garments Pvt. Ltd.( 16,000 equity
shares (March 31, 2021 : 16,000) of Rs. 10 each)

Mansingh Oils & Grains Pvt. Ltd.( 3,91,967 equity
shares (March 31, 2021 : 3,91,967) of Rs. 10 each)

Nathoo Commodities Pvt. Ltd.( 40,000 equity
shares (March 31, 2021 : 40,000) of Rs. 10 each)

Nutshell Vyapar Pvt. Ltd.( 80,000 equity
shares (March 31, 2021 : 80,000) of Rs. 10 each)

Ojas Suppliers Ltd.( 26,000 equity shares
(March 31, 2021 : 26,000) of Rs. 10 each)

Pentacon Plastic Co. Pvt. Ltd.( 36,000 equity
shares (March 31, 2021 : 36,000) of Rs. 10 each)

15.00

50.00

14.90

37.00

65.00

10.00

6.75

37.77

15.00

12.78

18.00

5.77

13.76

293.98

20.00

40.00

6.37

18.00

15.00

50.00

14.90

37.00

65.00

10.00

6.75

37.77

15.00

12.78

18.00

5.77

13.76

293.98

20.00

40.00

6.37

18.00
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4: Investments

Rs. In Lacs

Name of the Company

As at
March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

Investments at Amortised Cost
Unquoted Equity Shares ( fully paid up )
- In other companies

PKV Spun Pipe Impex Pvt. Ltd.( 36,000 equity

shares (March 31, 2021 : 36,000) of Rs. 10 each)

Platinum BioTech Pvt. Ltd.( 7,500 equity
shares (March 31, 2021 : 7,500) of Rs. 10 each

)

Pleasure Investment Pvt. Ltd.( 1,02,300 equity

shares (March 31, 2021 : 1,02,300) of Rs. 10 e

Pushpak Trading & Consultancy Pvt. Ltd.( 82,000 equity

ach)

shares (March 31, 2021 : 82,000) of Rs. 10 each)

Rangbarshi Projects Ltd.( 60,000 equity

shares (March 31, 2021 : 60,000) of Rs. 10 each)

Raunak Tracon Pvt. Ltd.( 42,550 equity

shares (March 31, 2021 : 42,550) of Rs. 10 each)

Ricon Tieup Ltd.( 50,000 equity shares
(March 31, 2021 : 50,000) of Rs. 10 each)

Rolex Merchant Pvt. Ltd.( 2,800 equity
shares (March 31, 2021 : 2,800) of Rs. 10 each

Rubion Marketing Ltd.( 30,000 equity

)

shares (March 31, 2021 : 30,000) of Rs. 10 each)

Sapience Commodities Pvt. Ltd.( 25,500 equity
shares (March 31, 2021 : 25,500) of Rs. 10 each)

Savera Traders Ltd.( 29,750 equity

shares (March 31, 2021 : 29,750) of Rs. 10 each)

Shalu Properties Pvt. Ltd.( 18,000 equity

shares (March 31, 2021 : 18,000) of Rs. 10 each)

Sheetal Farms Ltd.( 50,000 equity

shares (March 31, 2021 : 50,000) of Rs. 10 each)

Shivganga Distributors Pvt. Ltd.( 30,000 equity

shares (March 31, 2021 : 30,000) of Rs. 10 each)

Shree Agro Industries Ltd.( 7,11,600 equity
shares (March 31, 2021 : 7,11,600) of Rs. 10 e

Shyam Sree Steels Ltd.( 1,790 equity
shares (March 31, 2021 : 1,790) of Rs. 10 each

Skylark Commerce Pvt. Ltd.( 50,000 equity

ach)

)

shares (March 31, 2021 : 50,000) of Rs. 10 each)

StarPoint Management Pvt. Ltd.( 29,000 equity

shares (March 31, 2021 : 29,000) of Rs. 10 each)

18.00

6.00

51.15

41.00

48.20

19.57

50.00

28.00

11.70

8.42

29.75

9.00

50.00

15.00

177.90

0.90

25.00

21.60

18.00

6.00

51.15

41.00

48.20

19.57

50.00

28.00

11.70

8.42

29.75

9.00

50.00

15.00

177.90

0.90

25.00

21.60
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4: Investments

Rs. In Lacs

Name of the Company

As at
March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

Investments at Amortised Cost
Unquoted Equity Shares ( fully paid up )
- In other companies

"Sudhanil Vanija Ltd."( 29,050 equity shares

(March 31, 2021 : 29,050) of Rs. 10 each)" 5.51 5.51

"Swarnima Properties Pvt. Ltd."( 50,000 equity

shares (March 31, 2021 : 50,000) of Rs. 10 each)" 25.00 25.00

Tayal Trading Pvt. Ltd.( 40,000 equity

shares (March 31, 2021 : 40,000) of Rs. 10 each) 20.00 20.00

The Thermic Steel Co. Pvt. Ltd.( 53,000 equity

shares (March 31, 2021 : 53,000) of Rs. 10 each) 26.50 26.50

Top Light Tradelink Pvt. Ltd.( 1,00,000 equity

shares (March 31, 2021 : 1,00,000) of Rs. 10 each) 50.00 50.00

Triplerank Marketing Pvt. Ltd.( 30,000 equity

shares (March 31, 2021 : 30,000) of Rs. 10 each) 15.00 15.00

Turnkey Commodities Ltd.( 1,04,500 equity

shares (March 31, 2021 : 1,04,500) of Rs. 10 each) 36.57 36.57

Twinkle Traders Pvt. Ltd.( 40,000 equity shares

(March 31, 2021 : 40,000) of Rs. 10 each) 20.00 20.00

Vijay Investment & Trading Pvt. Ltd.( 55,500 equity

shares (March 31, 2021 : 55,500) of Rs. 10 each) 27.75 27.75

Vijay Path Distributors Ltd.( 52,000 equity

shares (March 31, 2021 : 52,000) of Rs. 10 each) 26.00 26.00

Weldorf Tradelink Ltd.( 15,000 equity shares

(March 31, 2021 : 15,000) of Rs. 10 each) 4.65 4.65

Whiteline Barter Ltd.( 15,000 equity shares

(March 31, 2021 : 15,000) of Rs. 10 each) 4.80 4.80
1,748.99 1,748.99

Aggregate book value of quoted investment 70.17 70.17

Aggregate book value of unquoted investment 1,678.82 1,678.82

Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investment

Note: All investments are inside India only. No investments have been made outside India
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Rs. In Lacs

5: Loans (Unsecured considered good, unless otherwise stated) (At Amortised Cost)

Non-current

As at As at

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Loans to Others 2,050.14 2,038.87
2,050.14 2,038.87

Type of Borrower Amount of lon or % of the totl Loan and

advance in the
nature of loan
outstanding

advances in the
nature of loans

Loans to Others 2,050.14

100%

6: Other financial asset (Unsecured considered good, unless otherwise stated) (At Am-

ortised Cost)

Rs. In Lacs
Non-current

As at As at

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Security deposits 7.96 0.88

Bank deposits with original maturity

greater than 12 months 37.39 38.27
Staff Advance 1.58 1.77
46.93 40.92

7: Inventories Rs. In Lacs
As at As at

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

(Valued at lower of cost and net realisable value)
Others ( Study Material) 10.75

10.75

Total 10.75

10.75
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8 : Trade Receivables Rs.In Lacs
As at Asat
Particulars March 31, 2022 | March 31,2021
At amortised cost
Trade Receivable considered good - Secured - -
Trade Receivable considered good - Unsecured 1,963.96 2,033.99
Trade Receivable creditimpaired - Unsecured - -
1,963.96 2,033.99
Less :Trade Receivables - credit impaired - -
Total Trade receivables 1,963.96 2,033.99
Receivable from related parties - -
Others 1,963.96 2,033.99
Total Trade receivables 1,963.96 2,033.99
Receivables are secured to the extent of Security Deposits taken from customers.
Trade Receivable Ageing Schedule as on March 31, 2022 Rs.In Lacs
Outstanding periods from due date of transaction
Particul -
articular Less than 6 6 months -1 1-2 Years | 2-3 Years More than 3 Total
months Years Years
Undisputed
(i) Considered good - - - 41.19 1,922.77 1,963.96
(ii) Credit impaired - - - - - -
- - - 4119 1,922.77 1,963.96
Less: Credit Impaired - - - - - -
Total Undisputed (A) - - - 4119 1,922.77 1,963.96
Disputed
(i) Considered good * - - - - - -
(ii) Credit impaired - - - - - -
Less: Credit Impaired - - - - - -
Total Disputed (B) - - - - - -
Total Trade Receivable (A+B) - - - 41.19 1,922.77 1,963.96
* Management is confident of recovering the entire balance
Trade Receivable Ageing Schedule as on March 31, 2021 Rs. In Lacs
Outstanding periods from due date of transaction
Particular -
Less than 6 6 months -1 12 Years | 2-3 Years More than 3 Total
months Years Years
Undisputed
(i) Considered good - - - 322.38 1,711.61 2,033.99
(ii) Credit impaired - - - - - -
- - - 322.38 1,711.61 2,033.99
Less: Credit Impaired - - - - - -
Total Undisputed (A) - - - 322.38 1,711.61 2,033.99
Disputed
(i) Considered good - - - - - -
(ii) Credit impaired - - - - - -
Less: Credit Impaired - - - - - -
Total Disputed (B) - - - - - -
Total Trade Receivable (A+B) - - - 32238 1,711.61 2,033.99

ii. Trade receivables are non-interest bearing.

i. No trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the company either severally or jointly with any other person.

iii. There are no unbilled receivables as on each reporting date, hence the same is not disclosed in the ageing schedules.
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9 : Cash and cash equivalent

Rs. In Lacs

As at
March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

Balances with banks :

On current accounts 20.40 1.18
Cash on hand 2.17 0.21
22.57 1.39

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following:

Rs. In Lacs

As at
March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

Balances with banks :

On current accounts 20.40 1.18
Cash on hand 2.17 0.21
22.57 1.39
Rs. In Lacs
Break up of financial assets carried at As at As at
amortised cost March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Investments (Note 4) 1,748.99 1,748.99
Loan (Note 5) 2,050.14 2,038.87
Other financial assets (Note 6) 46.93 40.92
Trade receivables (Note 8) 1,963.96 2,033.99
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 9) 22.57 1.39
Total financial assets carried at amortised cost 5,832.59 5,864.16
10: Other assets Rs. In Lacs
Current
As at As at

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

Unsecured, considered good

Balance with government authorities 119.24

113.33

119.24

113.33
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Rs.In lacs

Particulars

As at
March 31,2022

As at
March 31,2021

Authorized capital

25,50,00,000 (March 31, 2021: 25,50,00,000) equity shares of Rs. 2/- each 5,100.00 5,100.00
5,100.00 5,100.00

Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital

12,65,93,350 (March 31, 2021: 12,65,93,350) equity shares of Rs. 2/- each fully paid 2,531.87 2,531.87
2,531.87 2,531.87

(a) Terms / Rights attached to the equity shares

Meeting.

(b) Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding as at the beginning and at the end of year

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs. 2 per share. Each holder of equity share s entitled to one vote per share. The Company declares
and pays dividends in Indian Rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential
amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

As at March 31,2022 As at March 31,2021
No. of Shares Rs.In Llacs No. of Shares Rs.In Lacs
At the beginning of the year 126,593,350 2,531.87 126,593,350 2,531.87
Fresh issue of Equity shares during the year - - - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 126,593,350 2,531.87 126,593,350 2,531.87
(c) The details of shareholders holding more than 5% equity shares is set below: Rs. In Lacs
As at March 31,2022 As at March 31,2021
No. of Shares % Holding No. of Shares % Holding

Equity Shares of Rs.2 each, fully paid
Kirti Lakhotia 36,221,235 28.61 25,083,990 19.81
Pratik Lakhotia 7,513,205 593 11,213,205 8.86
Prashant Lakhotia 7,194,142 5.68 10,894,142 8.61
Sidharth Lakhotia 7,149,674 5.65 10,859,674 8.58
(d) Disclosure of Shareholdings of Promoter's
Disclosure of shareholding of promoters as at March 31, 2022 is as follows :

As at March 31,2022 As at March 31,2021 N
Name of shareholders % of Total No. of Shares % change during

No. of Shares ) the year
Shares % of Total Shares

Equity Shares of Rs.2 each, fully paid
Kirti Lakhotia 36,221,235 28.61 25,083,990 19.81 8.80
Pratik Lakhotia 7,513,205 5.93 11,213,205 8.86 (2.92)
Prashant Lakhotia 7,194,142 5.68 10,894,142 8.61 (2.92)
Sidharth Lakhotia 7,149,674 5.65 10,859,674 8.58 (2.93)
Disclosure of shareholding of promoters as at March 31, 2021 is as follows :

As at March 31,2021 As at March 31,2022 o N
Name of shareholders % of Total No. of Shares % change during

No. of Shares the year
Shares % of Total Shares

Equity Shares of Rs.2 each, fully paid
Kirti Lakhotia 25,083,990 19.81 25,083,990 19.81 [ NA
Pratik Lakhotia 11,213,205 8.86 11,213,205 8.86 | NA
Prashant Lakhotia 10,894,142 8.61 10,894,142 8.61| NA
Sidharth Lakhotia 10,859,674 8.58 10,859,674 8.58 | NA

above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownership of shares.

*As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders / members and other declarations received from shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the|

e. No ordinary shares have been reserved for issue under options & contracts/commitments for sale of shares/disinvestment as at the Balance Sheet Date;
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Rs. In Lacs

As at As at

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

A. Securities premium 4,005.95 4,005.95
B. General reserve 0.70 0.70
C. Retained earnings (894.85) (821.13)
Total - Other equity 3,111.80 3,185.52

Movement in retained earnings

Rs. In Lacs

As at As at

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Opening Balance (821.13) (671.53)
Add: Profit/(Loss) for the year (73.72) (149.60)
Closing Balance (894.85) (821.13)

Nature and purpose of reserve:

A. General Reserve

The general reserve is a free reserve which is used from time to time to transfer profits from

retained earnings for appropriation purposes.

B. Securities Premium

Securities premium reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve can be
utilised only for limited purposes such as issuance of bonus shares in accordance with the provisions

of the Companies Act, 2013.

13 : Non- Current Borrowings (At Amortised Cost)

Rs. In Lacs
As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Term Loan (Refer Note 13.1) 32.12 38.29
32.12 38.29

13.1 Term Loan

Term Loan from ICICI Bank was taken during the financial year 2018-19 and carries interest @
8.45% pa. The loan is repayable in 121 installments of Rs.63,405 each along with interest from date
of loan. The loan is secured by Hypothication of Office Premises at Chennai location.
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14 : Current Borrowings (At Amortised Cost)

Rs. In Lacs
Asat Asat
March 31,2022 | March 31, 2021
Current Maturities of Long termloan 433 5.67
Advances from Directors (Interest Free) 252.47 226.64
256.80 23231
15 : Trade payables (at amortised cost)
Rs.In lacs
Asat Asat
March 31,2022 | March 31, 2021
Trade payables
To Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises - -
To Other than Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises 95.54 84.43
Trade payables to related parties - -
95.54 8443
Note 15.1:
Disclosure as required under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Devel Act, 2006, to the extent ascertained, and as per notification
number GSR 679 (E) dated 4th Sey ber, 2015 Rs. In Lacs
Asat Asat
March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021

The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each
accounting year :

- Principal amount

- Interest due on above
The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act 2006 along with the amounts
of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but
beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act 2006

[The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the
interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible
expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act 2006

Trade Payable Ageing Schedule as on March 31, 2022 Rs. In Lacs
Outstanding for following periods from due date of transaction
Particular Unbilled Dues Less than1 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Total
Year Years
i) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - - - - - -
ii) Total outstanding dues of creditor other than micro enterprises and small 123 13.03 - - 8131 95.57
enterprises
iii) Disputed dues-MSME - - - - - -
iv) Disputed dues-Others - - - - - -
Total trade payable 123 13.03 - - 8131 95.57
Trade Payable Ageing Schedule as on March 31, 2021 Rs. In Lacs
Outstanding for following periods from due date of transaction
Particular Unbilled Dues Lessthan1 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Total
Year Years
i) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - - - - - -
i) Total outstanding dues of creditor other than micro enterprises and small 117 1.96 - - 8133 84.46
enterprises
iii) Disputed dues-MSME - - - - - -
iv) Disputed dues-Others - - - - - -
Total trade payable 117 1.96 - - 8133 84.46
16 : Other Finandial Liabilities (at amortised cost)
Rs.In lacs
Asat Asat
March 31,2022 | March 31,2021
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18. Revenue from operation

Rs. In Lacs

Year ended
March 31, 2022

Sale of Services 116.05

Year ended
March 31, 2021

1.80

116.05

1.80

Contract balances

Year ended
March 31, 2022

Year ended
March 31, 2021

Trade receivables 1,963.96 2,033.99
Trade Receivables are not Interest Bearing.
19. Other income
Rs. In Lacs
Particulars
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Interest on Fixed Deposits 0.15 3.91
Rental Income 4.83 5.01
4.98 8.92

20. Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-trade

Rs. In Lacs

Particulars
Year ended
March 31, 2022

Year ended
March 31, 2021

Inventories at the beginning of the year

Stock in Trade 10.75 10.75
10.75 10.75
Less: Inventories at the end of the year (Refer Note 7)
Stock in Trade 10.75 10.75
10.75 10.75
21. Employee benefits expense
Rs. In Lacs

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2022

Year ended
March 31, 2021

Salaries, wages and bonus (Including

Director's Remuneration) (Refer Note 34) 15.45 30.85
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 0.21 0.09
Staff welfare expenses 1.10 2.84
16.76 33.78
22. Finance costs
Rs. In Lacs

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2022

Year ended
March 31, 2021

Interest Expense:
On borrowings 3.82

2.93

2.93




2021-2022

LCC Infotech

Limited

P-16, CIT Road, Kolkata-14

CIN :
23. Other Expenses

Particulars
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Rs. In Lacs

Year ended

March 31, 2022

Year ended
March 31, 2021

Electricity expenses 0.48 0.55
Communication Expenses 0.39 0.86
Audit Fees
Staturory Audit 0.84 0.79
Limited Review 0.24 0.24
Postage & Courier 0.12 0.07
Rent 1.14 0.53
Repairs and maintenance
Building 2.19 0.89
Machinery - 0.22
Others 1.75 2.45
Bad Debt - 30.00
Course Execution & Project expenses 140.33 9.54
Rates and taxes 7.93 2.85
Bank & Demat Charges - 0.95
Listing & Custodian Fees 7.77 6.15
Relisting & Revocation - 47.68
Legal and Professional Fees 3.07 1.55
Printing and Stationery 0.98 1.16
Travelling and Conveyance 1.52 1.61
Loss on Sale of Motor Car - 5.80
Miscellaneous Expenses 0.44 1.04
169.19 114.93
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Notes to Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 31,2022

24. Earning Per Share

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the company by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the|
year.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the company (after adjusting for interest on the convertible preference shares) by the weighted
average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of Equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential Equity]
shares into Equity shares.

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:
Rs. In Lacs|

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31,2022 March 31, 2021

Profit /(Loss) attributable to equity holders of the company (Rs. in lacs) (73.72) (149.60)
Weighted Average number of Equity shares * 12,65,93,350 12,65,93,350
Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share (0.06) (0.12)

* The weighted average number of shares takes into account the weighted average effect of changes in treasury share transactions during the year. There have been no other transactions
involving Equity shares or potential Equity shares between the reporting date and the date of authorisation of these financial statements.

25.Contingent liabilities, commitments and leasing arrangements
25.a. Lease
There are no Lease agreements.

25.b. Commitments
There are no commitments by the company
25.c. Contingent Liabilities

The Company does not have any contingent liability that would impact the financial position as on 31st March 2022.

26. Related parties transactions

Name of related parties and description of relationship
i) Related parties where control exists

a) Subsidiary Companies
elcc Infotech Limited
i) Name of other related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year

a) Key Managerial Personnel
Mr. Sidharth Lakhotia

Mr. Pratik Lakhotia

Mr. Prashant Lakhotia

CS Smriti Suhasaria

Related party transactions during the year:

Rs. In Lacs|
Sl.No Related Parties Nature of Transactions Transactions during Transactions Payable/(Receivable)
the year ended March | aAmount paid during | during the year A'T“’““t paid
31,2022 the year 2021-22 | ended March 31, | duringthe year [ warch 31,2022 | March 31, 2021
2021 2020-21

Loan from Promoter /Director/ Promoter Group
1 [Mr.Sidharth Lakhotia Loan 50.84 20.00 68.78 28.11 108.99 78.15
2 |Mr.Kirti Lakhotia Loan - 5.00 30.08 0.40 88.06 93.07

Mr. Pratik Lakhotia 16.89 15.64 15.64

Mr. Prashant Lakhotia 1839 39.49 3949

Key Managerial Personnel
3 |Mr. Sidharth Lakhotia Director's Remuneration 9.20 438 3.60 3.63 17.70 12.88
4 [Mr. Pratik Lakhotia Director's Remuneration 3.00 - 3.00 20.28 17.28
5 |Mr. Prashant Lakhotia Director's Remuneration 1.20 - 1.20 124 6.04
6 |Mr.Kirti Lakhotia Director's Remuneration 6.00 0.16 6.00 71.66 65.82
7__|CS Smriti Suhasaria Remuneration 1.80 1.80 1.80 1.80 - -
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Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

The sales to and purchases from related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail
in arm’s length transactions. Outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured and settlement
occurs in cash. There have been no guarantees provided or received for any related party receiv-
ables or payables except as disclosed above.

27. Segment reporting

The Company operates in only one business segment i.e. Education in the field of skill development
and in only one geographic segment i.e. India. Accordingly there are no separate reportable seg-
ments under Ind AS - 108 - Operating Segments.

28. Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company’s financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowing and other payables. The main
purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operation. The Company’s financial
assets include loans, trade & other receivables and cash & cash equivalents. The Company is ex-
posed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s senior management has the
overall responsibility for establishing and governing the Company’s financial risk management frame-
work and developing and monitoring the Company’s financial risk management policies. The Company’s
financial risk management policies are established to identify and analyze the risks faced by the
Company, to set and monitor appropriate controls.

28.1. Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three type of risk i.e. currency risk,
interest rate risk and other price risk such as commodity price risk and equity price risk. Financial
instruments affected by market risk include trade payable, trade receivables, borrowings etc. Cur-
rency risk is not applicable to the Company it is not involved in substantial foreign currency transac-
tions.
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28.1.1 Interest rate risk
The Company takes debt to finance its working capital , which exposes it to interest rate risk. Borrowings issued at variable rates expose the Company to interest rate risk.
Interest rate risk exposure:

March 31,2022 March 31, 2021

Rsinlacs Rsinlacs
Variable rate borrowing - -
Fixed rate borrowing 36.45 43.96
36.45 43.96

Interest rate sensitivity:
Profit or loss and equity is sensitive to higher/lower interest expense from borrowings as a result of changes in interest rates.

March 31,2022 March 31, 2021

Rsinlacs Rsinlacs
Effect on Statement of profit & loss -
(Loss)/Profit
Interest Rates increase by 50 basis points (0.21) (0.16)
Interest Rates decrease by 50 basis points 0.21 0.16

282, Price i
The Company’s non-listed equity securities are susceptible to market price risk arising from uncertainties about future values of the investment securities. The Company manages the equity|
price risk through diversification and by placing limits on individual and total instruments. Reports on the portfolio are submitted to the Company’s senior management on a regular basis,
The Company’s Board of Directors reviews and approves all investment decisions.

28.2. Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations resultingin financial loss to the Company. Credit risk arises primarily from financial assets such as trade receivables,|
bank balances, loans, investments and other financial assets. At each reporting date, the Company measures loss allowance for certain class of financial assets based on historical trend,
industry practices and the business environmentin which the Company operates.

Customer credit risk is managed by the Company’s established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly|
monitored and credit quality of a customer is assessed and individual credit limits are defined in accordance with this assessment. Credit risk arising from investments, financial
instruments and balances with banks is limited because the counterparties are banks and recognised financial institutions with high credit worthiness.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables considered from the date of invoice as follows:

N Lessthan 1 Year More than 1 Year Total
Financial Year Ended as on ) ) .
Rs inlacs Rs in lacs Rs inlacs
March 31,2022 - 1,963.96 1,963.96
March 31,2021 - 2,033.99 2,033.99

28.3. Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial
asset. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due. Management monitors
rolling forecasts of the Company's liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows. The Company takes into account the liquidity of the market in which
the entity operates.

Maturities of Finandial Liabilities :
The table below analyzes the Company's Financial Liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual maturities :

As at March 31, 2022 Rs. In Lacs|
Less than 1 Year Between1-2 Between2-3 More than 3 years Total
Years Years
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 256.80 476 5.23 2213 28892
Trade Payables 14.26 - - 8131 95.57
Other Financial Liabilities 12.55 13.24 13.62 81.06 12047
As at March 31,2021 Rs. In Lacs|
Less than 1 Year Between1-2 Between2-3 More than 3 years Total
Years Years

Financial Liabilities

Borrowings 23231 433 476 29.20 270.60
Trade Payables 3.13 - - 8133 84.46
Other Financial Liabilities 15.26 13.62 13.55 64.00 106.43
] 1
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29. Capital management

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, secu-
rity premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Company.

The Company’s objectives when managing capital is to safeguard continuity, maintain a strong credit
rating and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and provide adequate return to
shareholders through continuing growth and maximise the shareholders value. The Company sets
the amount of capital required on the basis of annual business and long-term operating plans which
include capital and other strategic investments. The funding requirements are met through a mixture
of equity, internal fund generation and borrowed funds. The Company monitors capital on the basis
of the net debt to equity ratio. Net debts are long term and short term debts as reduced by cash and
cash equivalents (including restricted cash and cash equivalents). Equity comprises share capital and
free reserves (total reserves excluding OCI). The following table summarizes the capital of the
Company:

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Rs in lacs Rs in lacs

Borrowings 288.92 270.60
Less : Cash & cash equivalents 22.57 1.39
Net debt 266.35 269.21
Equity 2,531.87 2,531.87
Equity and Net debts 2,798.22 2,801.08
Gearing ratio 0.10 0.10
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31: Utilisation of Borrowed Fund & Share Premium

The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company
shall: (a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or (b) provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries. "The Company has not advanced or lent or
invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the
understanding that the Intermediary shall: (a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

32: Other Statutory Informations:
32.1: Benami Property

No proceeding has been initiated or pending against the group for holding any benami property under
the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

32.2: Wilful Defaulter
The company is not a declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.
32.3: Relationship with Struck off Companies

The Company has no transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act,
2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956.

32.4: Undisclosed income

The Company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that
has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year ended March 31, 2022 and March 31,
2021 in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other
relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961)

32.5: Crypto Currency

The Company has not traded or invested in Cryptocurrency/ Virtualcurrency transactions / balances
during the current and previous financial year.

32.6: The Company is not getting covered under sec 135 of the Companies Act 2013 and as such the
provisions of CSR are not applicable on the Company.

32.7: The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC
beyond the statutory period.

32.8: There is no such requirement of compliance in relation to number of layers prescribed under
clause (87) of section 2 of the Companies Act read with Companies (Restriction on number of layers)
Rules, 2017 as the company doesn't have any subsidiary.

32.9: The Company has not filed any Scheme of Arrangements in terms of sections 230 to 237 of the
Companies Act, 2013 with any Competent Authority.

33.: Previous years figures have been regrouped/reclassified, where necessary, to confirm to current
year classification.

In terms of our report attached on the even date

For Anil Malani & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants LCC InfoTech Limited

ICAI Firm Registration No: 329096E

Anil Malani Kriti Lakhotia Sidharth Lakhotia
Proprietor Managing Director Director
Membership No. 066279 DIN : 00057357 DIN : 00057511
Place : Kolkata Pratik Lakhotia Smriti Suhasari
Date : 27th May 2022 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

DIN : 00057015 ICSI Membership No. A36813
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Notes to Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2022
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ISr No. Ratios Numerator Denominator 2021-22 2020-21 Variance (%) Reason for Variance greater than 25%
1 [CurrentRatio Current Assets Current Liabilities 4.48 5.10 -12%
2 |Debt- Equity Ratio Debt (Borrowing + Lease liabilities) | Total Equity 0.051 0.047 8%
Earnings for Debt Service (Profit for
the period/year + Finance cost +
Depreciation - Profiton sale of In previous year 2020-21 , Company was|
property, plant and equipment- having minimal revenue of INR 10.72 lakhs &|
Liabilities/provisions no longer Debt Service (Interest| has incurred higher loss of INR 149.50 lakhs|
3 |Debt service Rati required written back+Provision for |& Lease Payments + (5.73) (13.58) 58% due to outbreak of Covid 19 Pandemic|
ebtservice Coverage Ratio | 4 ubtful debts & advances+Bad Principal Re- : - 8% | compared to the current year 2021-22 where
debts/advances written off)- payments) the company had generated a revenue of INR]
Exceptional Item-Fair value gain on 121.03 lakhs and the loss was reduced to INR|
financials instrument at FVTPL-Profit 73.61 lakhs
on sale of current investments+Loss
on sale of fixed assets
In previous year 2020-21 , Company was|
having minimal revenue of INR 10.72 lakhs &
has incurred higher loss of INR 149.50 lakhs|
. . N " Average due to outbreak of Covid 19 Pandemic]|
4 [Return on Equity Ratio Profit for the period 0.01 0.03 -50%
Y Uity ! ' pert Shareholder's Equity ( ) ( ) i compared to the current year 2021-22 where
the company had generated a revenue of INR]
121.03 lakhs and theloss was reduced to INR|
73.61 lakhs
In previous year 2020-21 , Company was
having minimal revenue of INR 10.72 lakhs|
due to outbreak of Covid 19 Pandemic|
5 |Inventory Turnover Ratio Revenue from operations Average Inventory 11.26 1.00 1026% compared to the current year 2021-22 where
the company had generated a revenue of INR]
121.03 lakhs whereas the inventory]
remained the same in both years
In previous year 2020-21 , Company was|
having minimal revenue of INR 10.72 lakhs|
g |TradeRecelvables Turnover o, n\ie from operations Average Trade 0.061 0005 | 10669 |due to outbreak of Covid 19 Pandemic
Ratio Receivables compared to the current year 2021-22 where
the company had generated a revenue of INR]
121.03 lakhs.
Purchases during the year of raw
7 |Trade Payables Turnover Ratio materials and and S(OCEII’\ trade + Average Trade 211 184 15%
Other Expenses (excluding non cash |Payables
|provisions)
In previous year 2020-21 , Company was
having minimal revenue of INR 10.72 lakhs &
has incurred higher loss of INR 149.50 lakhs
8 [Net Capital Turnover Revenue from operations Working Capital * 0.07 0.01 1093% due to outbreak of Covid 19 Pandemic
compared to the current year 2021-22 where
the company had generated a revenue of INR
121.03 lakhs and theloss was reduced to INR
73.61 lakhs
In previous year 2020-21 , Company was
having minimal revenue of INR 10.72 lakhs &
has incurred higher loss of INR 149.50 lakhs
9 [Net Profit Ratio Profit for the year RevenL!efrom (0.64). (83.11) -99% due to outbreak of Covid 19 Pandemic
operations compared to the current year 2021-22 where
the company had generated a revenue of INR
121.03 lakhs and theloss was reduced to INR
73.61 lakhs
Capital Employed [ Loss incurred during the previous year 2020-
Tangible Net Worth + 21 is Rs.149.50 lakhs due to the worst effect
10 |Return on Capital employed EarmAngs before mter.est and taxes Total De.bt (0.012) (0.024) 52% of Covid 19 pAandemlc. Butloss dlfrl ng the
(Profit Before Tax + Finance Cost) (Borrowing + Lease currentyear is Rs.73.61 lakhs which is
liabilities) + Deferred almost 50% compared to the previous year
Tax Liability ] loss.
Interest Income on fixed deposits, . . N .
bonds and debentures + Profit on .Averatge 1Ctur+ri‘nt Interestt on Flzgtzildezpzo.slt relce[\{vel;j f::llithe
11 [Return on Investment sale of investments +Profiton fair | Voo oo *NOn 0.003 010| -g79  [currentyear2u2L-22is only Re .25 iakhs
N . . current Investments + compared to Rs.3.91 lakhs received during
valuation of investments carried at Other bank bal ) th i 202021
FVTPL + Fair value on Bonus CCPS er bankbalances © previous year 2020-21.

* Working capital has been calculated as current assets minus current liabilities.
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